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STOCK TRADING PRICE INFORMATION

The shares of the Registrant are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The high and low prices for each quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years and 1st quarter of 2019 are as
follows:

QUARTER; CLASS “A” CLASS “B”

YEAR High Low High Low
15" Quarter, 2017 6.55 5.20 7.48 6.50
2" Quarter, 2017 6.20 5.39 6.15 6.00
3% Quarter, 2017 6.50 5.00 6.11 5.01
4™ Quarter, 2017 5.60 4.01 5.70 5.00
1 Quarter, 2018 6.90 4.50 6.38 5.00
2" Quarter, 2018 4.99 4.05 5.99 5.21
3" Quarter, 2018 6.50 4.11 5.30 4.50
4™ Quarter, 2018 8.61 2.91 5.19 4,70
1T Quarter, 2019 5.28 4.02 5.20 4.50

Note 1: Dividends amounting to P0.20 per share were declared and paid out in 2018. Dividends of
£0.20 per share were declared and paid by the company in 2017.

Note 2: Class “A” shares may be owned only by Filipino citizens while Class “B” shares may be owned
by Filipino citizens as well as foreigners.

Note 3: Latest market price traded was P4.50 per share for Class “A” shares transacted on May 29,
2019; and P 4.95 per share for Class “B” shares transacted on May 8, 2019.

Number of Shareholders

As of May 28, 2018, the Registrant had Four Hundred Seventy Three (473) stockholders of record, as
follows: Class “A” shares — Four Hundred Thirty Six (436) shareholders; Class “B” shares — Forty Four
(44) shareholders; and shareholders owning both Class “A” and “B” — Seven (7) shareholders.

Dividends

Dividends amounting to P0.20 per share were declared and paid in 2018. Dividends of P0.20 per share
were declared and paid in 2017.

Under the Registrant’s By-laws, there are no restrictions in the declaration of dividends other than what is
prescribed in the Corporation Code, namely that these shall be declared only from surplus profit and no
stock dividend shall be issued without the approval of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds
of all stock outstanding and entitled to vote at a general or special meeting called for the purpose. The
amount of unrestricted retained earnings available for distribution as of December 31, 2018 was
P251,207,084.00
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The Registrant’s consolidated revenue in 2018 decreased to P62.8 million from £130.8 million in 2017.
Equity in net earnings of associates decreased from P40.9 million in 2017 to a loss of P14.0 million in
2018 as Pointwest experienced operating losses due to loss of two major accounts. Interest income
decreased from P37.4 million in 2017 to P33.1 million in 2018 as interest levels have stabilized. A net
foreign exchange gain of P31.6 million was recorded in 2018 versus P7.8 million in 2017 as the Peso
continued to decline against foreign currencies which benefitted the foreign exchange denominated
bonds and other securities hold by the Registrant and its subsidiary. Rent increased from P20.8 million in
2017 to P23.2 million in 2018 due to escalation of rental rates and the leasing out of additional
condominium units acquired in 2016 and 2017. Loss on disposal of AFS, HTM and FVPL Financial
Assets of P1.3 million was recorded in 2018 against a gain of P3.8 million in 2017. Dividend income
increased from P2.4 million in 2017 to £3.7 million in 2018. Fair value loss on Financial Assets at FVPL
was P14.2 million in 2018 compared to a gain of P17.4 million in 2017.

Total consolidated expenses of the Registrant slightly increased to P41.9 million in 2018 compared to
£40.1 million in 2017 due to higher taxes and licenses related to the acquisition of additional investment
property and higher other expenses.

As a result of the above, total consolidated income before tax in 2018 totaled P21.0 million compared to
£90.8 million in 2017. After provision for income tax, total consolidated net income after tax totaled P13.1
million in 2018 compared to P79.4 million in 2017.

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest, namely minority shareholders of Magellan Capital
Holdings Corporation, totaled P1.0 million in 2018 compared to P1.7 million in 2017.

The Registrant’s financial position is very strong as it has substantial cash resources available to
undertake its planned projects. As of December 31, 2018, the Registrant’s consolidated cash and cash
equivalent totaled over P571.4 million which was lower than the level of P753.6 million as of December
31, 2017 due to additional investment in properties and additional investment in financial assets. The
Registrant and its subsidiary is planning to undertake development of MCHC’s land in Fort Bonifacio into
an office building as well as to acquire income producing properties as well as additional land for
development. The Registrant and its subsidiary are debt free with total consolidated liabilities of £P39.8
million at year-end 2018 compared to P56.4 million at year-end 2017. Total equity amounted to P1.9
billion as of the end of 2018 compared to P2.0 billion at year-end 2017.

The Registrant and its subsidiary and affiliates are substantially debt free except for MUDC which has
loans and advances from its principal shareholders. The Registrant and its subsidiaries have more than
enough cash resources to meet any expected requirements in the next twelve months. Consolidated
cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2018 totaled P571.4 million compared to P753.6 million at the
end of 2017 while total current assets totaled P841.8 million at year-end 2018 compared to P986.4 billion
at year-end 2017. Other than the normal fluctuation of the Peso exchange rate as well as the effect of the
normal market fluctuations on the value of stock and bond holdings owned by the Registrant and its
subsidiary, the Registrant is not aware of any trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in its liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material
way. Likewise, the Registrant does not know of any trends, events or uncertainties that have or that are
reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the revenues or income from
continuing operations.

The following is a detailed discussion of the company direct and indirect subsidiaries and its affiliated
associates:
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MAGELLAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION (MCHC)

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation (MCHC), your Company’s 95% owned subsidiary, is involved in
the development of and investment in infrastructure and power generation projects. Established in 1990.

MCHC has P689 million in paid-in capital and 21,866 million in consolidated shareholders’ equity as of
December 31, 2018. After the acquisition of the block of shares owned by PSEG Philippine Holdings LLC.
in December 2006, your Company owns 95% of the outstanding shares of MCHC and effectively controls
and manages MCHC.

MCHC was until December 2006, 28% owned by PSEG Philippine Holdings LLC, a unit of the Public
Service Enterprise Group (PSEG), the largest energy holding company in New Jersey and one of the
largest in the United States.

MCHC'’s total consolidated assets at year-end 2018 was P1,905 million compared to 1,990 million at
end of 2017. The primary reason for the decrease was the reduction in Financial Assets. This was partly
offset by increase in investment properties.

MCHC'’s consolidated revenues in 2018 totaled P84.3 million compared to P101.1 million in 2017. Most of
the decrease was accounted for by Fair Value Losses on Financial Assets at FVTPL which turned from a
gain of P15.6 million in 2017 to a loss of P13.1 million in 2018 due to drop in the price of listed stocks and
bond investments held by the Registrant and its subsidiaries. Consolidated expenses went up slightly
from P37.4 million in 2017 to P39.3 million in 2018 due to higher salaries and wages and due to increase
in miscellaneous expenses. As a result of the above, net income before tax fell to P44.9 million in 2018
from P63.6 million in 2017. Net income after tax fell to P39.7 million in 2018 from P52.9 million in 2017.

The President and CEO of MCHC is Mr. Robert Y. Cokeng, who is also President of your Company.

MCHC owns 43% of Magellan Utilities Development Corporation (MUDC) which is discussed below.
MCHC also owns the entire fifth floor of the Citibank Center Building in Makati as well as three (3) units in
the adjacent Citibank Tower Building. It has also acquired one floor in the JMT Condominium Building in
Ortigas Center which is currently leased out. Almost half of the floor in Citibank Center is used by your
Company as well as MCHC and its subsidiaries as its corporate offices. One unit is leased to Business
Process Outsourcing International, a 35% owned affiliate of the Company. The other two units available
for lease have also been rented out. The condo units in the Citi Tower Building are also currently leased
out. MCHC also owns a 985 square meter lot in Fort Bonifacio that it is developing into an office building.
As a result, MCHC’s rental income is expected to increase in the years ahead. MCHC has also recently
acquired three condominium units in Two Roxas Triangle in Makati for investment purposes.

MAGELLAN UTILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (MUDC)

Magellan Utilities Development Corporation (MUDC) is an MCHC project company developing a 320 MW
Power Project in Pinamucan, Batangas. MCHC directly owns 43% of MUDC. GPU Power Philippines,
Inc., a unit of GPU Corporation (GPU), former U.S. parent company of the Manila Electric Company
(MERALCO), owns 40% of MUDC. MERALCO was established by a predecessor company of GPU
during the American colonial era and was a wholly owned subsidiary of GPU until 1962 when MERALCO
was acquired by a Lopez - led investor group.

With the continued uncertainty over the project being developed by MUDC, MUDC at the urging of its
outside auditors had in 2004 written-off all its project development expenditures. It had in 2003 already
written-off all pre-operating expenses as dictated by new accounting standards that became effective in
2003. With these write-offs, MUDC now has negative equity of P257 million as of year-end 2015. In
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2005, your Company decided not to continue development of the project. Your Company’s exposure
including those of MCHC and its subsidiary, Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc., in the project have been
provided for and will not have any impact on the Company’s financial position. MCHC, along with other
shareholders of MUDC, will evaluate the future course of action for MUDC, including possible liquidation.

POINTWEST TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION (PTC)

Established in 2003 with your Company as one of the founding shareholders, Pointwest Technologies
Corporation (PTC) is a global service company offering outsourced IT services from the Philippines. It is
led by an experienced management team that helped pioneer offshore outsourcing in the Philippines.
Among others, it offers software servicing, maintenance, testing and development to various clients,
mostly in the United States. Your Company owns 30% of PTC. PTC had been profitable since its
inception but experienced its first operating loss in 2018 as it lost two major accounts. Annual revenues in
2018 was of over Twenty Million US Dollars ($20 Million) from $31 Million in 2017. It is currently
undergoing downsizing to cope with the drop in revenue.

BUSINESS PROCESS OUTSOURCING INTERNATIONAL, INC. (BPOI)

Business Process Outsourcing International, Inc. (BPOI) is a provider of accounting and finance related
services such as payroll services, internal audit, payables processing and others. It has a total staff of
over 400 servicing many of the multinational and large corporations operating in the country. BPOI was
spun off from the BPO Department of SGV & Co., the biggest auditing firm in the country.

Your Company owns 35% of BPOI after it acquired another 8.75% in 2005. BPOI revenues in 2018
exceeded P405 million and it has a staff of about 400 accountants and support staff.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Your Company and Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc. (PIEl) a subsidiary of Magellan Capital Holdings
Corporation have also invested in Aslan Pharmaceuticals Limited (Aslan), a biotech company focused on
the development of Immunotherapies and targeted agents for Asia prevalent tumor types. Your Company
owns 936,000 shares while PIElI owns 1,497,388 shares of Aslan. Aslan shares were listed in the Taipei
Exchange and its ADR’s were listed in NASDAQ in May last year.

CONCLUSION

Your Company generated a consolidated net income of P13.1 million in 2018 compared to a net income
of P79.4 million in 2017. The main reason was equity in net earnings of associates which went from net
earnings of P40.9 million in 2017 to equity in net loss of associates of P13.9 million in 2018. Pointwest
Technologies, your company’s 30% owned associates, experienced a loss in 2018 for the first time in its
history as it lost two major accounts. A gain in net income of BPO International, your company’s 35%
owned affiliates, was not enough to offset the losses at Pointwest resulting in an equity in net loss of
P13.9 million in 2018. However, Pointwest is currently downsizing as well as actively seeking new
accounts to cope with the loss of the major accounts.

Fair value losses on Financial assets at FVPL was P14.2 million in 2018 compared to Fair Value gain of
P17.4 million as prices of listed shares and bond investments held by the company and its subsidiaries
dropped in 2018. Higher FX Gain due to devaluatlion of the peso which benefitted the dollar-
denominated investments of the company was not enough to offset the share in net loss of associates
and the Fair Value Losses on Financial Assets, leading to the drop in net income.
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As a result of the above and dividend payments made in 2018, total consolidated equity decreased to
P£1,917.5 million at year-end 2018 compared to P2,009.5 million at year-end 2017.

The Company and its subsidiary has been increasing its investment in income producing properties in the
last few years. Its subsidiary, MCHC, will also develop its lot in Fort Bonifacio into an office building
generating lease income. Once the building is completed and leased out, we expect rental income to
exceed P100 million yearly.

With the support of the Directors, Officers, and Staff and shareholders, we look forward to the Company’s
future prospects and continued success. We thank the Shareholders for your continued support

ROBERT Y. COKENG
Chairman & President
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BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

A. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Registrant was incorporated and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) on 18 February 1971 to engage primarily in the business of mining, including mineral and
oil exploration. Its shares were registered and listed with the SEC in 1979 and thereafter listed and
traded at the Manila Stock Exchange. Presently, its shares are listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange (“PSE”).

On 28 July 1997, the Registrant’s primary purpose was changed to that of a holding company. At
present, the Registrant holds a 94.34% majority interest in Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation
(“MCHC").

In addition, the Registrant owns 30% of Pointwest Technologies Corporation (“PTC”), a software
servicing and development company. The Registrant also owns 35% of Business Process
QOutsourcing International, Inc. (“BPOI”) a provider of accounting-based business process
outsourcing (“BPQ”) services to a large number of clients.

From its incorporation to the present, the Registrant has not been subject to any bankruptcy,
receivership or similar proceedings. There has been no material reclassification, merger,
consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets other than in the ordinary
course of business and other than the sale by MCHC of its shares in one of its subsidiaries to J.G.
Summit Holdings, Inc.

Business Development of the Registrant’s Subsidiaries

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation (“MCHC”), is a corporation which was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on 06 November 1990. The Registrant owns a 94.37% majority interest in
MCHC. MCHC’s primary purpose is to engage in the business of identifying, developing and
implementing infrastructure and industrial projects. On December 7, 2006, the Registrant acquired
the shares of MCHC owned by PSEG Philippines Holdings LLC which represented a 27.67% total
equity stake in MCHC. As a result of this transaction, the Registrant increased its ownership stake
in MCHC from 66.67% to 94.37%. Because the shares were acquired at a substantial discount to
book value, the Registrant booked a gain of P201.3 million representing excess of fair value of net
assets acquired over cost in 2006.

MCHC owns 100% of the shares of the following companies:

NAME OF COMPANY DATE OF INCORPORATION PRIMARY PURPOSE
Pinamucan Industrial Real Estate holding
Estates, Inc. 05 May 1993 and Development
Malabrigo Corporation 31 August 1993 Mining
Magellan Capital Trading, Inc. 04 January 1991 Trading
Magellan Capital Realty 14 November 1990 Realty
Development Corporation

From its incorporation to the present, none of the Registrant’s above-named subsidiaries have been
subject to any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings. There has also been no material
reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of their assets
other than in the ordinary course of business.
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Business of Reqistrant

Description of Registrant

The Registrant is a holding company. At present, it owns almost 95% of its subsidiary, MCHC,
which is currently invested in real estate assets and in bond and stock investments and in shares of
its subsidiaries. Most of the Registrant’s indirect operating subsidiaries, i.e. MCHC’s subsidiaries,
are in development of infrastructure projects, as well as landholding and development. The
Registrant also owns 30% of PTC, a soft ware servicing development company and 35% of BPOI, a
company providing accounting, finance and payroll services which it acquired in 2004 and 2005.

Percentage of Consolidated Total Revenues

Breakdown of Revenue for the year 2018

CONSOLIDATED | PERCENTAGE

TOTAL REVENUE | BREAKDOWN
Equity in Net Earnings of Associates P (13,972,203) (22.2%)
Interest Income 33,083,309 52.61%
Net Foreign Exchange Gains 31,645,114 50.4%
Loss on Disposal of AFS, FVPL and HTM Financial
Assets (1,339,289) (2.1%)
Rent 23,167,135 36.9%
Dividend Income 3,718,041 5.9%
Fair Value Gain (Loss) on Financial Assets at FVPL (14,162,960) (22.5%)
Others 692,916 1.1%
Total P 62,832,063 100.00%

Breakdown of Revenue for the year 2017

CONSOLIDATED | PERCENTAGE

TOTAL REVENUE | BREAKDOWN
Equity in Net Earnings of Associates P 40,864,501 31.2%
Interest Income 37,412,772 28.6%
Net Foreign Exchange Gains 7,974,284 6.1%
Gain on Disposal of AFS and HTM Financial Assets 3,757,986 2.9%
Rent 20,834,930 15.9%
Dividend Income 2,424,550 1.9%
Fair Value Gain on Financial Assets at FVPL 17,421,323 13.3%
Others 137,494 0.1%
Total P 130,827,840 100.00%

The Registrant’s consolidated revenue in 2018 decreased to P62.8 million from P130.8 million in
2017. Equity in net earnings of associates decreased from P40.8 million in 2017 to a loss of P14.6
million in 2018 as Pointwest Technologies Corporation registered a loss due to loss of two major
accounts. Interest income decreased to P33.1 million in 2018 from P37.4 million in 2017. A net
foreign exchange gain of P31.6 million was recorded in 2018 compared to P7.3 million in 2017 as
Peso declined further against foreign currencies which benefitted the foreign denominated bonds
and other securities held by the Registrant and its subsidiary. Rent increased from P20.8 million in
2017 to P23.2 million in 2018 due to leasing of additional office units purchased in 2016 and 2017.
Loss on disposal of AFS, HTM and FVPL Financial Assets was 1.3 million in 2018 compared to a
gain of P3.8 million in 2017. Dividend income increased to P3.7 million in 2018 compared to gain of
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P17.4 million in 2017. Fair value loss on Financial Assets at FVPL was RP14.2 million in 2018
compared to a gain of P17.4 million in 2017.

B. PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES OF MCHC

Currently, MCHC, the Registrant’s subsidiary, has direct holdings in real estate and stock and bond
investments. It also owns shares in subsidiaries and affiliates engaged in development of
infrastructure projects and in real estate investment and development.

(a) Power Generation Project Companies

As a result of the crippling power shortages in the 1980s, the Philippine government launched its
program to encourage private sector participation in the power industry through the enactment of
Executive Order No. 215 (“EO 215”). Under EO 215, independent power producers (“IPPs”) may
participate in bulk generation to serve the requirements of the National Power Corporation (“NPC”),
electric cooperatives, private utilities and other customers. It was against this background that
MCHC’s power generation project companies, Magellan Utilities Development Corporation
(“MUDC”), Magellan Cogeneration, Inc. (“MCI”) and Mactan Power Corporation (“MPC”) were
organized, on the basis of BOO schemes under Republic Act No. 6957, as amended by Republic
Act No. 7718. The MPC project was sold by MCHC in 1997 right before the onset of the Asian
economic crisis. The MCI project was completed and sold in 1998.

MUDC, which was established to develop an approximately 320MW power plant in Pinamucan,
Batangas is 43%-owned by MCHC. The other major shareholder in MUDC is GPU Power
Philippines, Inc. (“GPU Power”), with a 40% equity interest. GPU Power is a subsidiary of GPU
Corporation (“GPU”), the former parent company of Manila Electric Company (“MERALCQO”). GPU
was a U.S.-based energy holding company with about US$11 billion in assets that operates utilities
and power plants in New Jersey and Pennsylvania, U.S.A. GPU has been acquired by First Energy
Corporation of Ohio which has decided to withdraw from the project and has done so by liquidating
GPU Power.

MUDC initially had a 25-year power sales contract with MERALCO, under which MUDC was to
supply power to MERALCO from its 300 MW coal-fired power plant to be constructed in
Pinamucan, Batangas. Under a Memorandum of Agreement executed in December 1998, the
parties agreed to execute a power purchase agreement whereby MERALCO would purchase the
power generated from MUDC’s 320 MW power plant, which was to be fuelled primarily by natural
gas. The said power purchase agreement has not yet been finalized.

As a result of the project’s uncertain prospects, the Registrant’s auditor recommended and
management had agreed that provision be made for all project development expenditures and pre-
operating expenses by MUDC in line with current accounting standards. MUDC has decided not to
proceed with its power project due to MERALCO’s unwillingness to enter into a revised Power
Purchase Agreement and due to the withdrawal of its foreign partner, GPU. In addition, MCHC has
almost fully provided for its receivables due from MUDC. In 2008, in the Registrant’s Consolidated
Financial Statements, receivables due to MCHC’s subsidiary, Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc.,
were also fully provisioned. Thus, the Registrant’s remaining exposure to the MUDC project is
minimal (about P2.1 million) at the end of 2015.

(b) Real Estate Holding and Development Companies
Until July 2011, MCHC owned 100% interest in Batangas Agro-Industrial Development Corporation
(“BAID”).

BAID has the following wholly-owned subsidiaries which together with BAID own 50 hectares of
land fronting Batangas Bay in Pinamucan, Batangas:
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1) Fruit of the East, Inc.;

2) United Philippines Qil Trading, Inc.;

3) Hometel Integrated Management Corporation;

4) King Leader Philippines, Inc.;

5) Samar Commodities & Industrial Corporation; and
6) Tropical Aqua Resources, Inc.

In July 2011, MCHC sold all its shares in BAID to J.G. Summit Holdings, Inc. for a total
consideration of 1.04 billion.

(c) Principal Products and Services of Pointwest Technologies Corporation (“PTC”)

PTC is a global service company offering outsourced IT services from the Philippines. It is led by
an experienced management team that helped pioneer offshore outsourcing in the Philippines. The
Registrant is a founding shareholder of PTC and owns 30% of its equity. Among others, PTC offers
software servicing, maintenance, testing, and development to various clients mostly in the United
States. It started operations in 2003 and PTC’s consolidated revenue in 2018 reached over Twenty
One Million US Dollars (US$ 20 Million).

(d) Principal Products and Services of Business Process Outsourcing International, Inc.
(“BPOI”)

BPOI is a provider of finance and accounting services such as payroll services, internal audit,
payables processing and other accounting based services. It has a total of above 400 employees
servicing many of the large multinationals operating in the country. BPOI was spun off from the
BPO department of SGV & Co, the biggest auditing firm in the country. The Registrant is a major
shareholder of BPOI with a 35% ownership stake. BPOI’s revenues in 2018 exceeded P405 million
and it has above 400 accountants and support staff.

Competition

Pointwest Technologies Corporation and BPOI face competition from other providers of software
and business process outsourcing services both in the country and abroad. Outsourcing is a
competitive industry and being competitive requires ability to provide quality and reliable service
and ability to control costs so that operating margins are maintained at viable levels.

Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties

The Registrant’s subsidiary, MCHC and certain of MCHC'’s subsidiaries and affiliates as well as
Registrant’s affiliate, BPOI have transactions with each other such as rental contracts and
intercompany loans. These transactions are on arms-length basis and, in the case of partially
owned affiliates, are subject to approval of unrelated shareholders of these affiliates. In the case of
rental contracts, the rental rates charged are similar to those charged to outside parties leasing
similar properties.

Patents, Trademarks, Copyrights, Etc.

As previously stated, other than for MUDC’s power supply agreement with MERALCO and
Memorandum of Understanding with SPEX, there are no patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises,
concessions, royalty agreements or labor contracts and the like, owned by or pertaining to the
Registrant and its subsidiary, MCHC.
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Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

Since MUDC has decided not to pursue its power project, there is no anticipated need to comply
with any environmental regulations. The other affiliates which are involved in the outsourcing
industry which mainly involve the use of computer and other office equipment are expected to have
negligible environmental impact.

Employees

The Registrant has three (3) full time employees, one (1) each for accounting, clerical, and
administrative and one (1) consultant, not including the employees and consultants retained by the
Registrant’s subsidiary and affiliates. The Registrant’s employees are not subject to any Collective
Bargaining Agreements (CBA), nor are they involved in or have threatened to strike for the past
three (3) years. Aside from the mandatory 13" month pay and additional 14™ month pay and
service incentive leaves (vacation and sick) benefits and retirement benefits mandated by R.A.
7641, there are no other benefits that are granted by the Registrant to its employees. The
Registrant does not anticipate the need to hire additional employees within the ensuing twelve (12)
months.

Risk of the Business of the Registrant and Subsidiaries

1. Pointwest Technologies Corporation (PTC)

PTC would face the normal risks faced by an IT services company serving mostly foreign clients.
These risks include: 1) the risk that PTC may not find or retain clients; 2) some contracts are on
non-recurring basis and may not be renewed; 3) risk of contract dispute in case of customer
dissatisfaction with the services provided; 4) risk of non-collection of receivables due to contract
dispute or to financial problems of customers; 5) high staff turnover which may affect service
quality; 6) ability to recruit and retain qualified IT professionals; (7) change in foreign exchange
rates that may affect the operating margin of its businesses.

2. Business Process Outsourcing International, Inc. (“BPOI”)

BPO would face the normal risks faced by a BPO company which are very similar to the risks faced
by an IT services outsourcing company such as PTC. BPOI currently services only domestic
clients but intends to develop its foreign business. The risks BPOI takes include: 1) the risk that
BPOI may not find or retain clients; 2) some contracts are on non-recurring basis and may not be
renewed; 3) risk of contract dispute in case of customer dissatisfaction with the services provided;
4) risk of non-collection of receivables due to contract dispute or to financial problems of customers;
5) high staff turnover which may affect service quality; 6) ability to recruit and retain qualified
accounting and finance professionals.

3. Portfolio Investments

The Registrant and its subsidiaries and affiliates also invest their excess cash in bonds, stocks and
short-term placements. These involve government securities as well as corporate bond and stock
investments which face the normal commercial risks such as price declines, payment defaults and
foreign exchange risks in the case of foreign currency denominated investments.

Other Interests

MCHC also has a 100% interest in a mining company, Malabrigo Corporation (“Malabrigo”).
Malabrigo has a paid-up capital of P10,000,000.00 and limestone mining claims in Batangas, which
are not considered significant in potential. It has also invested as a partner in a shopping center
project in the United States.
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The Registrant and Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc. (PIEI) have also invested in Aslan
Pharmaceuticals Limited (Aslan), a biotech company focused on development of immunotherapies
and targeted agents for Asia prevalent tumor types. The Registrant owns 936,000 shares while
PIEI owns 1,497,388 shares of Aslan. Aslan’s shares was listed in the Taipei Exchange on June 1,
2017 and its ADR ‘s were listed in NASDAQ in May of last year.

Other than MUDC’s power supply agreement with MERALCO and Memorandum of Understanding
with SPEX, there are no patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises, concessions, royalty
agreements or labor contracts and the like owned by or pertaining to the Registrant and its
subsidiary, MCHC. Also, no substantial expenditures have been made for research and
development activities for the past three (3) years.

PROPERTIES

Equity Interests. The Registrant’ investment in MCHC, consists of shares of common stock with
aggregate issued value representing approximately 94.37% of the outstanding shares of MCHC.

MCHC owns 70,458 shares of common stock, representing approximately 43% of the outstanding
capital stock of MUDC. MUDC was set up to develop a 320 MW power plant project in Pinamucan,
Batangas which has now been aborted. MCHC’s exposure to MUDC has been fully provided for in
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MCHC also has equity interests in Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc. (100%-owned) and Malabrigo
(100%-owned). MCHC also owns 100% of Magellan Capital Trading Corporation; Magellan Capital
Realty Development Corporation, two inactive shell companies.

The Registrant owns common shares in Pointwest Technologies Corporation which represent a
30% ownership interest in the company. The Registrant also owns shares of BPOI equivalent to
35% ownership interest in BPOL.

Real Estate. The Registrant has no real estate holdings except through its subsidiary, MCHC.
(a) Condominium Units

MCHC owns five (5) office condominium units which comprise the entire 5" Floor of the Citibank
Center building, located at 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City, including five (5) appurtenant
parking units, per a Deed of Sale executed on 26 April 2000. Three of the five units are being
leased out and two units are used as the corporate offices of the Registrant and its subsidiaries.
MCHC also owns an office condominium unit on the 25™ Floor and two condominium units on the
16" Floor of the Citibank Tower Building in Makati (acquired in December 2014) and ten parking
slots which are being leased out at prevailing commercial rates. MCHC also acquired in early 2017
one whole floor of the JMT Condominium Building in Ortigas Center. In 2018, MCHC has also
acquired three condominium units in Two Roxas Triangle which is expected to be completed in
2019.

(b) Office Properties

MCHC, the Registrant’s wholly-owned subsidiary, has relocated its corporate offices to its Citicenter
Property which consists of the entire 5™ Floor of the Citibank Center Building in Makati. The
Registrant, as principal shareholder of MCHC, has been allocated office space by MCHC. MCHC
has also leased out the four (4) remaining units. One of the units has been leased by Business
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Process Outsourcing International (BPOI) since February 16, 2009. Three other units are leased to
other lessees.

(c) Land/Property Ownership

MCHC has acquired a 985 m2 lot in Fort Bonifacio which it plans to develop into an office building
for lease. MCHC acquired, at the end of 2014, two additional condominium office units in Citibank
Tower which are currently leased out. At the end of 2016, MCHC also acquired one floor of office
condo units in the JMT Condominium Building which are also currently leased out. As of 31
December 2018, the above land and properties are not subject to any mortgages, liens or
encumbrances.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the past six (6) years up to the present, there are no proceedings involving, and to the best of
knowledge, threatened against the Registrant. As of 15 April 2018, none of the current directors, or
nominees for election as director, executive officer, underwriter or control person of the Registrant has
been involved in or in the subject of any bankruptcy petition, conviction by final judgment, or is the subject
of any order judgment or decree, or involved in any violation of a securities of commodities law.

However, with respect to its subsidiaries, following is a summary of pending litigation involving them:

(a) “Rolando M. Zosa v. Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation and Magellan Capital
Management Corporation”, Civil Case No. CEB-18619, Regional Trial Court of Cebu City, Branch
58; Magellan Capital Management Corporation and Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation v.
Rolando M. Zosa, et al.” G.R. No. 129916, Supreme Court; Ad Hoc Arbitration with an Arbitral
Tribunal composed of Justice Florentino P. Feliciano, as Chairman and Attys. Ramon R. Torralba
and Enrique I. Quiason as members; Regional Trial Court, Branch 139, SP Proc. No. M-6259 and
SP Proc. No. 6264, Court of Appeals, CA GR. SP-144096,CA GR SP NO. 144162.

This is a case for damages instituted in May 1996, wherein complainant Zosa seeks to enforce his
purported rights under his Employment Agreement with defendants and claims entitlement to the
following reliefs, to wit:

(1) actual damages in the amount of P10,000,000;
(2) attorney’s fees in the amount of 300,000; and
(3) expenses of litigation in the amount of P150,000.

Defendants sought a dismissal of the case, invoking the provision of arbitration in the Employment
Contract. In a Decision dated 18 July 1997, the trial court declared invalid the arbitration clause
providing for the manner by which the arbitrators will be chosen and substituted the provisions of
the Arbitration Law therefore. The Supreme Court, on 26 March 2001 affirmed the trial court’s
decision which became final and executory. Arbitrators were appointed one by Zosa, on the one
hand, and the other jointly appointed by MCHC and MCMC and a third jointly chosen by the two
arbitrators.

In November 2004, the Arbitral Tribunal was constituted composed of Justice Florentino P.
Feliciano as Chairman and Attys. Ramon R. Torralba and Enrique I. Quiason as members.
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On 06 March 2005, the Tribunal rendered its decision awarding Zosa'’s claim for severance pay but
disallowed his claims for attorney’s fees and moral and exemplary damages and costs of suit.

On 12 April 2006, MCHC filed with the Regional Trial Court of Makati City, a verified petition with
prayer for the issuance of an Order to Vacate the Arbitral Award, dated 6 March 2006, pursuant to
Sections 22 to 29 of Republic Act No. 876 (“The Arbitration Law”) and the relevant provisions of
Republic Act No. 9825 (the “Alternative Dispute Resolution Act of 2004). Likewise, Zosa filed his
Application for Confirmation of Award on 12 April 2006. The two cases were consolidated and are
presently pending with Branch 139 of the Regional Trial Court of Makati as Sp. Proc. No. M-6259
and M-6264. The parties are presently awaiting the Court’s resolution on the issue of whether the
Application for Confirmation of Award was seasonably filed considering the non-payment of docket
fees at the time of filing. On 17 March 2009, a hearing was held whereby the Court directed all the
parties to submit their respective Memoranda. In compliance with the aforesaid order, MCHC
submitted its Memoranda on 17 May 2009. The case was submitted for resolution on 29 January
2013.

On 29 June 2015, the Court rendered its decision confirming the arbitral award directing MCHC
solidarily with MCMC to pay Zosa's severance compensation in the amount of P14,669,691.43.
MCHC filed its Motion for Reconsideration on 23 July 2015 which was denied in an Order dated 7
January 2016. On 9 February 2016, MCHC filed with the Court of Appeals its Petition for Review of
the Decision of the Regional Trial Court. MCMC likewise filed its appeal with the said appellate
court. The case is now pending with the Court of Appeals. In a Resolution dated 24 November
2017, the Court of Appeals informed the parties that the pending incidents are submitted for
resolution and the petitions submitted for Decision. On 14 May 2019, MCHC submitted to Court of
Appeals the Bond required in its Resolution of 12 April 2019.

(b) “People of the Philippines vs. Ariel Balatbat”, Criminal Case No. 115515, Regional
Trial Court of Pasig City, Branch 155. MCHC filed a complaint, through its authorized officer,
against Ariel Balatbat for qualified theft relating to several unauthorized withdrawals of, and
anomalous transactions involving, company funds in the total amount P41,021.50 (converted to
US$1,000.00). On 29 October 2004, the Court rendered its decision finding the accused guilty
beyond reasonable doubt of the crime of qualified theft under Article 310 of the Revised Penal
Code and imposed the corresponding penalty of imprisonment of 10 years minimum to a maximum
of 14 years. The Decision of the Regional Trial Court was appealed to the Court of Appeals. In a
Decision rendered in February 2018, the Court of Appeals reversed the conviction of the accused.
As of this writing, MCHC, decided not to appeal the aforesaid Decision of the Court of Appeals for
humanitarian reasons, and because the accused had already spent some time in incarceration.

“People of the Philippines vs. Ariel Balatbat”, Criminal Case No. 114955, Regional Trial Court
of Pasig City, Branch 151. MUDC, through its authorized officer, has also filed a complaint against
Ariel Balatbat for qualified theft relating to several unauthorized withdrawals of, and anomalous
transactions involving, company funds in the total amount of P121,500.00 (equivalent to
US$3,000.00), US$4,000.00, and US$1,020.00. Said amounts were never recovered or accounted
for. The case is currently pending before the Regional Trial Court, which also issued a warrant of
arrest for the same. The bail was set for P40,000.00. The accused was arrested and subsequently
arraigned. Three (3) witnesses have been presented - two (2) from the bank and one (1) from
MUDC.

On 28 February 2005, the Prosecution filed its “Formal Offer of Evidence”. Defense rested its case
on 4 December 2006. On 22 January 2007, the Prosecution presented its rebuttal evidence. The
Memorandum for the Prosecution having been filed, the case was submitted for decision. As of this
writing or on April 29, 2013 the Court rendered its decision finding the accused guilty of the crime of
qualified theft and sentenced the accused to reclusion perpetua. It also ordered the restitution to
MUDC of the amount of $4,000.00 or its peso equivalent R105,720.00 Pesos. The Court found no
liability for the amount of $3,000.00 withdrawn it appearing that same was credited to private
complainant. On appeal, the Court of Appeals, in a Decision dated 28 February 2017, reversed and
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d)

e)

f)

set aside the Decision of the Regional Trial Court, dated 15 February 2013. As of this writing,
MCHGC, for humanitarian reasons, and the fact that the accused had already spent some time in
incarceration, decided not to appeal the aforesaid Decision of the Court of Appeals.

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation vs. Spouses Mario and Preciosa Roino, Civil Case No.
066, Regional Trial Court, Taguig City, Branch 153. This is a case, filed in 2016, for Injunction,
with application for TRO and Writ of Injunction, against Spouses Mario and Preciosa Rofio, the
Taguig Register of Deeds, the Securities and Exchange Commission, Bureau of Internal Revenue,
Taguig District to prevent the use of falsified documents including a fake Deed of Sale, fake
General Information Sheet (GIS) and fake certificate of title, to transfer MCHC's property in Fort
Bonifacio in favor of the Spouses Rofo. This is in relation to the ongoing attempt by certain
individuals to cause the transfer of title over MCHC’s 985 square meter lot at Bonifacio Global City
(“BGC”) in their favor using falsified and spurious documents. The Regional Trial Court granted the
preliminary injunction on 24 August 2016. The case is pending resolution on the grant of a
permanent injunction. In an order dated 3 July 2017, the RTC referred the case for mediation
proceedings which are ongoing as of this writing. On 15 March 2018, the Court deemed as
submitted for resolution the Motion to declare defendants in default.

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation represented by Mr. Robert Y. Cokeng vs. Spouses
Mario and Preciosa Rofo et al, XV-16-INQ-16F-00541, Office of the City Prosecutor of
Taguig; People of the Philippines vs. Marion S. Roio, Criminal Case No. 17-28768,
Metropolitan Trial Court of Taguig City, Branch 115; People of the Philippines vs. Mario S.
Rono, Criminal Case No. 17-28769, Metropolitan Trial Court of Taguig City, Branch 115;
People of the Philippines vs. Mario S. Roino and Preciosa Rono, Criminal Case No. 17-28771,
Metropolitan Trial Court of Taguig City, Branch 115;People of the Philippines vs. Mario Rofio
and Preciosa Rofio, Criminal Case no. 17-28770, Metropolitan Trial Court of Taguig City,
Branch 116. These criminal cases for Falsification under Article 171 in relation to Article 172 of the
Revised Penal Code, were filed against the named individuals in connection with Civil Case No.
066. The Prosecutor in XV-16-INQ-16F-00541, found probable cause against the respondents and
the corresponding Information was filed with the Metropolitan Trial Court. A Warrant of Arrest
against the respondents was issued on 10 February 2017 and Arraignment was scheduled last 23
March 2017. On 12 May the MTC dismissed the accused’s Omnibus Motion (1) to Quash for failure
to state an offense (2) issue Bill of Particulars and (3) suspend proceedings in view of the pendency
of accused’s Petition for Review with the Department of Justice (DOJ) and (4) Suspend
Arraignment. Arraignment was scheduled to be held on 15 May 2017. In an Order dated 22 May
2017, the RTC reset the arraignment to 14 August 2017. On 2 June 2017 the Department of
Justice (DOJ) dismissed the petition for Review filed by the accused Spouses Rono. The accused
was arraigned on 14 August 2017. Thereafter, the parties were referred to mediation and Judicial
Dispute Resolution. No settlement was reached. The case was re-raffled to Branch 74 and
scheduled for Preliminary Conference on 27 February 2019. The hearing dates for presentation of
prosecution evidence are on 11 April, 9 May, 13 June, 29 July, 29 August, 23 September, 21
October, 18 November and 12 December 2019, all at 8:30 a.m.

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation, represented by Mr. Robert Y. Cokeng vs. Spouses
Mario and Preciosa Roino, Pedro S. Villaflor, John Doe and Jane Doe, IS No. XV-13-INV-16-J-
02050, Office of the City Prosecutor of Pasay City, Department of Justice. In relation to the
aforementioned cases, this case was filed against the respondents for violation of Article 172 in
relation Article 171 of the revised Penal Code (Use of Falsified documents). The falsified
documents were used to open an account in Maybank, Villamor Base branch, Pasay City. In a
Resolution dated 5 January 2017, the City Prosecutor dismissed MCHC’s complaint. In Resolution
dated 29 November 2017, the Motion for Reconsideration filed by MCHC was denied.

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation vs. Spouses Mario and Preciosa Roio, IS No.
XV-03-INV-16J-10508, Office of the City Prosecutor of Quezon City, Department of
Justice. In relation to the aforementioned cases, this case was filed against the respondents for
violation of Article 172 in relation to Article 171 (2) of the Revised Penal Code. The falsified
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documents appear as having been executed and notarized in Quezon City. Ina Resolution
dated 19 March 2018 which was received on 18 April 2018, the City Prosecutor’s office
dismissed the complaint against respondents. MCHC filed its Motion for
Reconsideration of the aforesaid Resolution on 03 May 2018. As of this writing the said Motion
is still pending resolution.

Robert Y. Cokeng (for and in behalf of Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation) vs. Maybank
Philippines, Inc. Dato Dr. Tan Tat Wai, Herminio M. Famatigan Jr., Jonathan P. Ong, Jose A.
Morales lll and Milandro C. Urbano, OSI-AC-No. 2016-032, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas,
Office of the Special Investigation; Robert Y. Cokeng (for and in behalf of Magellan Capital
Holdings Corporation) v. Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, Fabian S. Dee, Alfredo V.
Ty, Arthur Ty, Francis Cua, Trixia C. Tan, Joyce P. Pareno and Grance C. Buenavista, OSI-
AC_No. 2016-029, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, Office of Special Investigation. These cases
were filed with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas against two banks, Maybank and Metro Bank in
connection with their participation in the aforementioned cases. In OSI-AC-N0.2016-032, the BSP,
in a Resolution, dated 21 November 2016, referred the case against Maybank to the Financial
Consumer Protection Department (FCPD), Supervision and Examination Sector of the BSP. In a
letter dated 02 February 2017, the FCPD informed MCHC that it in turn referred the matter to the
attention of BSP departments exercising supervisory authority over banks. The Office of Special
Investigation, in the meantime, continued to hear the administrative complaint against the
respondents Dato Dr Tan Tat Wai, Herminio Famatigan, Jonathan P. Ong et al. In a Resolution
dated 03 October 2017, the BSP Office of Special Investigation dismissed the administrative
complaint against the said respondents. In a Resolution dated 09 January 2017, the BSP denied
MCHC’s Motion for Partial Reconsideration. With respect to OSI-AC No. 2016-029, the Office of
Special Investigation, in a Resolution dated 20 March 2018, dismissed the administrative complaint
filed by MCHC against Metro Bank and its Board of Directors.
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FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Registrant’s consolidated revenue in 2018 decreased to P62.8 million from £130.8 million in 2017.
Equity in net earnings of associates decreased from P40.9 million in 2017 to a loss of P14.0 million in
2018 as Pointwest experienced operating losses due to loss of two major accounts. Interest income
decreased from P37.4 million in 2017 to P33.1 million in 2018 as interest levels have stabilized. A net
foreign exchange gain of P31.6 million was recorded in 2018 versus P7.8 million in 2017 as the Peso
continued to decline against foreign currencies which benefitted the foreign exchange denominated
bonds and other securities hold by the Registrant and its subsidiary. Rent increased from P20.8 million in
2017 to P23.2 million in 2018 due to escalation of rental rates and the leasing out of additional
condominium units acquired in 2016 and 2017. Loss on disposal of AFS, HTM and FVPL Financial
Assets of P1.3 million was recorded in 2018 against a gain of P3.8 million in 2017. Dividend income
increased from P2.4 million in 2017 to £3.7 million in 2018. Fair value loss on Financial Assets at FVPL
was P14.2 million in 2018 compared to a gain of P17.4 million in 2017.

Total consolidated expenses of the Registrant slightly increased to P41.9 million in 2018 compared to
£40.1 million in 2017 due to higher taxes and licenses related to the acquisition of additional investment
property and higher other expenses.

As a result of the above, total consolidated income before tax in 2018 totaled P21.0 million compared to
£90.8 million in 2017. After provision for income tax, total consolidated net income after tax totaled P13.1
million in 2018 compared to P79.4 million in 2017.

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest, namely minority shareholders of Magellan Capital
Holdings Corporation, totaled P1.0 million in 2018 compared to P1.7 million in 2017.

The Registrant’s financial position is very strong as it has substantial cash resources available to
undertake its planned projects. As of December 31, 2018, the Registrant’s consolidated cash and cash
equivalent totaled over P571.4 million which was lower than the level of P753.6 million as of December
31, 2017 due to additional investment in properties and additional investment in financial assets. The
Registrant and its subsidiary is planning to undertake development of MCHC’s land in Fort Bonifacio into
an office building as well as to acquire income producing properties as well as additional land for
development. The Registrant and its subsidiary are debt free with total consolidated liabilities of £P39.8
million at year-end 2018 compared to P56.4 million at year-end 2017. Total equity amounted to P1.9
billion as of the end of 2018 compared to P2.0 billion at year-end 2017.

The Registrant and its subsidiary and affiliates are substantially debt free except for MUDC which has
loans and advances from its principal shareholders. The Registrant and its subsidiaries have more than
enough cash resources to meet any expected requirements in the next twelve months. Consolidated
cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2018 totaled P571.4 million compared to P753.6 million at the
end of 2017 while total current assets totaled P841.8 million at year-end 2018 compared to P986.4 billion
at year-end 2017. Other than the normal fluctuation of the Peso exchange rate as well as the effect of the
normal market fluctuations on the value of stock and bond holdings owned by the Registrant and its
subsidiary, the Registrant is not aware of any trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in its liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material
way. Likewise, the Registrant does not know of any trends, events or uncertainties that have or that are
reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the revenues or income from
continuing operations.
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Top Five (5) Key Performance Indicators

The top five (5) performance indicators for the Registrant are as follows:

(2) Revenue Generation
(2) Change in net income
(3) Earnings per share

(4) Current ratio
(5) Book value per share

Revenue Generation. Revenue in the last three fiscal years are summarized below along with vertical
percentage analysis:

PER- PER-
(R000) YEAR |CENTAG| YEAR PER- YEAR CENTAG
2018 E 2017 CENTAGE 2016 E

Equity in net earnings
of associates P (138,972) | (22.2%) |P 40,865 31.2% |P 72,929 | 41.2%
Interest Income 33,083 | 52.71% 37,413 28.6% 40,141 22.6%
Rent 23,167 | 36.9% 20,835 15.9% 14,028 | 18.5%
Dividend Income 3,718 5.9% 2,425 1.9% 1,906 1.1%

Fair Value Gains
(Losses) on Financial
Assets at FVPL (14,163) | (22.5%) 17,421 13.3% 9,981 5.6%
Gain (Losses) on
Disposal of AFS, HTM

and FVPL Investments (1,339) | (2.1%) 3,758 2.9% 5,379 3.0%
Net FX Gain 31,645 | 50.4% 7,974 6.1% 32,814 | 18.5%
Others 693 1.1% 137 0.1 88 0.1%
Total from

continuing operation |p 62,832 | 100.0% |P 130,828 | 100.0% |P 177,268 | 100.0%

Because it is a holding company, the Registrant traditionally derives a large part of its revenue from its
equity in net earnings of associates which in 2017 accounted for over 31% of consolidated total revenues
from continuing operations. However, 2018 saw equity in Net Losses of Associates as Pointwest
experienced losses for the first time in its operating history as it lost two major accounts. As a result,
even though BPO International registered a rise in profits it was not enough to offset the losses from
Pointwest. As a result, share in losses of Associates was P14.0 million compared to an equity in net
earnings of associates of P40.9 million in 2017. However, Pointwest has started a restructuring program
to cope with the reduced business volume as well as made efforts to secure new clients to replace the
lost accounts. Interest income also decreased slightly in 2018 to P33.1 million from P37.4 million in 2017
due to stabilizing rates of interest in the capital markets. Net Fx gain was P31.6 million in 2018 compared
to Net Fx gain of P8.0 million in 2017 as the weaker Peso benefitted the foreign exchange denominated
bonds and stock portfolio of the Registrant and its subsidiaries. In the future, we would expect rental
income to increase as the Registrant and its subsidiary increases its portfolio of income producing
properties by developing its land in Fort Bonifacio into an income producing building and by acquiring
additional income producing properties. Rental income in 2018 has exceeded £23.2 million from £20.8
million in 2017 and P14.0 million in 2016 to acquisition of additional income producing property.
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Change in net income. The summary income statements for the last three fiscal years are shown below
with vertical percentage analysis.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

(000) PERCENT PERCENT PERCENT
2018 AGE 2017 AGE 2016 AGE

Revenue P 62,832 100% | P 130,827 100% | P 177,268 100%
Expenses 41,855 66.6% 40,050 30.6% 33,174 18.7%
Net Income
Before Tax 20,977 33.3% 90,778 69.4% | 144,004 | 81.3%
Tax (7,891) | (12.5%) | (11,378) 8.7% (7,571) 4.3%
.’}‘:)t( Income After 13,086 20.8% 79,400 60.7% | 136,523 77.0%
Total Netincome |P_ 13,086 20.8% |P 79,400 60.7% |P 136,523 | 77.0%
Attributable to
Stockholders of
Registrant 12,088 19.2% 77,729 59.4% | 133,941 75.5%
Non-Controlling
Interest 998 1.6% 1,670 1.3% 2,582 1.5%

As the above shows, net income dropped sharply to P13.1 million in 2018 from P79.4 million in 2017.
The decrease in net income was mainly due to equity in net losses of associates as Pointwest
experienced operating losses for the first time due to loss of two major accounts. The net income in 2018
attributable to stockholders of the Registrant was P12.1 million while P1.0 million was attributable to non-
controlling interests, namely minority shareholders of Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation. The net
income attributable to stockholders of the Registrant in 2017 was PZ#7.7 million while P1.7 million was
attributable to non-controlling interests.

Earnings per share. The earnings per share in 2018 amounted to P0.03 per share compared to
earnings per share from continuing operations of P0.20 in 2017 and P0.35 in 2016 due to the lower
earnings resulting from losses at Pointwest. The earnings per share are adjusted to reflect the shares
held by the Registrant’s subsidiaries which are classified as treasury shares in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Current-Ratio. Current Ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) which measures the liquidity
position of the Registrant was 38 x at December 31, 2018 compared to 32.3x at the end of 2017. The
Registrant’s liquidity position is very strong and gives it substantial resources to pursue its projects.

Book value per share. The Registrant’s book value per share (excluding treasury shares owned by
subsidiaries of the Registrant) was P4.81 per share at the end of 2018 from P5.03 at year-end 2017 and
P4.85 at year-end 2016.

(i) Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or uncertainties

The Registrant and its subsidiary and affiliates are substantially debt-free, except for MUDC,
which has loans and advances from its principal shareholders. The Registrant and its
subsidiaries have more than enough cash resources to meet any expected requirements during
the next twelve (12) months. Consolidated cash and cash equivalents totaled P571.4 million at
year end 2018 compared to P753.6 million at year end 2017. Other than the normal fluctuations
of the Philippine Peso to the U.S. Dollar, the Registrant is unaware of any trends, demands,
commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in its
20 | 2018 Management Report



(2)

liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way. Likewise, the Registrant does not know of
any trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the revenues or income from continuing operations.

(i) Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the reporting period.

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION FOR THE LAST THREE (3) FISCAL YEARS

The following is a detailed discussion of the Registrant’s operations and financial condition for the
past three (3) fiscal years.

Exhibit “2” shows the audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2018 and

December 31, 2017 and audited consolidated income statements for the years 2018, 2017 and
2016. The accounts are discussed below in more detail.

OPERATING RESULTS

Revenues. In the year ended 31 December 2018, total consolidated revenues totaled P62.8
million compared to P130.8 million in 2017 and P177.3 million in 2016. The reasons for the
change have been discussed in the revenue generation section earlier in ltem 6 of this Report.

Expenses. Total consolidated operating expenses slightly increased to P41.8 million in 2018
from the P40.1 million in 2017 due to the reasons discussed earlier in this report.

Net Income Before Tax. As a result of the movement in revenues and expenses discussed in
the preceding sections, net income before tax totaled P21.0 million in 2018 compared to P90.8
million in 2017 and P144.1 million in 2016.

Provision For Income Tax. In 2018, there was a provision for income tax of P7.9 million
compared to P11.4 million in 2017 and 7.6 million in 2016.

Net Income After Tax. As a result of the provision for income tax discussed above, the
Registrant had a consolidated net income after tax of P13.1 million in 2018, from net income
after tax of R79.4 million in 2017. Net income after tax in 2016 was P136.5 million.

BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

The following comparative financial analysis is based on audited consolidated balance sheets as
of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 shown in Exhibit “2”.  Exhibit “4” shows the
vertical percentage analysis of balance sheet accounts as of December 31, 2018 and December
31, 2017. The movements in the various accounts are discussed below:
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ASSETS

Current Assets. Total current assets at year-end 2018 totaled P841.4 million compared to
P986.4 million at year-end 2017. Cash and cash equivalents decreased to P571.4 million at year
end 2018 from P753.6 million at year end 2017 due to acquisition of additional property
investments. Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL) Increased to P205.9
million at year-end 2018 from P152.7 million at year-end 2017. Current portion of FVOCI totaled
P6.9 million at year-end 2018 compared to current portion of AFS Investments at P40.8 million at
year-end 2017 from P66.8 million at year end 2016. Prepayments and other assets increased to
P£33.7 million at year-end 2018 from P18.6 million at year-end 2017.

Non-Current Assets. Total non-current assets at year-end 2018 totaled P1,116 million versus
P1,079.2 million at year-end 2017. Most of the increase was due to increase in investment
properties from P228.9 million at year end 2017 to P399.9 million at year end 2018 due to
acquisition of additional investment property.

Total Assets. As a result of the movement in the accounts described above, total consolidated
assets of the Registrant at year-end 2018 totaled P1,957.4 million compared to P2,065.7 million
at year-end 2017.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities. Current liabilities decreased to P22.2 million at year-end 2018 from R30.5
million at year-end 2017 mainly due to decrease in income tax payable.

Non-Current Liabilities. Non-current liabilities decreased to P17.7 million at year-end 2018 from
P25.9 million at year-end 2017 due mainly to decrease in deferred income tax liability.

Stockholder’s Equity. Total Stockholder’s Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Registrant
decreased to P1,844.7 million at year-end 2018 from P1,935.3 million at year end 2017. This
was due mainly to the net comprehensive loss in 2018 attributable to equity holders of the
Registrant of P13.1 million and dividends paid out during the year. Equity attributable to minority
shareholders of MCHC totaled P72.9 million at year end 2018 compared to 274.0 million at year-
end 2017 due to the share of minority shareholders of MCHC in the comprehensive net loss of
0.7 million in 2018. As a result, total stockholders equity at year-end 2018 stood at P1,917.5
million compared to P2,009.3 million at year-end 2017.
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FIRST QUARTER 2019 REPORT

The following is a detailed discussion of the Registrant’s operations and financial condition during the first
quarter of 2019 and first quarter of 2018.
Operating Results

Breakdown of Revenue for the Three Month Periods Ending March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 with
Vertical and Horizontal Percentage Analysis is shown below:

VERTICAL VERTICAL INCREASE INCREASE
FIRST PERCENTAGE FIRST PERCENTAGE | (DECREASE) | (DECREASE)
(PO00) QUARTER ANALYSIS QUARTER ANALYSIS AMOUNT | PERCENTAGE
March 31, March 31, 2019 March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2018 30, 2018 2019 2019
INTEREST INCOME
From Banks P 3,550 9.0% |P 2,217 10.5% | P 1,333 60.1%
From Securities 4,109 10.4% 5,379 25.5% (1,240) (23.1%)
TOTAL 7,659 19.4% 7,596 36.0% 63 0.8%
Dividend Income 392 1.0% 197 0.9% 195 99.1%
Rent Income 6,184 15.7% 5,777 27.4% 407 7.0%
Unrealized Gain on
Trading Securities 21,613 55.0% 7,051 33.5% 14,617 207.3%
Gains on Disposal of
Financial Assets 740 1.9% - - 740 -
Net Unrealized FX Gain
2,763 7.0% 435 2.1% 2,328 535%
Other Income
78 0.2% - - 78 -
TOTAL P 39,429 100% | P 21,056 100% ([P 18,373 87.25%

Revenues. Consolidated Revenues, during the 3 month period ended March 31, 2019, totaled P39.4
million compared to P21.1 million during the same 3 month period in 2018. The higher unrealized gain on
trading securities, higher unrealized FX gain, higher rental income and higher dividend income accounted
for the bulk of the increase.

Expenses. Consolidated General and Administrative Expenses in the first quarter of 2019 totaled P8.9
million compared to P11.6 million in the first quarter of 2018. Lower taxes and licenses accounted for
most of the decrease.

Operating Income. As a result of the factors discussed above, consolidated operating income in first
quarter 2019 totaled £30.5 million compared to 9.5 million net income in the same period of 2018.

Net Income. Net income totaled P30.5 million during the first quarter of 2019 compared to net income
of P9.5 million in the first quarter of 2018. The net income in the first quarter of 2019 attributable to
shareholders of the Company totaled P29.1 million while P1.4 million in net income was attributable to
minority shareholders in the company’s majority owned subsidiary Magellan Capital Holdings
Corporation. In the first quarter of 2018, P9.0 million net income was attributable to shareholders of the
company and P467,225 was attributable to minority shareholders in the Registrant’s subsidiary.
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BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Annex “F” shows the Vertical and Horizontal Percentage Analysis of Balance Sheet Account for March
31, 2019 compared to December 31, 2018.

ASSETS

Current Assets. Consolidated current assets as of March 31, 2019 totaled P914.0 million compared to
P841.4 million as of December 31, 2018. Most of the increase was due to increase in cash and cash
equivalents and increase in input tax.

Receivables from Related Parties. This account was nil at March 31, 2019, the same level as at year-
end 2018.

Investments in Associates. This account which consists of investment in Pointwest Technologies
Corporation and BPO International, Inc. remained unchanged from year-end 2018 to March 31, 2019 at
£283.5 million.

Financial Assets at FVOCI — Net of Current Portion. This account which consists mostly of corporate
bonds and listed equities totaled P391.7 million as of March 31, 2019 from P422.9 million at year-end
2018.

Property and Equipment. This account totaled P8.5 million as of March 31, 2019 compared to £8.9
million as of December 31, 2018 due to allowance for depreciation.

Investment in Property. This account totaled to P397.9 million as of March 31, 2019 from P399.9
million at year-end 2018 due to additional allowance for depreciation.

Other Non-Current Assets. This account totaled 20.7 million as of March 31, 2019, the same level as
at year-end 2018.

Total Assets. As a result of the foregoing, total assets increased to P1,996.1 million as of March 31,
2019 from RP1,957.4 million as of December 31, 2018.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities. Current liabilities was at P23.9 million as of March 31, 2019 compared to P22.2
million at year-end 2018 due to higher deposit payable and higher accrued expenses.

Non-Current Liabilities. Non-current liabilities which consists mostly of retirement benefit obligation and
deferred income tax liabilities was stable at P17.7 million as of March 31, 2019 the same level as at year-
end 2018. The accrual of additional retirement benefit obligation is taken up at year-end based on
actuarial studies commissioned at that time.

Stockholder’s Equity. Total stockholders’ equity increased to P1,954.5 million as of March 31, 2019
from P1,917.5 million at year-end 2018 due to the net income of P30.5 million generated in the first
quarter of 2019. Total equity attributable to stockholders of the company totaled P1,880.2 million at March
31, 2019 from P1,844.7 million at December 31, 2018 due to the net income of P29.1 million attributable
to stockholders of the company in the first quarter of 2019. Minority interest which represents the share of
minority shareholders of Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation was P74.3 million at March 31, 2019
compared to P72.9 million at December 31, 2018 due to their share of net income generated in the first
quarter of 2019 of P1.4 million.

24 | 2018 Management Report



Top Performance Indicators
The top five (5) performance indicators for the Registrant are as follows:

Change in revenue
Change in net income
Earnings per share
Current ratio

Book value per share

grepz

Change in Revenues. Consolidated revenues in the first quarter of 2019 and 2018 are shown in Annex
“B” and presented below in summary form:

15" Quarter- 15" Quarter-

(P000) 2019 Percentage (%) 2018 Percentage (%)
Interest Income P 7,659 19.4% |B 7,595 36.0%
Lease Rental Income 6,184 15.7% 5,777 27.4%
Dividend Income 392 1.0% 197 0.9%
Unrealized Gain on trading
securities 21,613 54.8% 7,051 33.5%
Gain on Disposal/Redemption of
Financial Assets at FVOCI 740 1.9% - -
Net Unrealized FX Gain 2,763 7.0% 435 21%
Other Income 78 0.2% - -
TOTAL INCOME P 39,429 100% (P 21,056 100%

Total revenue in the first quarter of 2019 was P39.4 million, 87% higher than the P21.1 million in the first
quarter of 2018. Higher unrealized gain on trading securities, higher unrealized FX gain, and higher
dividend and rental income accounted the bulk of the increase.

Change in Net Income. The income statement in the first quarter of 2019 and 2018 are shown in Annex
“B” and summarized below:

(P000) 15" Quarter 15" Quarter

2019 Percentage (%) 2018 Percentage (%)
Revenues P 39,429 100% | P 21,056 100%
Expenses 8,889 22.5% 11,550 54.9%
Net Income 30,540 77.5% 9,506 45.1%
Attributable to:
- Minority Interest 1,434 3.6% 467 2.2%
- Stockholders of Company 29,106 73.8% 9,039 42.9%

The Registrant realized a net income of R30.5 million in the first quarter of 2019 compared to P9.5 million
in the first quarter of 2018 due to higher revenues and lower expenses. Net income of P29.1 million was
attributable to stockholders of the company in the first quarter of 2019 compared to P9.0 million in the first
quarter of 2018.

Earnings per Share. The net income per share attributable to shareholders of the Company during the
first quarter of 2019 was P0.076 per share compared to net income per share of P0.0236 in the first
quarter of 2018 due to the higher net income generated in the first quarter of 2019.
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Current Ratio. Current ratio as of March 31, 2019 was 38.2 X compared to 38 X as of December 31,
2018.

Book Value Per Share. Book value per share as of March 31, 2019 was P4.88 per share compared to
P4.81 as of December 31, 2018.
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INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND
OTHER RELATED MATTERS

External Audit Fees and Services

a) Audit and Audit- Related Fees for the Last Three Fiscal Years

2016 2017 2018
Registrant P 260,400 | B 314,776 | P 332,640
MCHC 401,520 486,024 511,280
Subsidiaries of MCHC 40,225 40,225 40,225
MUDC 21,449 21,449 21,449

b) Tax Fees: None
c) All Other Fees: None
d) Audit Committee has approved the audit fees

Prior to the commencement of audit work, the external auditors, present their program and schedule
to the company's Audit Committee. The company's audited financial statements for the year are
presented by the external auditors to the Audit Committee for committee approval and endorsement
to the full Board for final approval. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
approved the audit fees and nomination of SGV & Co as external auditor for the year 2018.

Financial Statements

The Statement of Management’s Responsibility along with Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as
of December 31, 2018 are shown in this report.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accountings and Financial Disclosure

The Corporation has continuously engaged the services of SGV & Co. as the Corporation's External
Auditor. There has been no change in and disagreements with SGV & Co., on its accounting and financial
disclosure since their appointment in 1997.

Attendance of Accountants in the meeting

Representatives of the Corporation’s External Auditor, SGV & Co., are expected to be present at the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on July 16, 2019. Said accountants will be given the opportunity to make
a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to relevant questions on the financial
statements.

Dividends

Dividends of P0.20 per share were declared and paid in 2018. Dividends of P0.20 per share were paid in
2017.

Under the Registrant’s By-laws, there are no restrictions in the declaration of dividends other than what is
prescribed in the Corporation Code, namely that these shall be declared only from surplus profit and no
stock dividend shall be issued without the approval of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds
of all stock outstanding and entitled to vote at a general or special meeting called for the purpose. The
amount of unrestricted retained earnings available for distribution as of December 31, 2018 was
P251,207,084.00
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TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The top twenty (20) stockholders of the common equity

of the Registrant as of May 28, 2019 are as

follows:
NUMBER OF SHARES PER-

NAME OF STOCKHOLDERS CLASS A CLASS B TOTAL CENTAGE
I Essential Holdings Limited - 139,778,670 | 139,778,670 29.01%
P PCD Nominee Corporation (A Shares) 71,654,400 - 71,654,400 14.87%
B Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc. 12,424,126 37,799,126 50,224,105 10.42%
4 | Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation 47,844,022 - 47,844,022 9.92%
5 | Consolidated Tobacco Industries of the Phils., Inc. 43,052,023 - 43,052,023 8.93%
6 | Vructi Holdings Corporation 34,633,628 - 34,633,628 7.18%
7 | Center Industrial and Investment, Inc. 23,991,000 - 23,991,000 4.98%
B Robert Y. Cokeng 15,713,072 - 15,713,072 3.26%
o | Johnson Tan Gui Yee 15,371,747 - 15,371,747 3.19%
1o | Victorian Development Corporation 12,085,427 - 12,085,427 2.51%
11 | PCD Nominee Corporation (B Shares) - 11,088,581 11,088,581 2.3%
12 | Brixton Investment Corporation 2,815,000 - 2,815,000 0.58%
13 | Francisco Y. Cokeng, Jr. 2,160,000 - 2,160,000 0.45%
14 | Johnson U. Co 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 0.23%
15 | Homer U. Cokeng, Jr. 1,020,000 80,000 1,100,000 0.23%
16 | Betty C. Dy 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 0.23%
17 | Rosalinda C. Tang 1,080,000 - 1,080,000 0.22%
18 | Metro Agro Industrial Supply Corporation 523,833 270,144 793,977 0.16%
19 | Criscini Reyes 400,000 - 400,000 0.08%
po | Robert Y. Ynson 251,378 74,289 325,667 0.07%

Percentage based on the Total Issued and Outstanding Shares of 481,827,653.

Recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities, including recent issuance of

securities constituting an exempt transaction

The Registrant has not sold any securities within the past three (3) years, which were not registered
under the Securities Regulation Code, including sales of reacquired, as well as new issues, securities
issued in exchange for property, services, or other securities and new securities resulting from the

modification of outstanding securities.

Warrants

There are no warrants or options outstanding as of the end of December, 2018 and up to the present.
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DISCUSSION ON COMPLIANCE WITH
LEADING PRACTICE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In Compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 2, dated April 05, 2002, the Company submitted its
Manual on Corporate Governance on August 29, 2002 as approved by its Board of Directors in a meeting
held on August 14, 2002, which basically adopted the SEC’s Model Manual. Since the Manual’s effectivity
on January 01, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors and Management has been complying with the
principles laid down by the Code of Corporate Governance through the mechanisms which have been
institutionalized in the Manual and so far as may be relevant and appropriate to the Company’s business
as a holding company.

The Company continues to adopt measures to ensure compliance with the leading practices on good
corporate governance through, among others, the nomination and election of two independent directors,
the constitution of the different committees required by the Code such as the Nominations Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Compensation and Remuneration Committee, all of which have been performing
their functions as laid down in the Manual.

During a meeting held on March 29, 2004 the company’s Board of Directors approved the adoption as
part of the Manual, Sec. 4.2 of the PSE’s Revised Disclosure Rules, which is in consonance with Chapter
VIl of the Securities Regulation Code.

Since its effective date, there has been no deviation from the Company’s Manual of Corporate
Governance. No member of the Company’s Board of Directors or its officers and personnel has done or
caused to be done any act in violation of the principles laid down in the said Manual.

The Company continues to adhere to the principles and policies of its Manual with the view to continually
improve the company’s corporate governance.

On February 11, 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company attended and completed the Seminar on
Corporate Governance given by the UP Law Center, as required by the Rules. The company continues
to comply with the appropriate performance self-rating assessment and performance evaluation system in
compliance with pertinent SEC regulations.

On February 22, 2011, the Company submitted its Revised Manual on Corporate Governance pursuant to
SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2009.

In compliance with pertinent Rules, the Corporate Secretary of the Company attended various seminars
on the Corporate Governance — the Asean Scorecard Information Briefing held on various dates, the last
one being held last March 26, 2013 at the Institute of Corporate Directors.

On May 30, 2013, the Company submitted its Annual Corporate Governance Report pursuant to SEC
Circular No. 5, Series of 2013.

On October 20, 2014, the Company's President and Corporate Secretary attended the SEC-PSE
Corporate Governance Forum at the Makati Shangri-la Hotel.

On April 23, 2015, the Company's representatives attended the SEC Corporate Governance Workshop
on the Asean Corporation Governance Scorecard at the Crowne Plaza Manila in Ortigas.

On December 9, 2015, the members of the Board of Directors and the Corporate Secretary attended the
Advance Corporate Governance Seminar held at the New World Hotel, Esperanza Street corner Makati
Avenue, Ayala Center, Makati City.
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On April 22, 2016, The Company's Corporate Secretary attended the Business Integrity Workshop of the
Institute of Corporate Directors on "Compliance with US FCPA and the UK Bribery Act" at the Makati
Diamond Residences.

On August 25, 2016 and December 8, 2016, the members of the Board of Directors attended the
Corporate Governance Seminar held at the New World Hotel, Esperanza Street corner Makati Avenue,
Ayala Center, Makati City

On November 22, 2016, other members of the Board of Directors and the Corporate Secretary attended
the SEC-PSE Corporate Governance Forum at the 3rd Floor, Meeting Room |, PICC Complex, Pasay
City.

On September 26, 2017, members of the Board attended the Corporate Governance Seminar
“Competing Against Risk” at the Dusit Thani Hotel, Makati City. Another seminar was attended on
October 14, 2017 at the WackwackGolf & Country Club on “Risk, Opportunities, Assessment and
Management (ROAM) Inc.” The last seminar attended for the year was on 10 November 2017 at the
Makati Shangrila Hotel on “Corporate Governance: Board Effectiveness Best Practices.” The
Corresponding Certificates of Completion/Attendance for the 2017 seminars attended was submitted to
the SEC on 21 November 2017.

On February 23, 2018, the Company’s President attended the Corporate Governance Seminar held at the
3" Floor, Guajes Room of Acacia Hotel in Alabang, Muntinlupa City and conducted by SGV.

On August 29, 2018, members of the Board of Directors attended the Corporate Governance “Orientation
Program” held at the Discovery Primea, Makati City, conducted by Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD).

On August 30, 2018, members of the Board of Directors attended the Corporate Governance Seminar
held at RCBC Plaza, Ayala Avenue, Makati City, conducted by Risks, Opportunities, Assessment and
Management (ROAM), Inc. The corresponding Certificates of Completion/Attendance for August 29 and
August 30 was submitted to SEC on 04 September 2018.

On November 9, 2018, members of the Board of Directors attended the Corporate Governance Seminar
“Board Effectiveness Best Practices” held at Manila Marriott Hotel, Pasay City, conducted by Center for
Global Best Practices.

On November 21, 2018, the other members of the Board of Directors attended the Corporate Governance
Seminar “Professionalizing your Management and Board of Directors” held at PCCl BA Securities Hall,
Mckinley Hills, Taguig City, conducted by Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (PCCI). The
corresponding Certificates of Completion/Attendance for November 9 and November 21 was submitted to
SEC on 22 November 2018.

Evaluation System

The Company continues to adhere to the principles and policies of its Manual with the view to continually
improve the company’s corporate governance. It has adopted as a guideline the SEC’s Corporate
Governance Self-Rating Form (CG-SRF) in order to determine the Company’s compliance with the
leading practices on Corporate Governance.

Plan to Improve

The Company continues to take efforts to be abreast with development and trends on Corporate
Governance as the same may emerge.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following are the directors and executive officers of the Registrant, with the past and present
positions held by them in the Registrant’s subsidiaries and other companies for the past five (5) years:

ROBERT Y. COKENG, 67 years old, Filipino citizen.
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 for a one-year term. Director and Officer since 1996.

President & Chief Executive Officer, Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation, Magellan Utilities
Development Corporation, Pinamucan Power Corporation, Malabrigo Corporation, Consolidated Tobacco
Industries of the Philippines, Inc. and Center Industrial and Investment, Inc.; Independent Director, Cosco
Capital, Inc. (PSE listed company); Chairman, Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc.; Managing Director,
Essential Holdings Ltd.; Chairman, Pointwest Technologies Corporation and Pointwest Innovations
Corporation;, Director and Chairman of the Executive Committee, Business Process Outsourcing
International, Inc.; Chairman, IPADS Developers, Inc.

Bachelor of Arts (Economics Honor Program), Magna Cum Laude, Ateneo University, Master in Business
Administration (with High Distinction and elected Baker Scholar), Harvard University.

FRANCISCO Y. COKENG, JR., 65 years old, Filipino citizen.

Vice-Chairman and Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director since 1996.

Also director from 1980-1991.

Director, Consolidated Tobacco Industries of the Philippines, Inc., Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation;
Chairman, Sunflare Horizon International, Inc.

AB Economics, Boston University

JOHNSON U. CO, 66 years old, Filipino citizen.

Vice-President for Administration and Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 for a one-year term. Director and Treasurer since 1996.

President, Pinamucan Industrial Estates, Inc., Sunflare Horizon International, Inc.; Vice-President for
Administration and Director, Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation; Treasurer, Magellan Utilities
Development Corporation and Malabrigo Corporation; Director, Pinamucan Power Corporation; Vice

Chairman, Consolidated Tobacco Industries of the Philippines, Inc.

BS, Mechanical Engineering, University of Sto. Tomas.
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MARK RYAN K. COKENG, 33 years old, Filipino citizen.
Treasurer and Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director and Treasurer since 2013.

Treasurer and Director, Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation; Director and Treasurer, Magellan Capital
Corporation; Director, IPADS Developers, Inc.; Director, Pointwest Technologies Corporation, Director,
Pointwest Innovations Corporation, Director and Treasurer, Business Process Outsourcing International,
Inc.

Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Statistics, Boston University.

CHARLIE K. CHUA, 55 years old, Filipino citizen.
Independent Director

Elected 26 July on 2018 to a one-year term.
Vice President, Highland Tractor Parts, Inc.

B.S. mechanical Engineering, University of the Philippines; Master of Science, Mechanical Engineering,
University of California, Berkley.

MARY K. COKENG, 66 years old, Filipino citizen.
Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director since 2008.

Director, Essential Holdings, Limited, Director, Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation.
Bachelor of Arts, Management, University of Sto. Tomas.

JOHNNY O. COBANKIAT, 67 years old, Filipino citizen.

Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director since 2008.

President, Ace Hardware Phils., Cobankiat Hardware, Inc. and Milwaukee Builders Center, Inc.;
Executive Vice President, Hardware Workshop; Vice Chairman, R. Nubla Securities.

BS Accounting, De La Salle University.

FRANCIS LEE CHUA, 67 years old, Filipino citizen.

Director

Re-elected 26 July on 2018 for a one-year term. Director since 2001.

General Manager, Sunny Multi Products and Land Management Inc., Midori Carpet; Corporate Secretary,
Sunflare Horizon International, Inc.

BS Management, Ateneo University.
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PETER L. KAWSEK, JR., 60 years old, Filipino Citizen
Independent Director

Elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term.

President, Apo International Marketing Corporation; Bekter Ventures Inc.; Vice President, Kawsek Inc.
Bachelor of Science in Business, De la Salle University

JOHNSON TAN GUI YEE, 72 years old, Filipino citizen.

Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director since 1997.

Chairman, Armak Tape Corporation; President & Chief Executive Officer, Armak Holdings and
Development, Inc.; President, Yarnton Traders Corporation; Director, Magellan Capital Holdings
Corporation.

B.S. Chemical Engineering and B.S. Mathematics.

RUFINO B. TIANGCO, 69 years old, Filipino citizen.

Director

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term. Director since 1997.

Chairman of the Board, R.A.V. Fishing Corporation, Marala Vitas Central Terminal & Shipyard Corp.;
President, Vructi Holdings Corporation; Trufsons Holdings Corporation, Ruvict Holdings Corporation;
Director, Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation and Magellan Utilities Development Corporation.

B.S. Mechanical Engineering, University of Sto. Tomas.

PONCIANO K. MATHAY, 59 years old, Filipino citizen.

Senior Vice President and Compliance Officer

Appointed by the Board on July 16, 2018.

President, MHM Energy Corp., Consultant, Pointwest Technologies Corp.; Formerly Vice President,
Alcorn Gold Resources.

AB Psychology, University of Washington, MS Business Management, A.D. Little (Hult) Cambridge,
Massachusetts.

FINA BERNADETTE D.C. TANTUICO, 57 years old, Filipino citizen.
Corporate Secretary

Re-elected on 26 July 2018 to a one-year term.

Legal Counsel and Corporate Secretary, F & J Prince Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries and
affiliates (2002 up to the present); Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries, Magellan
Utilities Development Corporation, Pointwest Technologies Corporation, Pointwest Innovations
Corporation, Pinamucan Industrial Estates Inc; Corporate Secretary, Philippine Telegraph & Telephone
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Co. (PT&T), Capitol Wireless Inc. (Capwire), Philippine Wireless Inc. (Pocketbell), Republic
Telecommunications Company (Retelcom), U.P. Law Alumni Foundation Inc. (UPLAF), Former Assistant
Vice-President and Corporate Secretary, United Overseas Bank Philippines (2000-2001). Former
President of the Philippine Bar Association.

Law Degree, University of the Philippines.

Term of Office. The directors of the Registrant were elected during the annual stockholders’ meeting
held on 26 July 2018. The directors have a one (1) year term of office.

The Independent Directors. The independent directors of the Registrant are Charlie K. Chua and Peter
L. Kawsek, Jr.

(2) SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

There are no other persons other than the Registrant’s executive officers who are expected to
make a significant contribution to its business.

(3) FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

Messrs. Robert Y. Cokeng and Francisco Y. Cokeng, Jr. are brothers. They are first cousins of
Johnson U. Co. Mary K. Cokeng is the spouse of Robert Y. Cokeng. Mark Ryan K. Cokeng is the
son of Robert and Mary Cokeng.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of F& J Prince Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the
statements attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors or Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

The Board of Directors or Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements including
the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

Sycip, Gorres, Velayo and Company, the independent auditors appointed by the
stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the company in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has
expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

Signed under oath by the following:

Robert Y. Coken&)/ N’ﬂ%ﬁk}ng

President/ CEO/ Chalrman Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer
_APR25 W0¥
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of ,2019,
affiants exhibiting to me their Community Tax Certificates, as follows:
Names Community Tax Cert. No. Date of Issue Place of Issue
Robert Y. Cokeng 04194261 31 January, 2019 Makati City
Mark Ryan K. Cokeng 04194262 31 January, 2019 Makati City
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INDEPENDENRT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockhalders

F & J Prince Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries
Sth Floor, Citibank Center

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati Ciry

Optnion

We have audiled the consalidated financial statemients of F & J Prince Holdings Corporation and its
subsidiaries {the Group}, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 201 8 and 2017, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes In equity and consolidated statements of cash
flaws for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to the consolidated
Tinancia] statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

[t our opinion, the accompanying censolidated financial stalements present fairly, in all malerial respects,
the cansplidated financial positien ol the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consalidated
financial performance and its consclidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audir
of the Consolidared Fingnciod Statements section of our report. 'We are independent of the Group in
eccordance with the Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
staternents in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled gur sther gthical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirernents and the Cods of Ethics. 'We baligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Maiters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professianal judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current peried. These maners were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whaole, and in forming our epinion
thereon, and we do not provide 8 separate opinion on these maners. For each matter below, our
desceription of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the duditor s Responsibifities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
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Accordingly, our audit ineluded the performance of procedures designed to respond Lo our 2ssessment of
the risks of malerial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, The results of sur aodit
procedures, inciuding the procedures performed o address the matters below, provide the basis for qur
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated finencial statements.

Accounting [or Jnvestments in Associates

The Group owns 35% and 30% in Business Process Cutsourcing [nternational {BPOY and Pointwe st
Technologies Corporation (PTC}, respectively, These investments in associates are acenunted for under
the equity method. The accounting for these investments is significant 1o our audit because of the
substantial ampunt of the Groop™s investment in and its share in equity in net eamingwlosses of
associates. As of December 31, 2018, the investments in associates amounted to B283 5 million, and the
Chroup’s cquity in net losses of associates for the year then ended amounted 1o P14.0 million.

Refer to Note 9 for the discussion on the Investmants in Assagiates,
Audit Respanse

Our audit procedures included, ameng others, coordinating and instructing the statutory auditors of the
associates o parform an audit on the relevant financial information of BPO and PTC far ibe purpose of
the Group's consolidated financial statenents. Druring the year, we discussed the risk assessment, audit
strategy of the statutory auditors, as well as any significant developments in the associates. We reviewed
the working papers of the statutory auditor, focusing on the procedures that will have an impact on the net
income of the Group. We recaleulated the Group's equity in net eatnings of associates based on the
associates’ audited financial statemenis,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other infermetion. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Information $tatement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2018, bul does not include the conselidated financial statements and our
suditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), $EC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report,

Our opinien on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the ather infarmation end we do not
cxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financiai statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated,

IE AT

A mesmbar iy of Ernsl & Yowng Chobe Limted




SGV

Buidding 3 hetter
warking world

L3

Respongibilitics of Menagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Censolidated
Financial Starements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the casolidated {inancial
slatements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated Iinancial statements that are fiee from malerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror.

In préparing the consolidated financial stalements, management is responsible fur asscssing the Group's
ubility to continie as 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unkess management either intends 0 liquidate the Group or to
cedse operations, of bas no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's limancial reporting process.
Auditer’s Responsibilities far the Audit of the Consilidated Financial State ments

Our abjectives are to obiein ceasonable assurance about whether the consolidated finencial statéments as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an guditor's repart
that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is nut a guarantee that an
sudit cundueted in accordance with PSAs will always detecl a materizl misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise lrom Iraud or error and are considered material if, individually vr io the
agprepate, they could reasonubly be expected to influence ihe sconomic degizions of users taken on the
bagis of these consolidated finaneial stalements.

As part of an gudit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit,. We also:

* Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statcments,
whether due W fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive lo those risks, and
ublain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriake to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
tiat detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher (than for one resulting from error,
ay fraud may invelve coltosion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the override of
internat control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit in otder Lo design audit procedures
that zre appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the
clfectivensess of the Group's intérnal contro],

*  Fualuale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting
vitimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going cuncern bagis of accounting and,
based on the andit evidence obtained, whether 3 materal uncertainty exists related to events or
cenditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability Lo continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, wi arc required 1o draw altention in our suditor’s
repaort 10 Lhe related disclosures in the consolidated financial statetents or, if such disclosures are
madequate. w0 modify our opinien, Cur conclusions are based an the audit evidencs abtained up (o
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ihe date of our auditer’s report. However, fulure events or conditians may cause the Group 1o cease
to cantinuee as a poidp cenee,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achigves fair presentation,

¢ Obtain sulficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infirmation of the entities or
business activities within the Group 1o express an apinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
seslely responsible for our audit opinian,

W communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in int¢mal
controd that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevani
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and other
matters that may reesonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safepuards, -

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of mast significance in the audit of the conselidated financial statements of the current periad and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditer’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a metter should net be communicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of
doing s would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inrerest benefits of such communication.

The engapement partner on the audit rezulting in thiz independent auditor’s report [s
Leovina Mae V. Chu.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOD & CO.

{M‘h’lm'tﬁdw

Leovina Maz V. Chu

Pariner

CPA Cerlificale No. 99910

SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A {Group A),
Crotober 18, 2018, valid uatil October 17, 2021

Tax Idenmtification No. 208-316-911

BIR. Accreditation No. 08-001995-96-2018,
February 2, 20138, valid until Febroary 1, 2021

PTR Mo. 7332629, January 3, 2019, Makati City

April 10, 2019
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (][] APR 30,2919 —’ )

Da ol i v

1018 il
ASEETS
Current Asaots
Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 3 and 63 F571,271.026 F753,565 434

Finarcial wesers a1 fpir value through profit ar lozs (PYPLY (Notes 3 gnd Th 205,597,512 153,717 699
Beceivables {Notes 3 and §) 728231 7283 %65
Doe frem rebated paries (Noee 197 16,154,266 13460669
Currend portion of financeal asseis at fhir value dirough other comprehensive income

[FYOCT} (Moves 3 snd 107 6. 545819 -
Current poriien of avaliable-for-gale (AFS] financial assels (Mote L) - 401,784,002
Prepayments and other cutrenl assets 368,121 PR 015,930
Tata] Current Assets Bl 4032185 BEa 430 699
Noneurrent Asaets
Financial asere st FVOC] - net of cument portion (Motes 3 and 19} 421,926,585 -
AF3 Minancial assets - ngt of cutrent porion (Nate 10) - 480587 605
Investments in assogiates (Mote 9 253,463,312 JM0213.481
Property and equipment (Mate 12 2927081 10957118
vislment properties Myote 13) 309,897 554 226932118
ther nomeurrent assets (Hate 14) 743,580 8570300
Totel Monturrent Asseis 1,115 958.11% 1,075 240 850
TOTAL ASRETS £1,957.1461,137 ¥2.06567] 349
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Apvcounts payeble and accrued expenses {(Wole 15) A10,112,238 11,003,597
Dwvidends pavable (Mote 18) 51380121 0,536 554
Income tax payahle 1,902 4246 T.873.134
Provision for legal obligation (Note 22} 5,001, 010G 5,000 04
Tutal Current Liabillties 221,153,565 J05ES 2RT
Mancurrent Lisbilities
Reticanent benefit obligation (Mote 16) 1285720 12,074,212
Deferred income tax |iabilities - tet (Wote 1Ty 4,730 375 13,795, 478
Tolal Noncurrent Liskilities 17 65K, 104 25,871 650
Total Liahilithes 39.811,98% 56,288 977
Equity
Comen stock (Mote 18) 481,827,653 481,827,651
Additienal paid-in caphal 144,759,277 144, 359,977
Treasury shares (Note 18) {101, 777.276) (100,945,958)
Mel unrgalized veluation geins on financial asscts at FYOCT (Wotes 3 and L) 17432, 186 -
Met unrcalized valuation gains on AFS financial assets (Note 10} - 63,066,458
Actuarial Josses on retirement benafit oblipation (Note 16) (16,121 (92681
Accutiulated skare in other comprehensive income of pssociates [Wore #) T 34371 E0AT75, 88T
Rerained camings (Note 18) 1,230.824,652  1,297.004,751
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 1 844,655,482 1,915,294 827
Noocontralling Tnterests 72853 566 TI.987 545
Total Equliy 1,917,549 345 2009282 172
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ?1.95?,361.?37 B2 0e5671.349

Jre aocomparing Notes to Connalidaled Financial Statamangs,




F & JPRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

i018 2017 215
REVENUES AND INCOME
Irnteresr incorne {Motez 6, 10 and LL) B33,083,300 BIT412,711 PA0. 14 L 806
Met Foreign exchange gains 3645014 7,974,284 12814059
Renl imcame (Maotes 13 and 27) 13,167,125 210,834,230 14,028,672
I"air vahse gains (losses) oo binancia: assees ot FYTPL (Mow 7) (14,162 ,960) ET421,323 9,95, 598
Equity in net catnings (losses) of assaciales {Mate &) (13.972.20%) 40,804 501 T4.519.014
Bividend income (Notes 7 and () 3,718,041 #.4324,550 1,306,261
Gains {losses) on disposal of
Finenceal assets at Fv OO (Mot 10) [1,339,18%) - -
AFS financial assets (MNooe 107 - 1 193.712 4,292,000
Financial asseis at FYTPL [(Wae 7) - 320,922 1,087,050
HTM investments (Mole L1 - 242,352 -
Qlhers 69914 137,4%4 #8357
B3.&3 2,063 130,827 844 177,267,899
EXPT.MNSES
Personnel expenses:
Salaries and wapes 13,071,139 10,208 835 10,301,024
Retirement benefics {Nole 14) L3T9.ETT 1,309 020 1,260 714
Crher employes benefits 2,002,421 1825715 112,027
Dreprecianon Ovoles 12 and 13) 105587370 10,3124 445 &,08E.419
Taxes and Licenses 5956658 4737 864 2423485
Profescional fees 3 1%6 564 4935037 1499 T1R
Condominium dugs 2213550 2365 47% 2,047 261
Utitities LA41,164 1513613 1,037 73
Bank charpes TTTI4S T33.900 500,055
Expectad cradil logses 754,082 - -
Entattaitrmen), amusement and recreation L4178 260,431 LT EX0¥L]
Impmirment losses on receivables and due from related
partics (Motes & and 1% - 104, 1561277
Dithers 1619814 L 621,554 1,284,081
41,554,562 40049 314 33,173 968
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 20,877,501 GO TTT G 144 093,931
FROYISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
{Mote iT)
Currant 6,065,053 13,397 807 10,206,945
Dieferred 1,826,571 (2,019,454} {1,629 381
T891,624 11,378,153 1571364
NET INCOME F13,085,877 79309 773 Biin 530 567
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity holders of the parent #12,088,289 P T29.401 F113.940.%61
MNooncantradling interesls 997 588 1,670,372 2,582 004
13085577 B74 399,773 P34 522 56T
Daste/Diluted Earnings Per Share for Net Income
Actributatle to Equity Helders of the Parent Company
Mol 2T PO.03 B.20 8035

See avcompmmang Medes fo Consofidamd Financial Siaientents.
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I & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 11

s 2017 M6

NET INCONME

R13,085,4877 7939977y B[36522 567

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

frermns thar will be reclassified to prafit or loss:

Nect unrealized valuation losses on finencial assets at FYOC,
nel of tax effect {fotes 3, 1W0and 17)

Wet unrealized valuation paing on AFS financial assels, net of
tax effect {Nows 11 and T

Cumulative translation adjustment (Note 93

ftems that will rot be reclassified (o prafii or loss:

det unrealized valuation losscs on (inancial agsels at FVOC],
net of tax effect (Notes 3, 10 and 17}

Actuarial gains on retirerment benefil obligation,
net of tax effect (MNotes 14 and L7

Share in ather comprehensive incotne of associales
{Note 9)

(29,707,737} - -
- 47,422 567 1,223,233
13,757,839 (3132633 12,002,164
(19,552,306} -
369,152 377,677 1,523,795

8,210,945 25837365 28820472

(26,922.107) 73,814,346 43,360 668

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {L05%)

(R13,836,230) F153.214,119  R179.867 135

TOTAL COMPREHENSIYE INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TQ:

Equity holders of the parent

Maneontrolling interests

(P13,118.508) £1475983362 P175,188,160
(717 422y 5230047 4,504,066

(P13,836,230) P153,214,119  P179.802,335

See acemmpanying Wakes to Consolidared Financiafl Statemenis,




F & I PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016

Altributatrle to Equity Holders af the Farent Company

Acluarial Gamns
Met Unreslized (Logzzslon  Share in Other
Valuation Gans Betiremeni  Comprehensive
Comman Treasury  {Losseshon AFS Benel Incame of Retained
Stock ) .ﬂ_.dd.iti.o!!m! Shares  Financial Assels Obligation Aszociates Faniings Memcoattal ing
[Mot= 18] Paid-it Capilal Mo i) (Mot 10) {Mote 16) Mok 9 (o= 1§} Tedal Interests Tedal Eguily
Dalaness at January 1, 2016 R4RIH27,65]  P144.750977  (P9.669.477) #19.321 108 (P2A12,162)  (RI5861 151} B 2M8.904.977 R, 766860275 PI2 704578 F1,839,654 853
Nel income for the year - - - - - 133,540,563 133,940,563 2,582,004 136,522 567
Chther comprefhensive iNconte
Mel unrealized valualion gains {losses)
an chanpes in tair value ol AFS
Anancial assets - - - (E34,606) - - (634.606) 1A5T 539 1223231
Actuanal gains on retirement benelil
ob_l At - - - - 1,259,570 - - 1,259.5M 223 L2 T
Share in other comprehensive income gf
asROCiates _ — - - - 40,822,634 - 40,822 636 - 40,812 516
Tival comprehensive income For the yoar — - (634,606 1,259,576 4,822 634 133940563 175 388,155 4504066 (73802215
Mividends declared - P20 per share - - - — - (76,340, 795%) T6 840, 79% - 76,840,795
Dividends declared by the subsidiary { } OSH099)
to aoncomloolfiog interesis - — - - — - — (4007673} (4,0H87.673)
Balances at Drecernber 3L, 20 & P4B1 827653  BI1MISEUTT (B9 66%477) P18 A8E 502 (#1152 586 P24 861 485 1296040 FLERS 407 649 R73.210,97] £1.33%61B6M0

[Forward}




Attributable 1o Equity Holders of the Parens Company

Acnuonal Gains

Med Unrealized (lnsseshon  Share in Other
Yaluation Gains Retirement Comprehensive
Comman Treasury m AFS Benelin Income of Retatned
Stock Additiona] Shares  Financial Asarts Obhgation Associates Eaminps Momcontrolling
(Mote 18)  Paid-in Capial (MHots LB} Mtz 1 [Note L&) (Mote %} rioie 18) Todal Interagts Tatal Equity
Ralances at lanuary 1, 20017 P4R] 827653  FI44. 759977  [PO0 569 477) #18 6586. 502 (Bl ISLAREY P24 BGL4RS P 3O6 00405 F1 R465 407 549 B73210971 1335608 62
et income for the pear - - - - A 77,725,401 1,670,372 79,399 373
Cther comprefenrive income
Met unrealized valuation gains on
changes in fair value of AFS
financial assels - - - 44 379 956 - - - 44379355 3542 8010 47931367
Actuarial gains on retrement bensfit
ohligation - - - - 359,941 - - 359,903 17,774 ITT6TT
Share in othet comprehentive income of
asTocinEs - - - - - 25814102 — 25,514,102 25514102
Total comprehensive income far the year - — - 44379956 350,503 25514 102 77,726,401 147 983 362 S0 75T  153.304,100
Dividkmils declarsd - P20 per shane - - - - - - {76, 28,708 {36 818,705 {TEELE, 105
Acquisition of reasury shaess - (1277 470 - - - - €1,277,479) - (1,277,479
Diiviceeneds. declarsd by the subsidiary
Lo nonconlrolling inlerests - - - - - — {1,454, 1837 {4,454, 1837
Balances a1 December 31, 2017 P41 B2T 651 R4 759977 (BRI 946 9%6) B&3.N6A 458 [(R7O2683)  PEOITSSET  R1I9V.004791 PI935 204 837 RII9RT 545 P20 28 AT

{ Ferwaard}
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Anributabie rg Eqolby Hobfers of ibe Parpail l_"q-npan:}-

Mt U nrealiomed Aciwirial Gaisx
Valuatian by Met Unreallzed {Loasex) an Shurt in Detrer
{Larss} Vahuntbns Zaina Hetirement Cinmprehensive
Common Teoaawry o+ Flnditish Aaeh [Lowtend o AFS Beweli1 Incame of Retzined
Sath Axhditrenal Sheres ut FWOC] Fnancial Asnets CIiHigatinn Anscinler Farmimgs Nomcontrolking
(Hote 187 Paid-in Capital Moy 18] [Mede 14} Motz 1] Mo 151 Hrie By {iale 18} Tatal Inleresis Total Equity
Balante &t Jammury L, IDIE, xy
previomly reparied P41 42T 653 PRI TERSTT (e g, S 950 ~ B3, D564 (FT3L,687} FHLITS SHT BO W70, THE B 205,30 517 PI3IR755  FLiOR ittah
Effects of sdoption of PFRS ¥ T
(Hoe 1)
ReclroiBeatitn of nel
unrealized yalmation pains
n AFS Tmancial axsel lo
Tmamcial aseis st FYOHCT - - - (AN L] (63, ks A58 - - - -
Exprerted aredit laases for
Tk cial axes wt FyYOCI - = — 1, ¥MEiTI - - = 11 0 5.029] [ O, A 5457 —
Palawges ot Janpary 1, 2008, o
rtaed AB1BI7 5] 14, 758977 {100, S 56 Y 54,934,630 - [Torehs) 50,375,587 17904, A6 TR L935 197,97 Tl 04 Ai)F I Mt TAL 572
Metincome fer the year - - - - - - - 12,028,289 b1 AREIAS 97,584 14
Cirdver compre hemiive fucamie . AT
Ml um remlized valustion loars
wnchnnges im fair value aof
finamcinl sxsein ut FYOH)
[bhate |0 - - - {47,552, 444} - - - PR T ETET (1, TWT 600 B2 |
Actmarind guint (lodts] om :
rehirernent benelit
wbligatiom (Mo 16 - - - - - 176,561 - - 76562 7.
Fhare in pther compre et mbve fraie poat
meamE ol B3triied
{Noie 3] - - - - - ¥ Sk He - 21,960, TR - 20,964, 7H
Total eom protonalve income {lesa)
for 1l year - = - [T S5 A4y - 316,561 11 8470 11083 252 {13,118 30y b I e A 2 ]

(Foruard)
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Ahiriburtable b Eymily Hulders of he Fareni L om pany

Fiet Hureslized Arimaral {iaima
¥afuation Gains Mel Onreabized [Lpases) om Share im Cuther
L o) ¥alunten Caina Batinemimi Campreltaties
Cammpa Trgimry  an Fimengink st {Letaes) an AFS Hewefin [scame af Retzined
St ] .n'_c.irliﬁn-_ni Shares wl PO Fimandisl Axcets Crid b uteow Ancesintes Faruings Mascrrinehim
. {Mete 18} Paidsin Capite] Mok [ %) {Mode LO) (Mot (0] [Hiwe 16) [Mede ¥ {Hue 18! Totsl i Talsl Fyuity
Talal comprehentive Incones et
Tor tar yemr ~ [ o et [P ST did) L BI75. 561 Kl 8% T F11.084 159 P13 1IKRY Fr17 412 i o
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2018 2007 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before iIncome Lax B20,977,501 B, 777026 Rl4d 003 911
Adjustments for:
interest incoms (Motes &, 10 and 11] (33,083,307 (341297 (40,141 35946)
Fair value losses {gains} on financial assets at F¥ TPL
{MNote ) 14,162, 96 (17421,323) (%980 508y
MWet unrealized foreign exchange gaing (11,117,119} {1,494 390 (28,279,422)
Equity in net losses (eamings) of associates (Mote 9) 13,972,203 (a0 864,901 T29I0.014)
Drepraciation (Notes 12 and 133 10,557,370 10,324 446 6,088,519
Dividend income (Motes 7 and 1) (3,718,041} (2,424 55 (1,506,263
Impairment losses on receivables and due from related
parties (Motes 8 and 19) - 1004, 00 2,561,277
Recovery of allowence for impairment bosses (137,582} - -
Losses (gains] on disposal of:
Financial assets ae FYOC] {Note 10} 1,339,289 - -
AFS financial assets {Nate 103 - {2,193 71123 (4,292,090}
Finghcial a3sets at FYTEL {(MNote 7) - {1,321,8221 (tDET 050
COperating income (losses) before working capital changes 12,953,212 {3,926 8073 [3,872,306)
Decrease [increase) in.
Recrivables 359,300 (1,104 8743 AR
e {rom related parties 4,723 118,394 {5%8,561%)
Prepayments and other current assets (15,033,291 {3.08%.771) 1t 568 540
[merease {decréase) m:
Accounts payakle and accrued expenses (§91,359) 5,580,937 T28.067
Retirement benelil obligalion (Mote 16) 1,379.877 1,201 246 1,269,716
Proceeds from disposal of:
Financial assets at FYOC] (Wote 16 83,624,191 - -
Financial assets at FYTPL (Mote 73 - 13,030,049 4,703,538
AFS financial asseis (Note 10] - 160,993 084 O 635,132
Additions 1o:
Financial assels at FYTPL (Note 73 (67,342,773} (B3 978 T49) {14,309.328]
Financial assets at FYOCI (Noie 10) (22,1d1,284)  (214,648,554) {70.379.312)
Met cash generated from {used in) operatipns 37,087 344) (105,735,045 19.011,439
Dividends received 45,804,053 51,604,155 21,005,185
Interest received 32,725,593 39.450,508 41,152,604
Inceme Laxes paid {12.037.563) (10,924 8197 {7,990 108)
Met cash fows from {used in) operating activities 19,404,739 (256052011 75119121
CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions o
lovestment properties (Motes 13 and 14) (141,665,845) (79,051 821 -
Property and equipment {Note 12} 21T (2,146 478) {71,429}
Decrease {increase) in other noneument assers (Mote 143 - (13,642 8243 ¢33.075362)
et cash flows used in investing activities [141,666,013) (04.841.073) (23,146,791}

{Farward}
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Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 e

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (Note 18) (78,050,592 (P76 B8, 717y (D74, 252 645}
Dividends to noncontrolling inlerests (513114) (4,454,183} (4087673
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 18] {30320 (1,277,475} —
Metf cash flows used in {mencing activities (79,394 326} (20 0379 (R MO/
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,461,202 1.362 037 15,244 898

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (A82194,408) (2010046160  {11,063,090)
CASH AND CASH EQLTYALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, 753,565,404 #5354 570 050 965,633,140
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END QF YEAR (Mute 6] B570,3TLOM  PI53.565 434 PG54 370050

See accompampung Notax te Carkelidoded Fimgroial Suiemenis.
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L.

Corpurate [nfarmation

F & I Prince Holdings Corporation (the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) on February 18, 1971, Its primary purpose is 1o
purchase, subseribe for or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, gssign, transfer, mortpage,
pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and personal property of every kind and description,
including, but not limited to, land, building, condeminium units, shares of stock, bonds, debentures,
notes, evidence of indebtedness and other securities, contracts or obligations of any corporation and
associations, domestic ot forcign. The term for which the Parent Campany is to cuist is 50 vears from
and after the date of incorporation,

The Parent Company's shares of steck are listed in and traded 1brough the Philippine Stock Exchange
{PSE). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are described in Noic 2,

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 5th Floor, Citibank Center, 8741
Pasec de Roxas, Makati City.

‘The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries {collectively
referred to as the “Group™) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for cach of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2018 were autharized for issve by the Board of Directors (BODY on April
10,2013,

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Basis of Consolidation

Basis of Preparation

The consclidated financial siztements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at F¥TPL and certain AFS financial assets that have been measured at fair valoe in
2017 and financial asscts at FVTPL and certain investments in debt and equity securities that have
been measured at fair value in 2018 (see Nates 7 and 10). The consclidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional currency, and reunded ofT to
the nearest peso, except when otherwisa indicated.

S$taternent of Complience
The consclidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis of Conselidation

The cansolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. Control is achieved when the Group has power
over the investee (.4, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee), is exposed, or has rights, 10 variable returns from its invelvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through fts power aver the investee.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and gircumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of coantrol. Congokidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtaing control ever the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or dispased of
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during the vear are included in the consolidated financiat statements frarn the date the Group gains
control untl the date the Group eeases to cantrol the subsidiary.

Profit or lnss and each compenent of ather comprehensive income (OCH) are atirihuted to the equity
halders of the parent of the Group and to the noncentrolling interests, even if this results in the
noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance, When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in kine with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flowy
relating to transactions between members of the Group are elitninated in full oo consplidation.

A chanpe in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without doss of control, 5 accounted for as an
gquity transaction.

Il the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets fincluding goodwill),
lizbilities, nencontrolling interest and pther components while any resuitant gain or loss is recognized
in consolidated statements of income. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.

Transactions involving noncentrolling interest in & subsidiary without a change of contrnl are
accounted for as equity transactions, Any excess or deficit of consideration paid aver the carrying
amount of noncontrolling interest acquired is recognized in egquity of the Group.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting pelicics for like
transactinns and other events in similar ¢ircumstanees. All intercompany balances and transactions,
including intercompany profits and losses, are eliminated.

Dietails on the subsidiaries as of December 3), 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Country of  Percentage
Incotporation  of Ownership

Magelian Capital Holdings Corporation (MCHC)* Philippincs 94.37%
Pinamuecan Industrial Estates, Ine. (PIED Philippines 10044
Malabrign Corporation (M) Philippines 100%
Magellan Capital Realty Development Corporation {MCRDCY**  Philippines 100%:
Magellan Capilal Trading Corporation (MCTC)** Philippines L oG

“[rrermediale parenr company
*=Nom-operational $ince MCerporation,

MCHC

MCHC is a holding company involved in investing real and personal properties of every kind,
including, but not limited to, land, buildings, condominium units, shares of stock, bonds, and other
securities of any corporation or association, domestic or foreipn, MCHC was registeted with SEC on
Novernber 8, 1990, MCHC has investments in subsidiaries, mainly PIEI, MC, MCRDC and MCTC,

FIEF
PIEl was organized primarily as a real ¢state developer and was registered with the SEC on
May 5, 1993.

MC

MC was organized primarily (o purchase, operate, maintain and s¢(l coal mines and their products and
by-products. MC was registered with the SEC on August 31, 1993,
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MORDC

MORDC was organized to purchase, subscribe for, or stherwise acquire gnd own, hold, use, sell,
assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange ar otherwise disposc of shares of stock, bonds,
dcbentures, noles, evidence of indebtedness and other securities, contracts and obligations of any
corporation or corporations, domestic ar foreign. MCRDC was registered with the SEC on
November 14, 1990 and has been non-operational since incorporation.

MOTE

MCTC was onganized to conduct and carry on the business of buying, selling, distributing and
marketing at wholesale and retail alt kinds of goods, commedities, wares and merchandise. MCTC
was registered in the SEC on January 7, 1921 and has been non-operational sinee incorporation.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclasures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adeption of the following amended standards which were adeptad as of January 1, 2018,

v Amendments to PFRS 2, Shavre-based Payment, Clessification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of & cash-sertled share-based payment transaction; the classification of g share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withhalding tax oblipetions; and the
accounting where 8 modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction chanpes its classification from cash-settled 1o equity-scttied. Entities are required 1o
apply the amendments to: (1) sharc-based payment transactions that are unvested or vested but
unexercised as of January 1, 2018, (2) share-based payment transactions granted on or afier
January 1, 2018 and to {3) medifications of share-based payments that occurred on or after
Ianuary 1, 2018. Retrospective application is permitted if elecied for all three amendments and if
it is possible to do zo without hindsight.

The amendments da not have any impact on the consolidated fingncial slatements as it has no
share-based payment transactions.

s PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS @ reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
mersurement, impairment, end hedge accounting. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. For hedpe accounting, the requirements are
generally applied prospectively, with some limited cxceptions.

The Group has adopted this new standard without restating comparative information.
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Classification and meagsurenent

Under PFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss
{FVTFL), amortized cost, or {air value through OCI{FVOCI). The classification is based on twao
criteria;

a.  The Growp's business model for managing the asset; and
b. Whether the instrurments’ contractual cash flaws represent “solely payment of principal and
interest’ on the prineipsal amount outstanding.

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial applicetion,
January 1, 2018, The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are
solely comprised of principel and interest was made based an the faets and circumstances as the
initiat recognition of the assets.

Az of January 1, 2018, the Group has reviewed and assessed all of its existing finaneial
instruments. The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of finaneial
instruments under PAS 39 and PFRS 9 at the date of initial application.

FFRS 9 Measurement Cabegories

PAS M Categories Baluaces FYTPL  Amcrtized Cost FYOCT
Laang and receivables:
Cosh and cish equivalents P751.505,434 o BISY 565,40 B
Receivables T.281,04% - 7283 968 -
Due from relsled partics 13 460 642 ) - 13,460 b9 -

Financial asselz ol fair value
through profil or loss

{FVPL} 152,717,609 152,701,189 - 16,510
AFS fimamcial assats 521,351,608 - - 521,51 60%
Pl 448379515 ®152,701,1K9 174,310,068 B521,368,118

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group does not hold financial liabilities designated at
fair value through prefit or lass,

Impairment

The adoption of PFRS 2 has changed the Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial
assets by replacing PAS 3%°s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expecied credit loss
{ECL) approach. Under PFRS 9, all financial assets cxcept those measured at FYTPL and equity
instruments at FYOC] are assessed for BCL. As at January 1, 2018, the Group recognized ECL
amounting o B2.0 million on financial asscts at FV{CI, thereby reducing retained eamings by
the zams amount.
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The effects of adoption of PFRS 9 on the cansolidaled statement of financial position are as

follows:
Asof Jamuary 1, 2018
Hote FAS 39 Tncrease (decrepsc) PFRE %

ASEETS
Current Assels
Cash and ¢ash equivalents ok BTS1.56% 474 o PTS15p% 404
Receivables {a) 7 2R3,965 - 7283 865
130 fram related parties (&) L4860, 669 - L3 460, 66%
Financisl assers st FYTEL fc) 152,717, 64% (16,5100 152,701,189
Current pottion of financial dses

al F¥YOCT £a) - 40,744,002 40,754,002
Cuzrent portion of AYS financial

assets b} 40,784 002 {40,784,007) -
Noneurrent Asaets
Financial assets at FY OO - ney

of current portion 1] - 80,584 116 dB0,584, 116
AFS Mmancial assets - netaf

CuTTENl Ponion (1) 4R, 567, 540 (488 367 606} -
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Equity
Ml unrealized valustion gains on

financial assets al FYOCE (b} - Gd 984 £30 64, 984 630
Met unrealized vaktuation pains on

AFS Ninancial gssels 1)) 53,066,458 163,066,458 -
Retained earmings (dh 1,297 004 791 £2,.00 5,004 1,294 9809 T4
Mancontrolling interesia {d) T 98T 545 U4, 357 T4 084 402

The nature of these adjustments are deseribed below:

* Classification and measurerment

(&)

(b}

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables and due from related parties, which are previously
classified as loans and reeeivables, are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise
1o cash flows representing solely payments of prineipal and interest. These are now
classified and mersured as debt instruments at amertized cost.

Dcbt securities previously classified as AFS financial assets are now classified and
measured as debt securities at FVOC! with recycling. The Group expects not only to
hoid the assets 1o collect contractual cash flows, but also to sell a significant amount on a
relatively frequent basis. The Group’s debt instruments at FYQCT are foreign currency-
denominated bond securittes that passed the ‘solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount cutstanding” test (the SPPI criterion). As at January 1, 2013, the
carrying amount of debt securities at FYOCT amounted to P315.6 million,

Equity securities previously classified as AFS financig] assets are now classified and
measured as equity seeurities at FVOCT without recyeling. The Group™s investment in
equity securities at FYCOLCT are not held for trading and for which the Group irrevocably
elected the FVQCI gptien without recycling. In line with this, the Group reclassified the
cumulative net unrealized gains on AFS financial assets to cumulative net unrealized
gaing on financial assets at FVOCIL As at January 1, 2013, the carrying amount of equity
securities at FYOCI emounted to £201.7 million,
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() The Group determined that its investments it unguoled preferred shares are not held far
trading, thus, the Group irrevocably reclassified these investments from financial assets at
FVPL. to financial assets at FVOCT withoul recycling amounting to B16,510 as at
January 1, 2018, Upaon the adoption of FFRS 9, the revaluation difference for unguoted
equity securities ciassified as financial assets at FVOCI is not signilicant,

«  [mpairtnent

(d) The adoption ol PF¥FRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's sccounting far
impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39°s incurted loss approach with
a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. PFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognize an allewance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
prafit ar loss. Upon the adaption of PFRS 9, the Group recoghized additional
impairment on the Group’s debt securities at FYOCL Impairment losses, if zny, do not
reduce the carrying amount of debt instruments at FVOC] in the consolidated statement
of financial position, which remains at fair value.

Amendments to PERS 4, Msurance Controets, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instrumecnts standard before implementing the new insurance conlracts standard, The
amendments introduce two options fer entities issuing insuranes contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approsch. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or efter January 1, 2018, An entity may lect the
overlny approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retraspectively to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflacting
the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying
PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since it does not have activities that are
predominantly connecred with insurance and does net issue insurance contracts.

PERS 15, Revenue from Conrracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that applies to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS |5, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration te
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide & more struetured approach to measuring and
TECOENIZINE revenue,

FFRS |5 supersedes PAS 11, Construction Contracts, BAS 1B, Revenue and related
Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, uniess those
contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes g five-step model to
accaunt for revenue srising from contracts with custorners. Under PFRS 15, revenue i
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a eustomer. The standard requires entities to
exercise judpament, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and ¢ircumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the
accounting for the incremental costs of ohtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.
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Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impaet on the conselidated financial
statements becavse the following revenue transactions of the Group are outside the scope of
PFRE 15:

s Dividend income from investees, financial assets at FYTPL and equity securities at FVOCI
s Interest income from investments in debt sccurities at FYVCKC] and short-term placements
+ Rental income from leases to third parties

Amendments 1o PAS 40, frmvestment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development inta, or out of invesiment pruperly. The amendments state that a
thange in use occurs when the property meels, er ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mers change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. Retrospective application
of the amandments is not requited and is only permitted if this is pessible without the use of
hindsight,

Since the Group's current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the amendmenis dio nat
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidaled financial statements upen sdoption of these
amendments.

Amendments to PAS 28, fnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures, Measuring an Associate
or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvemends 1o PFRSs 201423016 Cycie)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is & venture capital erganization, or other gualifying,
entity, may elect, at initial recopnition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in asseciates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They alse clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measuremant applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate’s or joint venure's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
{B) the investment entity associate or joint venmre is initially recognized; {b) the associate or joint
venture becomes an investnent entity; and {c} the investment entity associate or joint venture (irst
becomes a parent. Retrospective application i3 required.

These amendments are not appliceble to the Group since nune of the entities within the Group is 2
venture capital organization or an investment entity, nor does the Group have investment entity
associates or joint ventures.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and ddvance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot cxchange rate 10 use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income {or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset
or nonmenetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initislly recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising
from the advance consideration, 1f there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of edvance
consideration. Retrospective application of this interpretation is not required.
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Since the Group's current practice is in ling with the clanfications issued, the mterpretation does
not have any effact an the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

Mew Standards and Interpretation |ssued and Effactive after Dacember 31, 2018

Pronsuncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said prorouncements will have a significant impact on
i comsalidated Mnancial statements, The Group intends to adopt the following pronounce ments
when they beoome elTective,

Effective beginning on or affer January [, 2049

*

Amendments to PFRS 3, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under PFRE 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows qualifies the SPPI eriterion and
the instrumnent is held within the appropriate business model for that elassification. The
amendments to PFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI enterion regardless of the
event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and imespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the ¢arly termination of the contracr. The
armendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from Januvary 1, 2019, with
earfier application permitted.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

FFRS |4, Leases

FFRE 1# sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for ell leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the acecunting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of *law-value® assets {e.g., personal computers) and
short-term leases (e, leases with a lease term of 12 monihs or less).

At the commencement date of & lesse, & lessee wiil recognize a liability to make lease payments
fie, the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underiying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the
interest expensc on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use assel.

Leseegs will be alzo required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certein events
{e.g.. a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used (0 determine those payments). The lesses will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PERS 16 is substantially unchanged from teday’s aceounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same ¢lassification prineiple as in
PAS 17 and distinguish betwaen two types of leases: operating and finance leases,

FFRS 16 also requires lessecs and lessors o make more extensive disciosures than under PAS 17.
Early application is permitied, but nel before an entity applics PERS 15, A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permoit certain reliefs.
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The Group is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on
tha raguired effcctive date,

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Bepefits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to PAS 19 address the aceounting when a plan amendment, curtailment ar
settlement occurs during & reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or setlement oecurs during the annual reporting pericd, an entity is
required to:

+  Determing the cument service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumplions vsed o remeasure the nel definad
henefit liahility {(asset) reflecting the benefirs offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event; and

+  Determing the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment ar setilement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits
offerad under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to
remeasure that net defined benefit liability {assel).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, of a gain or |oss
on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recophized in
consplidated statements of income. An entity then determines the effect of the aszet ceiling after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts
included in the net interest, is recognized in consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The amendments apply 1o plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or afier the
beginning of the first annual reporting period that beging on ar after January 1, 2019, with early
application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adapting these amendments.
Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The atnendments clarify that an entity appliss PFES 0 to long-term interests in an gssociate or
Jjeint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-terrn interests}). This clarification is relevant
because it implies that the expected credit loss medel in PFRS 9 applies to such long-term
interests.

The emendments also clarified that, in applying PFRS 9, an entity does nat take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment {osses on the net investment,
recopmized as adpustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from
applying PAS 28 The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these amendments,
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Lneerrainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpratation addresses the aceounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, fncome Taxes, and does not apply Lo taxes or
levies nutside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interaat and penalties azzociated with uncartain tax treatments,

The interpretation specilically addresses the following:

s  Whether an entity considers uncertain lax treatments separately

#  The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

*  How ao cntity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

s How an entity cansiders changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain lax trealments. The approach that better predices the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this interpretation.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 20152017 Cycle

v Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinarions, and PERS 11, Jaint Arrengemenis,
Previously Held Interest in & Joint Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of & business that is a joint
operalion, it applies the requitements for a business combination achieved in stages,
in¢luding remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint
operation Al Fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest
in the joint operation.

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might abtain
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
busincss as defined in BFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments (o business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or afier the beginning of the firsl annval reporting period beginning on or after

JTanuary 1, 2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or afler the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early
application permitted.

These amendments are cutrently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future
transactions.
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«  Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classifled as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transaclions or events that penerated distributable profits than to distributions
ta owners, Therefore, an enlity recognizes the income lax consegquences of dividends io
consolidated statements of incame, consolidated statements of comprehensive income or
equity according to wherg the entity originally recognized those past transaclions gr gvents.

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments are not relevant io the Groop becawpse dividends declared by the Group do
not give Tise to tax obligations under the current fax laws.

«  Amendments to FPAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Costs Fligible for Capitalization

The amendments ¢larify thal an cntily treats as parl of general borrowings any bormowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all ol the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use ar sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to bormowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendinents for annual reporting periods beginning on ot after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group sines the Group does not have any
borrowing costs.

Effective Beginning on or afier January 1, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3, Deflnition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant®s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the
definition of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an aequired process
is substantive gnd add illustrative examples. An optional fair value coneentration test is
introduced which permils a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
asgets is not 8 business,

An entity appiies those amendments prospectively for annual reperting periods beginning en or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments will apply to future business combination transactions of the Group.

Amendments o PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Folicies,
Changes in Accounting Estimaies and Ervars, Definition of Matenial

The amendments refing the definition of material in PAS | and align (he definitiuns used acruss

PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are imtended to improve the understanding of the
existing requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity’s materiality judgements.
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An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with eerlier application permitted.

"The Group is currently assessing the impact of these amendments.
Kffective Beginning on or ofter January £, 2021

»  PFRS 17, Insurance Contrasts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracls covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e.,
life, non-life, dircet insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of the type of entilics that ssue them,
as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation fealures.
A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 15 to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
| is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
| largely based on grandfathering previous local aceounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specilic adaptation for contracts with dirsct participation features (the variable fee
approach)
v A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainty for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periads beginning on or afler January 1, 2021, with
comparalive figures required. Early application is permitted.

These amendments have no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Ciroup.

Deferred effectivity

»  Amendments to PFRS 10, Consofidated Financial Statemenis, and PAS 78, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor end its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
contral of B subsidiary that is sold ot contributed to an associate or joint veniure. The
amendments clanfy that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfler Lo an associste or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not ¢onstitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors” interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Fmancial Reporting Standards Council pestponed the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Aceounting Standards
Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accaunting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting
for associzles and joint ventures.

The Group has not early adopted any other standerds, interpretations or amendments that has been
issued but is not yet effective.
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Summary of Sipnificant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncwrrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classiftcation. An asset is classified as current when i is:

v Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

o Ileld primarily for the purpose of trading,

+  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting peried; or

a  Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Liability far at
least twelve menths after the reporting period.

Aldl other assets are classified 2s noncurrent.
A liability is classified as current when:

1t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpase of rading,

It is due ta be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lizbility for at least twelve mosths
after the reporting period.

The Group ¢lassifies all ather liabilities as noncurrent.
Dieferred income tax asseis and liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Fair Walue Measurement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to scll an asset or paid 10 fransfer a liability in
an grderly ransaclion belween markel participanis al the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
Lakes place gither:

* Inthe principel market for the asset or liability, or
+ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset o liability.

The prinzipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured vsing the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the ssset or Hability, assuming thet market participants act in their bast
economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial rsset takes into aceount a market participant's ability Lo
generate economie benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the assel in its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the uze of relevant observable inpts
and minimizing the vse of uncobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
staternents are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
lewvel mmput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level [: Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

»  Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest |level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For asscts and liabililics that are recognized in the consalidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have ogcurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing calegorization {bascd on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as & whale) al the end of each reponrting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has delermined classcs of assels and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained shove.

Cash ival

Cash includes cash gn hand and in banks, Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from date of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments (Pricr ic Adoption of PFRS §}
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
tiability ot equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Asseis. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at FVPL,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity {HTM} investments, AFS financial assetz, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. Al financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value plus, except in the case of financial assets not recorded at FVFEL,
transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

FPurchases or sales of financtal assets that require delivery of assets within a lime frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place {regular way (rades) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

q.  Fingneiol Aszers ar FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assels designated
upon initiatl recognition at FYFL, Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, arc also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by PAS 3%, Financial assats at FVPL are catried in
the consclidated statements of financial position ar fair value with net changes in fair value
presented as fair value gains or losses on financial asset at FVPL in the cansolidated statements
of income,

NN
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Darivatives embedded in host contracts are secounted for as separate derivatives and recorded al
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to these of the host
contracts and the host contrects are not held for trading or designated at FYPL., These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes 1o fair value recognized in the conselidated
statements of income,

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of FVPL.

The Group's investments in trading securities arc classified under financial assets at FYPL as of
December 31, 2017 {see Nate T,

Laans and Receivables

l.cans and receivahles are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Afier initial measurement, loans and recetvables are
subsequently measured at amortized ¢ost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method, less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is caleulated taking into account any discount or
premium an acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The effective
intcrest amortization is included as interest income in the consolidated statements of income. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables and due from related parties are classified as
toans and receivables as of December 31, 2017 (see Notes 5, 8, and 190,

AFE Financial Asseis

AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt investments. Equity investments
classified as AFS financial assets are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated al FVPL. Debt securities in this catepory are those that are intended to be held for an
indefinite period ol time and that maybe sold in response te needs for liquidity or In response to
changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured al Tair value with
unrealized gains or lesses recognized in the consolidated statements of comprebensive income
unti] the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative pain or loss is recognized in
the consolidated statements of income. When the investment is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is reclassified to the
conselidated statements of income. ag impairment loss on AFS financial assets, Interest zarned
whilst holding AFS financial asseis is reporied as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity securities <lassified as AFS financial assets that do net have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell jits AFS financia] assets in the near
tern 18 still appropriate. When, in rere circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets dus 10 inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclessify these financial asgets if the
managemnant has the ability and intention to hold the assets for foreseeable future or undl
maturity,

[n the case of a financial asset with a fixed maturity, the fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes itz new amartized cost and any previeus gain ot loss on the asset that has been
recognized in the conselidated statements of comprehensive income is amortized to the
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consolidated statements of income over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any
difference between the new amortized cost and the matweity amount is alse amortized aver the
remaining lile af the asset using the EIR. TF the azset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the ameunt recorded in the conselidated statements of comprehensive income is reclassified
to the consolidated statements of income.

It the case of a financial asset that does nol have a Nixed malority, the gain or loss shall remain io
OCT unti! the financial asset is sold or otherwise disposed of, when it shall be recognized in profit
ot loss, If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income is recognized in the

i consalidaled statements of income.

The Group's AFS finaneial assets consisl of debl and equity securities as of December 31, 2017
. {see Note 10},

Financig! Liabilities. Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
FVPL, other financial liabilities, or as derivatives designared as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All Ainancial liabilities are recognized imitially at fair vatue and, in case of other financial liabilities,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

As of Decemnber 31, 2017, the Group does not have financdal liabilities desipnated at FVPL or as
derivatives designated as hedging, instruments in an effeetive hedpe.

Issued Mnangiel instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL, are classified
as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contraciual arranpement reqults in the Croup
having an abligation tither to deliver cash or another financial asset to the halder, or (o satisfy the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or ancther financial asset for a fixed
number of owm equity shares. The compenents of issued financial instruments that contain both
liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity compoenent being assigned
the residual amount after deducting from the instrument, as a whole, the amount separately
determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

After initia] measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the CIR method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into aceount any discount or pretnium
an the issue and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The effective interest amortization is
included as interast expense in the consalidated statements of income. Thiz accounting policy applies
primarily ta accounts payable and acerued expenses and dividends payable (other than liabilities
cavered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payzahle) (see Notes 15 and 18).

Tmpairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or & gruup of financial assets iz impaired. An impairment exists if one or more evenis thai has
oceurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on Lhe
estimated future cash flows of the Minancial asset or the group of Mnancial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications thal the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or detinquency in interest or principal payments,
i the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganization and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as chanpes in
arrears or economic cenditions that correlate with defauls.
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a.  Finaneio! Assers Corried at Amortized Cost
For assets carricd al amortized cost, the (rroup first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
asscls that arc nat individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment ¢xists for an individuatly assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a grovp of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively asscsses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairtnent
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
eollegtive asscssment of impairment,

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the differenes between the asset’s
i camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected
' credit losses that have not yel boen incurred). The present value of the estinated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset's original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an ailowance account and the loss
is recogmized in the consclidated statements of income. Interest income recognized continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is acerued using the rale of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuning the impairment loss. Loans together
with the associated allowanee are written of 7 when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or hag been transferred to the Group, I in a subsequent year,
the amount af the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event oceurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased ar
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recavered, the recovery is

| credited to reversal of impairment loss in the consolidared staternents of income,

b AFS Fingncial Assets
For AFS lnancial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, objective evidence wouald
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.

‘Significant’ is evaluated against the oniginal cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulatve lass measured as the difference betwean the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, Jess any impairment 1oss on that investment previously recognized is removed
trom OCI and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not
reversed through the consolidated statements of income; increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.,

The determination of what is 'significant’ or 'prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this
Judgment, the Group ¢valuates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair valuc
of an investment is less than its cost.

[n the case of debt instruments classified as AFS linancial assets, the impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried al amortized cost, However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amorntized
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss gn that investment previously recognized
in the consolidated statements of income,




-1§-

Future inlgrest incotne continues 10 be accrued based on the reduced carrving amount of the asset,
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. [nterest income is recognized as part of profil or luss. If, in & subsequent year,
the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related 1o an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss s
reversed through the consolidated statements of income.

Financial Instruments fUpon Adoptian of PFRS )

Finagrcial Assels

Initicf Recognition and Measuremenr. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through ather comprehensive ingome, and fair
value through the consolidated siaterments of income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recopnition depends an the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group®s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain s significant financing component or Tor which the Group has
applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain & significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the trensaction price determined under PFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset lo be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive ingome, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are *solely payments of principal
and interest {SFP1}" on the principal amount outstanding. This assessmcent is referred to as the SPPI
test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financiai
assets in order to penerate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash Aows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent Measuremeni. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial essets are classified in
four categaories:

*  Finaneial assets at amartized cost (debt instruments)

* Fingncial assets st fair value through other comprehensive income with reeyeling of cumulative
gaing and losses (debt instruments)

* Financial assets designated at fair vafue through other comprehensive incame with no recycling
of cumuiative gains and 1osses upon derecognition fequity instruments)

*  Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss

Financiol Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at
arnoriired ¢oslif both of the following conditions are met:

* the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to colleet contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
silely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial azsets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the EIR mathod and are subject to

impairment. Gaing and losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the asset
is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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The Group™s financial assets at amottized cost includes “Cash and cash equivalents”, "Receivables”,
and “Dhue from related parties™ accounts in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Financia! Assets at FVOU! With Recycling of Cumulative Gains and Losses (Debt Insrruments). The
Group measurss debl instruments at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

o  The financial asser is held within a business mode] with the objective of both holding o collect
contractual cash flaws and selting, and

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset pive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely pavments of principal and intersst on the principal amount cutstanding,

Far debt instruments al FYQC, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognized in the conselidated statements of comprehensive income and computed in
the same manner &s for the financial assets measured at amortized cost, The remeining fair value
changes are recognized in OCT is recveled to the consolidated statements of income.

As af December 31, 2018, the Group has debt instruments at F¥' OCI amounting to F260.2 million
{see Note 10).

Financial Assets Designared ar FVOC! With No Recycling of Cumulative Gains and Lasses Lipon
Derecognition (Equity Instruments). Upon initial recagnition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FYOCI when they meet the
definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Preseniation, and are not held for trading,
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gaing and losses on these financial assels are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as otber income in the consolidated statements of income when the right of payment has
been eslablished, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at falr value through OCT are not subject to
tmpairment

As of December 31, 2018, the Group elected to classify imevocably its quoted equity securities under
this category ampunting to B132.6 million (see Note 100,

Financial Assets at FVTPL. Financial assets at FYTPL include financial assets held lor trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FYTEL, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flow that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at FYTPL, irespective of the business
mode], Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instrumenis to be classified at amortized cost or at
FV(OC], a5 describad abave, debt instruments may be designated at FYTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminated, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assats at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at fair value
recognized in the consohdated statements of comprehensive income,

This catepary includes listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevegably elected 1o
classify at FYOCL Dividends on listed equity investments are alse recognized as ‘Dividend income’
in the conselidated statements of comprehensive income when the right of payment has besn
established.
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As of December 11, 2018, the Group has financial assets at FVTPL amounting to B205.9 million (see
note 7).

fmpairment of Financial Assers. The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
{ECLs) for all debt instruments nat held at fair value thraugh profit or logss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
{lows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR.

The ECL calculation using general approach is composed of three major components - probability of
default {PD), loss given defaubt {LGD), and exposure at default {EAD}. The 12-manth ECL is
computed for Stage 1 accounts, while the lifetime ECL is calculated for Stage 2 and Stage 3 accounts,
The ECL calculation using simplified approach is compuied for Stapge 2 and 3 accounts, using
lifetime ECL. Accounts with objective evidence of impairment are ¢lassified under Stage 3 and shall
follaw the Group's impaiment methedology.

For credit exposures for which there hag not been a significant increase in eredit risk since inftial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defauit events that are possible
within the next 12 months {a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk sinee initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit |osses
expected over the remaining life ol the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime
ECL).

A loss allowance at an amount equal 10 at least 12-month expected credit losses will be recognized
throughout the life of financial assets, thereby reducing the systematic overstatement of interest
reveniue, A loss allowance at an amount equal to hifetime expected credit losses will be recognized
when credit risk has significantly increagsed since inttial recognition, resulting in the timely
recopnition of expected credit {psses,

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due
and/or it meets certain qualitative criteria. In certain cases, the Group may alse consider & financial
assel to be in default when intermal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely 1o
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancemenis held by the Company,

Financial Liabilities. fnitial Recognition and Measuremend. Financial liabilities are classified, at
initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedpe, as appropriate.

All financial liabilitics are recognized initialky at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include “Accounts payable and acctrued expenses”, “Dividends
payable™ and ether obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
accaunling standards).

Subsequent Measurement. After initial recognition, the Group's financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cosi using the EIR method.




Drerecognition of Financial Instruments

Fingncial Asseis

A fmancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a linaneial assel or part of a group of similar
financial assets} is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s statement of financial
pasition} when:

*  the rights to receive eash flows from the assel have expired; or

*  the Group has tragsfetred its tights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay (o a third parmy under a
*pags-through® atrangement, and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially alk the risks and
rewards of the assct, or {b) the Graop has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the assel, bul has transferred cortrol of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights te receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, It evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
owrnership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substartially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues o recognize the transferred assel to
the extent of its contineing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liahility, The transferred aszel and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee. over the transferred asset is measurad at
the lower of the criginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Fingncial Liohilities

A financial liabilicy is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing (inaneial liability is replaced by anether from the zame lender on
substantially different tarms, or the tarms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the dereeognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recagnized in the consolidated
statements of income.

Qffsetting of Finaneial Ingiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are effset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and thers is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the ligbility
sirmultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right to offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insplvency or bankmptey ol the Group and al) of the counter parties,

WValie-added Tax (WAT]

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recopnized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable. When VAT
from sales of services {output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services
{input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statements of financial position,
When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of
services [output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consolidatad statements of finangial
position ta the extent of the recoverable amount.
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[nvestnents in Associales
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the

powet t0 participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not central
ar joint contral over thase pelicies. The Group's investment in associates are accounted for under the

equity method.

Under the equity method, the Investments in associates are initially recognized al cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Group's share of the prafit or loss of the
associates after the date of acquisition. The Group’s share of the associates’ profit or Ioss is
recognized m the consolidated staternents of income. Distributions received from associates reduce
the carrying amount of the investrment.

Any change in 01 of those investess is presented as part of the consaolidated statements of
comprchensive income, In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in equity.
Unrealized guins and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associates are
eliminaled to the cxtent of the interest in the associate. [f the Graup’s shares of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its imerest in the associate, the Group discontinues recognizing its shere of further

losses.

The carrying amount of the invesiment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associates since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associates is included in
the camying amourt of the investment and is not tested fer impairment individually.

The financial statemcnts of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjusiments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group detertnines whether it is neceseary Lo recognize an
tmpairment lass on its investments in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines
wheather there is objective evidence that the investménts in associates are impawed. [Ithere is such
evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impairment a8 the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognize the loss in the conselidated

statements of ingome.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retathed
investment at its fair value. Any difference betwesn the camrying emount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the feir value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recopnized in the consclidated statements of income.

The Group has equity interest in the following associates 45 of December 31, 2018 and 201 7:

Country of Percentage of

Incorporation Ownership
Pointwest Technologies Corporation {PTC) Philippines 0%
Business Process Cutsourcing, Intemational (BFO) Philippines 35%
Magellan Utilities Development Corporation
(MUDC) Philippines 43%
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Investment Properties

lnvestment preperties, comprising & parcel of land and condominium units, are held either to 2am
rental income or for capital appreciation or both, Investment property pertaining to land is measured
at enst, meluding transaction costs less any accumulated Impairment in value.

Investment properly perdaining to condominium units is carried at eost lezs any aceumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value, Depreciation is computed using straight-line method over
the estitmated useful life of 25 vears.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the asset s recopnized in the
consolidated statements of income in the periad of derecopnition,

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there iz a chanpe ih use, Fora
transfer lrom investment propetty to owner-accupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
acepunting i the fair value at the date of change in uge. If owner-cccupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property and equipment up 10 the date of change in use.

Property and Equipment

Praperty and equipment is stated gt cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and
cquipment, including cost of major inspection, when that cost is incurred and if the recognition
crileria are met. All other repair end maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statements
of intome as incurred.

Depreciation is computed oo a straipht-tine basis over the estimated useful lives of the property and
eguipment as follows:

Carcgory Mumber of Y ears
Condominium 25
Condominium improvements 14
Transportation equipment 10
Office fumniture, fixtures and equipment 5

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are ¢xpected from its use or disposal. Any pain or loss arising on derecopnition of the asset
{calculated as difference berween the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statements of consolidated incame when the asset is derecognized.

The residual value and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed pertedically and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets ars retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost and related accurmulated depreciation and any
allowance for impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
credited or charged to current operations. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when ne fulure economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (caicultated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the conselidated siatements of income in the year
the assel is derecognized.
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Impairmend of Nonfinancial Assets
The Group assesses, £t each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset mayhe

impaired, f any indication exists, the Group estimates the assct’s recoverable amount. An BSSEL's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating unit’s (CGUY) fair value less costs of
disposal and its vatue in use, The recaverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflaws that are largely independent of Lhose from other assels or
groups of assets. When the carmying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amaunt, the
asset i considerad impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount.

1n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market tran sactions are
taken into aceount. 1f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valvation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valualion multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or ather available fair valuz indicators.

Impairment losses are recognized in consclidated statements of income in expense calegories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses no lenger cxist or have decreased. I such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
toes is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recaverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does nol exceed its recoverable amount, nor excesd the CAITying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had ng impairment loss been recopnized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in consolidated statements of income.

Capitai Stogk and Additiong! Paid-in Capital
The Group has issued capital steck that is classified as equity. Incremenial costs directly attributable
to the issne af new capital stock are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Amount of contribution in excess of par value s accounted for as an additional paid-in capiial,
Additiona! paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the sharcholders.

Tre hares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or foss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue ot cancellation of
the Group's own cquity instruments. Any difference between the carrying emount and the
consideration, if reissued, is recognized in share premium.

Retained Earnin
The amount ingluded in retained eamnings includes income attributable to the Group's steckholders

and reduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as & Hability and deducted from equity when
they arc approved by the BOD. Dividends for the year that are approved afier the reporting date are
dealt with as an event after the reporting date. Retained eamings may also include effect of changes
in accounting policy as may be required by the relevant transitional provisiens.

Eeyenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shuwn net of value-added tax and discounts.
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when conwrol of the goods or services are
transferred to the cuslomer sl an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those poods or services. The Group determines, at contract inception,
whether it will transfer control of a promised good or service over time, If the Group does not satisly
a petformance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods or services.

Prior to 2018, the Group recopnizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is possible that future economic benefits will flow into the entity. The amount of revenue is not
considered 1o be reliably measured until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical resulis, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue Ourside the Svope of PFRS 15
The specific recognition etiteria described below must be met before revenue i3 recognized.

Interest Incame

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financiat assets, interest
income is recorded using the EIR method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected Hfe of the financial imstrument or shorter period, where
appropeiate, 1o the net carrving amount of the finencial asset or liahility. Lnierest income is
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

Dividend Income
Revenue i5 recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which iz generally
when the investee’s BOD approves the dividend.

Rent fncome

Rent income arising from operating lease on investment properties is accounted for on 4 straight-line
basis over the noncanceleble lease term &nd 15 included in revenue in the consolidated statements of
INEDMmE,

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease gre added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on a slraipht-line basis. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are tarned.

Lxpenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benelits during the accounting peried in the form of cutflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrcases in equity, other than those
relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses arc generally recognized when goods are
received by and services are rendered o the Group or when the expenses arisc,

Retirement Bengfits
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and osses, return on plan gssets and any change in the
effect ol agset ceiling (excluding amounts net interest on the net delined benerit ligbility}, are
recognized immediately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in the peried in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclessified to the consolidated statements of income in
subzequent periods.

RSN
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Past service costs are recopnized in the consadidated statements of income on the earlier of:

*  The dale of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
»  The daie that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset,
The Group recopnizes the following changes in the net defined benefit abligation under “Retirement
banefits” in consolidated statements of income:

»  Service cosls comprising current service costs, past service ¢osts, gains and losses oo curailments
and non-roaline settlements

«  Net interest expensc or income

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease s based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
atrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if the right is not explicitly specified in an arranpement, Leases in
which risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are not substantially transferred to/from the Group
ate classified as operating lease.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The consalidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group's
functiona) currency. Transactions in forgign currencies are initially recorded at their respective
lfunctional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign carencies are transtated using the functional currency
spod rates of exchange at the reporting date, Differences arising lrom settlement or translation of
monelary Hems are recognized in prefit or loss, Nenmonetary items that are measured (n terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transacticns. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a forgign currency are translated using the
txchange rates at the dates when the feir values are determined. The gain or loss arising on
ranslation of nonmonetary items measured at fair values is treated in line with the recegnition of gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss 35 recopnized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income ar the consolidated
statements of income are also recognized in the consolidared statements of comprehensive incame or
consolidated statements of income, respactively).

Ingome Taxes

Current fncome Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The income tax rates and incomns tax laws used to compute the
amount ére those thet are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognizad directly in cquity 18 recognized in equity and not in
the consclidated statements of income.

Deferred Inconre Tax
Deferred income tex is provided using the balance sheet liability method on lemporary differences

between the income tax bases of assets and llabilities end their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at reporting date.
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Dreferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxeble temporary differences, except

s where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asser or liability in a transaction that is not a business eombination and, at the time of the
transaction, afiects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profic or loss; and

» inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of (the temperary differences can
be contralled and it is probahle that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits in the form of minimum corperate income tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses in
the form of net operating loss carryover (NOLCO). Deferred income tax assels are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against which Lhe deductible temporary
differences of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized, except:

¢ where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a ansaction that is nol 2 business combination
and, at the ime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,
and

v in respect of deductible temparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associales and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assels are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The camying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at sach reporting date and reduced 1o
the extent that it is na longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset 1o be utilized. Unrecopgnized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized b the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred income tax asscie and lishilities are measured af the inceme tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the Lability is sertled, based on income tax rates and
incotne tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized vutside of profit
or logs. Deferred income 1ax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in O] or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
£xists to set of f curment income tax against current income 1ax liabilities and the deferred tncome l1axes
relate 1o the same taxable entity and same laxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of 2 business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new infermation about facts and
circumstances change. The adjustments is either treated as a reduction it goadwill {as long as it does
not exceed poodwill} if it was ingurred during the measurement period or recognized in the
consolidated statements of income.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has s present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past evenl, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required ta settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Group expects seme ar all of 2 provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement iy recognized as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virwally certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented 1 the
consolidated statements of income, net of any reimburscment.

If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provizions are disecounted using a corrent
pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific o the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the consalidated financial statements when an inflow
of econamic benefits is probable and recopnized in the consolidated statements of financial position
and the related income in the consolidated statements of income when an inflow of economic benefils
is wirtually certain. On the other hand, contingent liabilities are disctosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote,

Eamings Per Share (EPS) :

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year attributable
equity halders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted eamnings per share amounts are caleulated by dividing the net income for the year attributable
to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of erdinary shares that would be issued on the conversion
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

As of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Group does not have any dilutive potential common
shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the samc as basiec EPS.

Segment Reporting
For purpeses of Management reporting, the Group's operating businesses are organized and managed

seperately on a per Company basis, with each company representing a strafzgic business segment.
The Group’s identified operating segments are consistznt with the segments reported to the BOD
which is the Group"s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Information on the operating
segment 18 presented in Mote 21.

Ewents After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material
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Significant Aceounting Judgments, Estimates and Assomplians

The consclidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs require management to
make judements, estimates and assumptions thal affecl amounts reported in the financial statements
and related notes. The judgments, estimates and assuenptions used in the financial statemants are
bascd upon management’s cvaluation of relevant facts and circumstances 85 of the date of the
consiidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and ather frctors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be
reasonable under the circumstances. The following items are those matters which the Group assess to
have significant risks arizing from estimation uncertainties:

Ju nt

Determination of Significant influence over an fmvestee Company

The Group considers its investments in FTC, BPO and MUDC as investments in associates. The
Group concluded that it has more than 20+ ownership interest and has significant inlluence aver the
operating and financial policies of its investments in associates due to the following:

& representation on the BOD;

¢ participation in policy-making processes, ingluding participation o decisions about dividends and
other distributions; and '

*  material ransactions between the investor and invesies

Determining Noncomrolling Mmterest (NCI) that is Material to the Group

The Group assesses whether an MU is material by considering factors such as the carrying amount of
the NCT relative to the net squity of the Groop, the profit or loss or OCI of the subsidiary atributable
to the NCI, the assets and hiabilities of the related subsidiary, or the emount of dividends paid by the
subsidiary to the NCI, and the proportion that these ameunts bear to the Group’s financial position or
results of operations. The Group also considers the nature of the activities of the subsidiary and its
relative importance or risk compared to other operations of the Group, Based on management’s
assessment, it has determined that the NCI in MCHC (s not material to the Group,

Classification of Financial fnstruments

The Group exsrcises judpments In elassifying a fimancial inslrument, or its component parts, upon
inilial recognition either as a financial assel, a financial liabiiity or an equity instrument in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, 2 fmancial
liability or an equity instrument, The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification in the conselidated stetements of financial position.

In addition, the Group classifies financial assetz by evaluating, amaonp, others, whether the asset is
gualed or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a Financia) assct 1= quoted in
an aclive marke is the determination an whether market transaclions take place with sufficient
frequency and volume.

Contractual Cash Flows Assessment (Upon Adaption of PFRS 9)
Beginning January 1, 2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms to
identify whether the instrument is consistent with the concept of ST
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‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at inttial
recopnition and may change over the life af the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
af principal or amortization of the premium/discounrt).

The most significant alements of interest within 2 lending arrangement are typically the consideration
{or the time value of money and eredit risk. T'o make the SPFPI assessment, the Group applies
judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set,

In contrast, contractual terms thet introduce a more than de minimis exposurs to fisks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unretated 10 a hasie lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual eash Mows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount cutstanding.
In such cases, the linancial asset is required o be measured at FYTPL.

Evaluation of Business Model in Managing Financial Instriaments (Upomn Adoprion of PFRS 9)
Beginning January 1, 2018, the Group determings its business modei at the level that best reflects
how it manages groups of financial assets 1o achieve its business objective. The Group’s business
mode[ is not agsessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portiolics and is based on observable factors such as:

*  How the performance of the business model and the finaneial assets beld within that business
model are evaluated and reponicd to the entity’s key management personnel;

+  The risks that aflect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and

= The sxpacted frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected seanarios without taking “worst case’
or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account, 1f cash flows after initial recognition are realized in g way that
is different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not chenge the classification of
the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporstes such information when
assessing newly originated or newiy purchased financial assets going forward.

Estimates and Azspmptions

Determinaiion of Fair Values of Financiol Instruments

The Group carries and discloses certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires
extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments. While sipnificant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i, quoted prices, interest rates
and foreign exchanpe rates), the amount of changes in fair value would difTer if the Group wtilized a
different valualion methodology.

Where the feir value of certain financial assets and finencial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position cannot he derived from active markets, they are derermined using
internal valuation techniques using generatly aceepted market valuation models. The inputs o these
madels are taken from observable markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are
used in establizhing fair values. The judgments include of liquidity and madel inputs such as Hquidity
risk, credit risk and considerations volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

The fair values of the Group's financial instrumeénts are disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated
financia! statements.
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Esiimating Allowance jor Impairment Losses on Financial Assets Carried at Amoriized Cost

{Prior to Adapifon of PFRS §)
The Group reviews financial assets carried at amortized cost at each reporting date 1o assess whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated statements ol ineome. Tn particular,
judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash Mows
when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a
nurmber of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in fumure changes to the allowance,

The appregate allowance for impairment losses on receivables and due from related parties amounted
to Bt39.8 million as of Deeember 31, 2017, The carrying amounts of receivables and due from
related parties, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted o B20.7 million as of December 31,
2017 (see Motes 8 and 19).

Extimating Frovition Jor Expected Credit Losces (Upan Adoprion of FFRY U)

The Group uses the peneral approach to calculate expected credit losses for receivables and amounis
due from rslated parties. The Group tracks changes in credit risk and recognizes a lass allowance
based on either a 12-month or lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Informatian about the
Group's expected credit losses is disclosed in Note 23,

1n 2018, the Group did not recognize additional provision for expected credit losses on its receivables
and due from related parties.

As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate allowance for expected credit losses on receivables and due
from related parties amounted to #189.6 million. The receivables and due from retated parties, net of
allewance for expected credit 1osses, amounted to B23.5 million as of December 31, 2018 (see Motes
fand 19).

Estimating impairment aof Eguity Securities Clasrified as AFS Financial Assets (Prior to Adoption of
PRRS 9

The Group trems quoted equity securities classified as AFR financial assets as impaired when there

has been a significant or prolonged decline in the feir value below (ts cost or where other objective

evidence of impairment existz. The determination of what is “zignificant’ ot “prolonged’ requires

Judgment,

The Group generalty considers a decline in fair valbee of preater than 20% as sipnificant and a decline
inn fair value for a pericd of mere than six months as prolonped. In addition, the Group evaluates
other factors, including nermal volatility in share price for quoted equilies and the future cash Naws
and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

For unquoted shares, the Group estimates the expected future cash flows from the investment and
caleulates the amount af impairment as the difference betwesn the present value of expected fuure
cash flows from the investment and its acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the consolidated
slaternenis of comprehensive income.

No impairment on unguoted eguity securities classified as AFS financial assets was recogmized in

2017, The carrying value of the Group's unguoted equity AFS financial assets amounted to
P4£.3 million as of Pecember 31, 2017 (s2e Nate 107,
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Estimating Impairment of Debt Secnrities Classified as Financial Assets at FVOCT (Upan Adoption af
PFRY G

The {iroup assesses the counterparty’s ability to comply with the contractual ebligations to pay out

principal and interest. Further, the CGiroup assesses whether the credit risk on that finaneial

instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition.

For debt instruments at FYOCT, the Group applies the low ¢redit risk simplification. At every
reporting da, he Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk
using &) reasonable and supportable information that is svailable without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Ciroop reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument.

The Group's debt instrument in FYOCI comprisc salely of top investment grade bonds that are
graded by top credit rating agencies and, therefore, are considered te be low credit risk investments.
It is the Group's pelicy to measure ECLs on such instruments on 2 12-month basis. However, when
there hes been a significant increase in credit risk since oripinatian, the allowance will be based on
the |ifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings from the top credit raling agencies both to determine
whether the debt instrument has significantly incrcased in credit tisk and to estimate ECLs,

The Group récognized impairment loss for debt sceurities classified as financial assets at FVOCH
amounting to £0.% million as at December 31, 2018 (see Mote 10). The carrying value of debt
securities classified as financial assets at FYOCT amounted 1o 2497 mitlion a3 of December 31,
2018,

Valuation of Unquoted Equity Securities at FVYQUT
Valualion of unquoted equity investments i normally based on the following:

»  recent arm’s length market transaclions,

»  current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,

s the expecied cash flows discounted at current rates applicable or terms with similar terms and risk
characteristics; or

s other valuation models.

In valuing the Group’s unquoted squity instruments at fair value, management applied judgment in
selecting the valuation technique and comparable companies and used assumptions in estimating
future cash flows from its equity instruments considering the information available to the Group.

Unguoted squity securities at FYOCT amounted to B36.4 end £46.3 million as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively (see Note L,

Estimating impaivment of Investment in Associafes

The Group performs an impairment review on its investments in associates whenever an impairment
indicator exists. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the investments. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows of the
investments and to make use of a suitable discount rate to caleulate the present value of those future
cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment in shares of stock amounted to #286.8 million and £320.2 million
as of December 31, 201 8 and 2017, respectively. Allowance for impairment losses on the Group's
investments in associates amounted to B94.8 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (see Note 9).
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Estimeting Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group determines whether prepayments and other current assets, investments in assaciates,
prapery and equipment, investmenl properties, and other noncurrent assels are impaired whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable.

The factors that the Greup considers important which could trigger an tmpairment review inciude the
following:

s  Significant underperformance relative to expeeted historical or projected future operating results;

o  Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business, and

» Sipnificant negative industry er economic trends,

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. The fair vatue less costs to sell is the amount obtainable {rom the sale of an assetin an
arm's length transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the cantinuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end
of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets ar, if it is not possible, for
the cash-generaling unit to which the asset belongs.

The Ciroup has not identified any cvents or chabges in circumstances that would indicate an
impairment of its nonfinancial assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2017 as fallows:

018 2017
Prepayments and other current assats F33,652,221 B18.618,930
Property and equipment (see Note 12) 8,927,081 10,957,118
Investment properties (see Noie 13) 399 ROT7 554 228,932,135
Oither noncurrent assets (see Note 14) 743,580 38,570,310

443,220,436 Fa97,078,493

Estimating Usefid Lives of Property and Equipntent ang Investment FProperfies

The estimated usef] lives used as bases for depreciating the Group's property and equipment and
investment properties were determined on the basis of manapement’s assessment of the period within
which the benefits of these assets are expecied to be realized taking into account actual historical
information on the use of such assets as well as industry standarde and averapes applicable to the
Giroup's assets.

The nel baok value of the Group’s property and equipment and investment properties are disclosed in
Motes 12 and 13 1o the consclidated financial statemenis,

Estimating Retivement Benefit Obligation

The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of
certain agsumptions used by actuary in calculating such amounts. In accordance with PFRSs, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.
While the Group belizves that the assumpions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences
in the actual experience or sighificant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement
benefit obligation. The cammying armount of the Group's retirement benefit obligation as of

MRIRRIA AU
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December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to B12.9 milllon and B12. | million, respectively
(zee Mote 16),

Ertimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tac Aszets

Defarred income tax asset is recagnized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management estimate is required to
determine the armount of deferred tax asset that ean be tecognized, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies. The Group did not
recognize delerred income tax assets on its deductible temporary differences amounting to

E250.6 million and B263.3 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as managemeant
belizves that sufficient future taxable income will not be available ta allow afl or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilized (ses Note 17).

Estimating Provision for Legal Obligaiion

The estimate of pravision for legal obligation has been developed by manapement. The management
currently does oot believe the provision will have a material adverse effect on its financial position
and results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materiatly
affzeted by chanpes in the estimates of provisions. In 2411, the Group recognized provision for Jegal
obligation amounting to #5.0 million for ¢laim arising from lawsuit which is either awaiting decision
by the courts or is subject to settlement obligations (see Note 22). No additional provisions wete
made in 2018, 2017 and 20186.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018 2017
Cash on hand and with banks $57,082,264 P33,551,88]
Short-term placements 514,188,762 720,013,553

B571,371,026 B153,565,434

Cash with banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term placements are fixed
rate time deposits denominated in United States {US) doller and Philippine peso, made for varying
periods of np to three months er less, depending on the immediate cash requiremetus of the Group,
and eam interest at (he respective bank rates ranging from 1% to 4.83% in 2018 and 1.0% 10 2.5% in
2017,

Interast income eamed from these bank deposits and short-term placements smounted to
#13.6 million, 14 % millicn and P17.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financigl assets at FVTPL consist of lizled sacunities which are traded in the PSE, New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) and Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HKEx). Fair values of lisied equity seeurities
are based on quated market prices (n the PSE, NYEE and HKEx.

The carrying value of financial assets at FVTPL includes net unrealized losses on fair value changes

amounting fo P14.2 million and net unrealized gaing on fair value changes amounting to
£17.4 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

AT
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Net cumulative unrealized gains on financial assels at FVYTPL amounted to B29.8 millicn and
P44.0 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The rollforeard of the Group's investments in financial assets at FYTPL is as follows:

2018 017

Cost:

Balances at beginning of year BINS, 758,965 P54,180,933

Additions 67,342,773 63,978,749

Dispozals - (9406737

Balances at end of vear 176,101,738 108,758 3455
Changes in fair value:

Balances at beginning of year 41,058,734 28,338,801

Fair value gains (losses) {14,162 960) 17,421,323

Disposals - (2,301,390

Balanecs at ond of year 29,795.7M4 43,958,734

B205,8%7,512 B152 717,639

Dividend income earned on investments in financial assets at FYTPL amounted to B30 million,
P14 million, and B0.9 million in 2018, 2017 and 2014, respectively, presented as “Dividend income”
in the consolidated staternents of income.

The Group recognized gain on disposel of financial asset 4t FV'I'PL amounting to nil, #1.3 miilion,
and B1. L million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Receivables
2018 217
Third parties:

Accrued inkerest 87,447,413 B§,656,595
Rent receivables (see Note 22) 618,805 613,138
Receivable from PDIC - 500,000
Others 177,441 475,600
Balances at end of year R,243,749 8,244,133

Less allowance for expected credit
logses/impaitment losses 261,368 941,368
p7,282,381 #7,283,963

Acerued interest from thind parties pertain to interests earned on investments in short-term
placements, shori-term investments and debt securities classified as financial assets at FYOCI that ars
expected to be collected within one year.

On August 24, 201 5, the Monetary Board (MDB) placed Xavier-Punla Rural Bank, Ine. (ihe Bank)
under the managerment of the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corporation (PDIC). As of

December 31, 2017, the Group believes that it would be able to recover BO.S million from PDIC.

The Group was able to collect BD.S million from PDIC in January 20138,
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The Group recognized provision for expected credit losses/impairment losses on receivables
amounting to nil, P01 million and B2.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, presented as
part of “Impairment losses on receivables and due from related parties” in the consolidated statemenlts
of income,

g,

Investments in Associates

2018 27
Acquisition cost P193,760,135 2193 760,135
Accumulated equity in nel eamings;
As at beginning of year 221,283,475 (96,218,545
Share in net income {losses) of associates £13,972,200) 40, 864 501
Diwvidends declared by associates {44,746,750% (41,313,673)
Share in other ¢omprehensive income
of associates 8210945 25827365
Cumulative ranslation adjustment 13,757.83% (313,263}
As gt end of vear 184,523 306 221283475
ATR293 441 415043610
I.ess allowance for impairment losses {94,830,11%) {94,830 129}

P283,463312  P320.213,48]

The Group has equity imtevest io the following associates as of December 31:

Carrying Amount of

Country of  Percentage of Investments

Incorporation Crwnership 2018 2017

MUDC Philippines 43% #4,830,129 24,830,12%
Less allowance
for impairment

losses (94,830,129 (94,830,129

PTC Phitippines 30% 125,166,018 264,622,380

BFQ Philippines 35% 61,625,529 55,591,101

H2E6,791,547 #320,213,4%]

PIC

PTC is 2 global service company outsourcing information technology services from the Philippines.
Among others, it offers software servicing, meintenance, testing and develapment to various clients,
mostly in the US,

Dividends

On February 13, 2018, PTC declared cash dividends amounting te $2.1 miflion or $0.0015 per share
of the gutstanding stocks as of reeord date Januery 31, 2018, Dividends shall be payable before
June 30, 2018 (see Note 19).

On February 14, 2017, PTC declared cash dividends amounting to $2.1 million or $0.0015 per share

of the autstanding stocks as of record dete January 31, 2017. Dividends shall be payable before
June 20, 2017 {5ee Naote 190
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PTC did not deelare dividends in 2016,

The Grroup™s share in the dividends declared amaunted to B32.5 million, 308 millian and nil in
2018, 2017 and 2014, respectively.

The suminarized financial formation of PTC is az follows (*000%

2118 2017
Currenl assets P73 160 PEZ2. 166
Moncurrent asscts 191,345 233,251
Total assets 564,508 1055417
Current liahilities 123,261 172,578
Noncurrent liabilities 20,537 19.514
Tatal liabilities 143,790 192,092
Equity 70,709 863,325
Gross revenue 1,090,760 1,581,640
Cperating profit {loss) (116,279) 100,313
Met income (lass) (107,521 2,123
Group’s share i net income {lass) (32,25T) 26,797

The difference berween the carrying value of the investment in PTC against the share in net assets of
PTC represents goodwill at acquisition date.

BPd

BE() is a provider of aceounting and finance related services such as payroll, internal audit, payables
processing and others. Itis invalved in cutsourcing business process services in the Philippines,
servicing many of the multinational and large corporations operating in the country.

Dividends

On December 18, 2018, BPO declared cash dividends amounting to B35.0 million or B44.87 per shate
af the cutstanding stocks as of record date December 17, 2018 Dividends shal! be pavable on or
before August 31, 2019 (sce Nots 19).

On December 12, 2017, BPO deelared eash dividend: amaunting to B30.0 million or B107.00 per
share of the vuistanding stocks as of record date December 12, 2017, Dividends shall be payable on
or before June 30, 2018 {scc Note 19).

On December 12, 2016, BEQ declared cash dividends amounting to #60.1 million or B77.00 per share
of the outstanding stocks as of record date December 12, 2016, Dividends shal! be payable on or
before June 30, 2017,

The Group’s share in the dividends declared amounted to ®12.25 million, #10.5 million and
B2].0 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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The summarized financial miormation of BPCH 5 as follows {000}

2018 am7
CutTent asscls F160,725 H]70,334
Moncurrent assels 74,420 63,610
Total assets 235,145 233,944
Current liabilitics 105,619 122,407
Noncurrent liabilities 13,295 12,548
Total liahilities 118,914 134,953
Equity 116,231 08,991
{Jross revenue 175,548 151,892
Cperating profit 69,754 58,572
Met ingcome 51,241 40,193
Group's share in net income 18,284 14,068

The difference between the carrying value of the investment in BPO against the share in net assets of
BPO represents goodwil] at acquisition date.

MUDC

The Group has a 43% interest in MUDC. As of December 31, 2018, MUDC bas been
non-operalional since its incarporation. Heowever, it has obtained the nocessary requirements for the
signing of a supply agreement with a public utility firm and a purchase agreement with ertain oil
companies, As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, MUDC has project development costs of

#2071 miliion. The recoverability of these assets and the ultimate success of MUDC's future
operatiens arc dependent upon the signing of these agreements. The foregoing eonditions indicate the
existence of a material uncerainty which may cast significant doubt on MLIDC s ability to continue
as a going coocern and the recoverability of the Group's significam investment in MUDC,

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, MUDC has incurred significant losses, which resulted in capital
deficiency ameunting 1o P257.2 million. Losses amounting to #93.6 million were not taken up in the
consolidated financial statements 2s of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

The Group has investment in MUDC amounting to £94.8 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
and advances to MUDC amounting to 125.6 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, The Group
has assessed that its investment in MUDC amounting o 294 8 million as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 and its advanees to MUDC amounting to B125.1 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
impaired since menagement believes that it will ne longer recover from such investment and
advances. Management is not required to infuse more capital to MUDC and that losses are limited 1o
the invested additional advances as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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10. Finanela! Assets at FYOCT and AFS Financial Aszets

2018 2017
Quoted:
Dbt vecoritics - al fair value, net of allowance for
impairment boss of 2.1 million in 2018 #260,8953,437 P319,606,656
Equity securities 132,408,290 155,414,557
Lnguated aguity securities 36,411,677 4K,330,185
429 872 404 521,351,608
Less currant portion 6,945,819 40,784,002
P411,9246,585 P430,567,606
Movements in finencial essets at FVYOQCI/AFS financial assets are gs follows:
2018 2017
Balance at January 1, 2018, as previously reporied P B40],874,992
Effect of adoption of FFRS 9:
Reclassification from AFS {financial asscis 1o
financial asseis 21 FYQC] 521,351,608 -
Balance at January 1, 2018, as restated 521,351,608 401,874,952
Additions 22,141,284 214,648,554
Changes recognized in profit or loss 1,008,589 15,704,866
Movements in net unrealized valuation gain {loss) (61,004,886) 50,016,280
Disposaly (53,624,101} {160,993 .084)
Balances at end of vear #420.871.404 £521,351,608

[nvestments in debt securities are denominated in various foreign currencies and are stated at fair
value based on quated prices. Changes in market values are included in the conselidated statements
of comgprehensive inceme, The debt securities bear fixed interest rates ranging from 2.71% to
1002% in 2018 and 2.7]1% 10 1 3.63% in 2017 and 2016, Maturity dates of the investments range
from 2017 to 2024, [nterests on investments are received and settbed semi-annually n i

dencminated currency,

Investments in equity securities cartied at fair valus consist of invesiments in quoted and unquoted
shares of stock which the Group has nefther control nor sipmficant influence. The fair market values
of the listed shares are determined by reference to published queotations in an active market as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017. For unlisted shares of stocks that do not have readily avatlable marker
vatues, the Group uses valuation for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measorement 15 directly or indirectly obeervable,
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Maovements in the net unrealired valuation gains on financial assetz at FVOCYAFS financial assets
are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance at January 1, 201 8, as previously reported P £23,302,261
Effects of adoption of FFRE 9;
Reclassification of net unrealized valuation gains on
AFS financial assets to financial assets at
FYOCl 71,224,928
Expected credit losses 2,015,025 -
Balance at January 1, 2018, a5 restated 73,239,857 23,302,261
Changes in fair value {49,972.452) 54,335,503
Expected credit losses 154,082 -
Drisposals (41.474) (8,412 5368)
Berlances at and of year P13.%79.413 B71,234 828

Allowance for impairment losses on financial assets at FVOCT debt instruments/AFS financial assets
amouanied to 82,1 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Met unrealized valuation gains on finencial assets at FWYOCI attributable to equity holders of the
Farent Compeny amounted to #6.8 million in 2018 and nat unrealized vaivation gains on AFS
financial assets attributable to equity holders of the Parent Comipany amounted to B63.] million as of
Deceraber 31, 2017, ’

Irterest earned on debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOC] amounted to 19,5 million in
2018 and interest earnaed on debt securities classified as AFS financial assets amounted to

£22.0 million and #21.8 miliion in 2017 and 2014, respectively, presented as *Interest income™ in the
conselidated statements of income,

Dividend income earned on eguity securities classified as financial assets at FYOC] amounted to
B{.7 mitlion in 20! 8 and dividend income earmed on eguity securities classified as AFS financial
aszels amounted B1.0 million in 2017 and 2016,

The Grouwp disposed certain financial assets al FVOCT and mecapnized loss from disposal amounting
tc £1.3 million in 2018 and gains from disposal of AFS financial assets amounting w ®2.2 millicn
and B4.3 miilion in 2007 and 2015, respectively.

il,

HTM Investments

On April 4, 2014, the Group soid HTM investments with a carrying value of B 7.8 million resulting
to a gain from disposal amounting to B0.2 million. Consequently, the remaming pordolio of HTM
investments with 2 carrying amount of #213.9 million was reclassified 10 AFS financial assers and
was remeasured at fair value. The fair value gain from remeasurement amounting to 4.5 million was
recognized in OCL

In 2017, all HTM investments of the Group were sold resulting to gain on dispoesal of HTM
tvestnents amounting to PO.2 million recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
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12, Property and Equipment

Office
Furniture,
Condéminium Transportation Fixtures end Mg
- Condominium _Improvements Equlpment Equiprent Tuotal
Cost:
Balances at beginning of vear F10,75%.943 9,012,991 F10.263,079 H7LER) 3N 47,4511
Addlons - - - a7 1,177
Transfer to invesiment property
[se¢ B 133 - (258229, - - [158,%1%)
Balinces af énd ol year 2,755843 8,764 162 1026307 2865479 41 648 547
Accomulated deprecialian:
Balances at Beginning of year 14321915 836732 &, 40% 850 1819691 3,548,197
Depreciation AT T 543 847 759 14141 1,773,285
Halances st end gf vear 15,152,152 § 387,280 T3ITHLE 2 844,432 135, 721,4%2
Net book valurs RS A03, 791 174,781 £ 925 401 F11 047 #E. 927,041
O ffiee Fumiture,
Condominens  Transporiancn Fixlures and 017
Condominiem  Improvements Equinmenl Equipmeni Tatal
Cost:
Balences at beginning of year £10,755,941 PR, 764,062 Pg 355227 P2 843 Ga0 P40 758 5T
A dditions = 253 020 1,867 857 10642 1,46 428
Brlances gt end of year 10,755,943 9,022,099 L0 263,079 2,863 302 42 505,315
Acournulated deprecaation:
Balances a1 bepinning of year 13,491,678 3.246,185 5. Tob,624 1,786 %52 30,291,349
Depreciation 410237 547 TN 238 31329 1,636,845
Halances a1 end of yeer 14121915 8,316,731 & 4R9.B50 2815691 31 9481597
™ef hook values 5,414, 02% PFIG6,250 B3, 173220 B43 611 PI0SS7.118

Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that are still in use amountad ta 2153 millian in

2018 gnd 2017,

13.

lovestment Propertles
2018
Construetion-ln-
Land Condominium progTESs Tuotal
Coat:
Balances at beginnlkg of year B46,319,625 BI15815,620 P WIGL, 135,145
Additions (see Note 14) - - 179,490,576 179,490,576
Transfer from property and
equipment {sea Noke 12) - 158,919 — 258,929
Balances at end of year 46,319 6245 114,074,544 179,490,574 441,584,750
Accumulaced depreeiation;
Balances at beginning of year - 33,203,111 - 35203011
Drepraclation B, 784,085 — 8,784,085
Ealances at end of vear - 41,987,194 — 41,987,196
Net ook values F46.319,615 B174,087.353 B179490.576 P09 897 554
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17
[and {andpminium Total
Cast

Dalances al beginaing of year B, 314 623 E156, 763,740 P183,082.424
Additions - To051.821 79,051,821
Balunces ul end of year 46,319,625 235815620 252 134 244

A ccumulated depreciauon:
Baetances al begianing of year - J4 535 513 14535512
Depreciation - B.5607, 558 B 667 598
Belanees 2t end of year - 332051101 15,203,111
Mel bowk valnes R4 319 625 PIB2 A 12 500 P223932 134

Condominium units are being leased to third parties and other related parties as office space. The
investment properties generated rent income amounting to 223 2 million, 8208 million and #14.0
million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 22). Direcl operating expenses arising from
investrnent properties that generated rent income include depreciation and condominium dues which
amounted to #11.0 million in 2018 and 2017 and #6.5 million in 2016,

The assessed frir value of the investrnent properties amopunted to B1,295 3 million and B512.2 million
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The fair values of the investment properties are
based on valuations performed by an accredited independent value. The valuation model in
aecordance with that recommended by the Intemational Valuation Standards Commines has been
applicd.

The Group uged the Bales Comparizon Approach in determining the fair value of the investment
properties. This is & comparative approach to value that considers the sales of similar or substitute
properties and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving
comparison,

The appraiser gathers dala on actual sales and/or listings, offers, end renewal options, and identifies
the similarities and differences in the dala, manks the data aceording to their relevance, adjusts the
gsales prices of the comparable o account for the dissimilarities with the unit being appraised, and
forms a conelusion ag 1o the mes| reagonable and probable market value of the subject property.

The elements of comparison include location, physical characteristics, available wtitities, zoning, and
highest and best use. The most variable elements of comparisan are the gite’s physical characteristics,
which Include its size and shape, frontage, topography and location.

The fair value is estimated under Level 3 inputs. The significant unabservable inputs to valuation of
investment propertias rangss from 265,000 - B1,000,000 per square meter,

The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no centractual
chligations 1o either purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance
and enhancerments.

. Other Noncurrent Assets

2018 2017
Deposit on contracts P- R37 811,750
Others 743,580 758,560

#743 580 £38.570,310
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In 2018, deposits on contracts amounting to P37.8 million were applied for the acquisition off
condominiom units ¢onsidered as investment property (see Note 13).

. Accounts ["avable and Accruwed Expenses

pli] ] o7

Dleposils payable {see Note 22) P7.041,272 PS5 420,600
Accrued professional fees 1475318 1,321,832
Government pavables 1,149,942 1,138,869
Accounts payable 445,706 3122197
¥10,112,238 B11,003,597

Deposits payabie pertain to deposits made by tenants for the lease of an insignificant portion of the
Group’s condominium spaces and will be refunded to the lessee after the lease term,

Accounts payable are penerally noninterest-bearing payables to third party contractors with a credit
lerm of 30 days.

16, Retiremenl Henelit Obligation

The existing regulatory framewotk, Republic Act (RA) No. 7641, The Retirement Pay Law, requires a
provision for retirement pay to qualitied private sector employees in the absence of any retirement
plan in the entity, provided however that the employee's retirement benefits under any collective
bargaining and other agrsements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does
net require minimum funding of the plan.

The Group has an unfunded defined beneiit pension plan covering substantially all its regular
ermnployees. Retirement benefits under the plan are based on a percentage of latest monthly salary and
years of credited service,

The table below summarizes the components of retirement benefil expense recognized in the
consolidated statements of income, the remeasurement effects recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and the amounts recognized in the consclidated statements of
financial position,

2018 2017 2016
Balances at beginning of year F12,075.212 PI11,305 731 10,918,203
Eetirement benefit expense in profit or
loss: -
Current service costs Ths, 126 T65.337 BOG,230
Interest costs 614,751 543,683 469,485
1,379,877 1,309,020 1,269,716
Remeasurements in other comprehensive
mneome:
Experience adjustment (170,110} (490,024} {778,473
Changes in financial assumplions (357,250} (49,515) {77,452}
Changes in demographic assumptions - - {26,353}
{527,360} (539,539 (382,27%)
Balances at end of year F12,927,729 B12075.212 B11,305,731
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Actuarial gains on retirernent benefit obligation attributable 1 the equity holders of the Parent
Company amounted to B0 4 million as of December 31, 2018 and 201 7.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligation for the Group's

retirement plan are as follows:

2018 2017 It
Discount rates 7.30% 5.10% 4.00%
Saiary increase rates 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The sensitivity analysis below hes been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2013 and 2017, assuming
if all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on defined benefit obligation

2018 0017 2016
Discount rales +50 bagis points {E70,075) (P90,308) (B93,653)
-5 basiz points 73,811 D5,R48 09,255

Future salary increases

+50 basis points P48,590 B71,572 R76,316
-50) hasis points (45,4410) {67.039) {71,710)

The average duration of the retirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is

5 vaars.

Shown below is the maturity profile analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2018 2007 2016

More than ] year to 5 years
More than 5 years o 10} years
More than 10 years to 15 years
More than 15 years to 20 yvears

F13,593.520 12,808,743 10,687,999

1,005,504 542288 6,500,675

343315 363,441 -
4,631 708

R10,574,047 £13,714472 B17, 188604

17. Income Taxes

The Group’s provision for current income tax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018
Regular corparate ineome tax Bl 415,264 P10,7B8,556 £7.213.243
Final tax on interest income 1,446,789 2,609,051 2,987,102

6,065,053 B13,397,607 B10,200,543

AR RE RSN
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The reconcitiation of income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to provision for income
tax shown in profid or loss & as follows:

2018 2017 2014
Al statalory tax rate of 30%: B7,293.919 F27,2331.378 F43 22179
Additions o freductiong in} incame
tax resulting from:
Movermnent in unrécognized het
deferred income (ax asset {(3,789,070) {318,599, (8,248 204)
Equity ir net Josses (earmings) of
r associales 3,190,982 £12,259,350} {21.878.704)
' Mondeductible expenses 2,888 469 195,174 {673,620)
Interest income alrcady
subjected to final tax (1,567.615) {4 062,935} (4,580,384
: Wontaxable dividend jngome (1250713 {110,455} (177 RO
X P7,591.624 BIT,378,153 #I5T1,364

The Group’s net deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

1018 2M7
Recognized in prafit or loss
Deferred income tax liabiiities on:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains Be,981,331 82,877,354
(Jains on fair value changes of foreign :
financiel assets at FY TPL 2,764,443 &, 791,083
Deferred income tax assets on:
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables,
due from related parties and AFS financial
assets (6,038,927 (3,807,927)
Retirement benefit obligation (3,715,408) (3,301,445)
Accrued rent (281,893) (576,090)

(1,190,454) (3,017,025)

Recogrized in OC!
Defemred income tax lizbility on net unreslized

valuation gains on financial assets at FYOCI 6,083,740 17,136,622
i Deferred income tax asset on actuarial loss on
: retirement bencfit obligation (162,911} {321,115}
5,020,829 16,815 503
Wet deferred income tax liabilities B4,730,378 B3, 798 478

Mo deferred income tax assets were recognized for the following deductible temporery differences as
it is not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred
mncomne thy assets o be utilized:

1013 207
Allowanee for impairment Josses on due from
related parties #150,796,5T% P16l 426,811
Allowance for impairment losses en invesiment
inan associate 94,830,129 94 830129
Provision for legal obligation £.000,4H0 5,090 00

B230,526,708 P263,256 940

D
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18, Equity

a. Commen Stock

.

In accordance with SRC Rule 638, as Amended {201 1), Annex 68-D), below is a summary of the
Group's track record of registration of securities,

Number of shares registered Isswednffer price  Date of approval
Comrnon shares 1,000,000,000 .01 December &, 1982
Commen sharcs O 000,000, 00 B.01 July 28, 1997

The details of the Group™s capitat stock {number of shares and amounts} are as {ollows:

2013 207
Commin stock - 1 par value
Class A
Authorized - 600 miliion shares
lzsued - 292,610,118 shares 292,410,118 I 610,118
Class B
Authorized - 400 million shares
Issued - 189,217,535 shares 189,217,535 189,217,535

P481,827,653 P481,827,653

Class A and B common stockholders enjoy the same rights and privileges, except that Class A
shares may be owned by, transferred to and subscribed only by Filipine citizens or corporations,
partmerships and associations organtzed under the laws of the Philippines, of which 60% of the
commeon stoeck outstanding is owned by citizens of the Philippines. Clasz B shares may be issued,
transferred or sold to any person, corporation, partnership or association regardless of nationality.

In 1979, the registrant listed with the PSE (or its predecessor, Manila Stock Exchange) its
comman steck under its pravious name, Ultrana Energy and Resource Corporation, where it
offered 1,000,000,000 shares ta the public at the issue price of BO.OT per share.

On July 28, 1997, the SEC approved the increase in the Group's authorized capital stock from
14,000,000,000, divided inta 6,000.000,000 Class A common shares with par value of

#0.01 per share and 4,000,000,000 Class B common shares with par value of P0.01 per share to
1,000,800,000 cornmen shares, divided into 600,000,000 Class A common shares with par value
of P] per share and 400,000,000 Class B common shares with par value of Bl per share.

On November 26, 2000, the BOD approved the issuance, out of the authorized common stack, of
192,413,090 shares at 81 par value which will be offered through a pre-emptive stock rights issue
and detachable stock warrants, as follows: (a) 96,206,543 shares consisting of 58,377,278 Class
A shares and 37,829,267 Class B shares, to be offered in two trenches, the First Tranche
consisting of 48,103,272 shares of stock and the Second Tranche consisting of 48,103,273 shares
of stock, o which each stockholder may subseribe on a pre-emptive rights basis, and (b) the
balance of 26,206,545 shares to be offered through detachable stock warrants, which shall entitle
each stockholder to subscribe 1o one share of stock for every ope share of stock of the same class
that such stockholder subscribe to out of this stock rights issue.
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The Group's application te list additional 192,413,090 commeon shares with a par value of
] per share through pre-emptive rights issue and detachable subscription warrants was approved
by the PSE on February 27, 2002 and by the SEC on April 5, 2002,

The exercise periods and expiration dates of the Group’s subscription warrants are as follows:

Mumber Faercise Expiration
of Shares Periods Drates
First Tranche:
{lass A commen shares 29,188,639 June 4, 2002 1o
Class B comimon shares 15914633 June 3, 2007 Jung 3, 207
48,103,272
Second Tranche:
Class A common shares 29 188,639 May @, 2003 to
Class B commen shares 15,914,614 May B, 2008 May 8, 2008
A%, [03,27]
6. 206,545

Full payment of each subscription under the First Tranche was made within the offer period
approved by the PSE and the SEC, and the full payment of each subscription under the second
ttanche shall be due and payable one year from the last day of the offer pericd. With the full
subscription of the Pre-Emptive Rights Stack Qffering, the Group's cutstanding comemon stock
increased to 431,032,728 common shares of stock, consisting of 291,886,391 Class A common
shares and 189,146,337 Class B common shares, all with par value of P1 per share.

With the complete exercise of all Detachable Stock Warrants, the Group will have an outstanding
common stock af 577,239 273 shares, consisting of 350,263,668 Class A common shares and
216,975,604 Class B common shares, all with par value of B1 per share, However, as of
Deecmber 31, 2007, 723,727 Class A comman stock warrants and 71,198 Class B common stock
warmants were exercised and 28,464,912 Class A common stock warrants and 18,843,435 Class B
common stock warrents expired. Az of December 31, 2008, 29 188 539 Class A common stock
warrants and 18,914,634 Class B common stock warrants expired due 1o non-exercise of stock
warrants before expiration date. After the expiration of the said warrants, the Group's
cutstanding common stock amounted to P481,827,653 with additional paid-in capital of

#8144 759,977 There have been no movements since 200%,

The Parant Company has 474 and 483 stockhelders as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

Treasury Shares

The Grﬂﬁp’s treasury shares pertains to shares of the Parent Company acquired or held by its
subsidiaries. For consolidation purposes, the costs of these shares are presented under ths
“Treasury shares” account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial
position.

In 2417, PIE] purchased 239,560 additional shares of the Parent Company with a total cost of

Pl 3 m1]11an These are composed of 159,260 Class A shares and 80,300 Class B shares, costing
P0.9 million and B4 millian, respectively.
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In 2018, PIEI purchased §68,0(10 additional shares of the Parent Company with a tatal eost al
202 million. These are compaosed of 126,000 Class A shares and 42,000 Class B shares, costing

P0.6 millinn and P02 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group's treasury shares are as follows:

Shares Amaount
2018 2017 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year 47,874,387 97,634,827 P1#0,946,956 P99,669.477
Additions 168,000 239,560 B30,320 1,277,474
Balance at end of vear 95,042,387 57,874,387 BIGL,777,276 B100,945.956

Retrined Earnings

Retained samings is restricted to the extent of the acquisilion price of the treasury shares
amounting to B101.8 million and #1009 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The batance of retained eamings includes the accumulated equity in net earnings
of the subzidiaries and associstes amounting to 1,045 8 million and B913.7 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Such amounts are not available for distribution
until such time that the Parent Company receives the dividends from the subsidiaries and
associates. The balance of retained earnings also includes net cumulative unreakized gains on
financial assets at F¥TPL amounting (o B29 8 million and #44.0 million as s December 31,

2018 and 2017, respectively.

Follawing are the dividends declared and paid by the Parent Company in 201 8, 2017 and 2016:

2018
Peclaration date Record dace Fayment date  Deseriptlan  Dividend per share Total mmopnt
July 26, 2018 Aug. 15, 2018 Sept. 8, 2018 Reguler F0.10 #43,151,765
July 25, 1018 Sept. 14, 1018 Oct. 5, 2018 Regular 0.10 48,182,766
P04 365,531

207
Dheclaraticoh date Record date Payment date Dezcription  Dividend per share  Total amount
July 21, 2017 Aug 23,2017 Sept 15,2017 Regular B 10 R48, i82 765
July 31, 2417 Sept. 21, 2017 Qerid, M7 R:EE]a.r 1N [4] 48 182 766
a6 164,511

201

Declaration date Fepord date Fayment date Descripion Dividend per shere Tatal amount
July 28, 2016 Aug. 22, 2014 Sepu, 19, 2016 Repular PFa 10 P43, 182 765
Muly 28, 2014 Sepr. 21, 2006 el 17, 2016 Regular 0110 48 §B1 766
PS6,365,571

The dividends attributable to treasury shares amounted to #19.6 million in 2018 and 2017, and

F19.5 million in 201 4.

AAEIR G RN




-49 -

19 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, dirzctly or indirectly, the
ather party or exercise significant influcnce over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are alse considered to be related if they are subject to commen ¢ontrel or common
sipnificant influcnce.

A summary of cutstanding balances and transections with related parties, net of allowance for
impairment loss and presented under “Due from related padies” agcount, are as follows:

Transactions  Qutsanding

during the year balinces Terms Londitions
Asraciates:
BEQ
Rent [ncons 1018 ®1,355.721 F141.586 Cn demand: Untgecured;
2H7 1,281,008 18,338 haniniersel- LInimpaired
bearing
Paymol] services expensze 2018 123,543 - COn demand; Unsecured;
T 110,630 - IO R ALEFES- Unimpaired
bearing
LYividengds i018 12,250, 15,749,574 Cn demand; Unsccured;
m7 10,459,523 13, 154.%14 i fi prterast- Utiisnpaired
beasing
PTC
CHvidends (soc Mot 11 1018 32,496,750 - On demand; Unsecured,
2017 30,813 750 - NI Nterest- Unimpaired
beanng
MMUDC
Advances s {1.9%6,505) - O demand, Unsteured;
am? 51,600 - nanintergat-  Lnimpaired
hearing
Under comman comirol
Oither related partics
Advances 0B 7,310 ol d06 Cn demand; [nsecured:
M7 1,17% Er417 noninlerest- Unimpaived
hearitg

218 44,508,519  FL16.254.266
2017 42,760,176 13,460,663

The related party transactions are settled in cash.

Movement in the allowance for impairment losses on due fram related parties are as follows:

. 018 2017
Receivables from related party P149,098,556 P189,103,279
Dividends receivable 15,515,652 13,154,914

204,914,208 202,258,193

Allerwvanice for:

Expected credit losses 148,797,524 -
Impairment losses - 188,797,524
Becovery of allowance for impairment losses (1317.582) -
188,659,942 188,797, 524
Pi6,254,266 PI13,460.669
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Allpwanec for impairment loss is mainly attributable to advances to MUDC, among others,

Corpensation of the key management personnel are as follows;

2018 2017 2016
Salaries and wages 8,493,141 RYT2038 fT.6575,070
Other benefits 1,466,732 1,326,840 1,331,840

£9,333,873 F3,047,878 F5,006,919

20

Earnings per Share

The following table presents informatien necessary to compute the basic/dilutive EPS.

2018 2017 2016
Net income attributable to equity
holders of the parent F11.088,289 E77,729.401 B133 940,563
Weighted average number of erdinary shares
outstanding for basic and diluted EFS 384,033,808 384,060,813 384,192 826
Bacic and dituted earmings per share #i.03 B0 BO.35

The Group has no potential dilutive instruments issued as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016

21, Segment Information
The primary purpese of the Group is to invest in real and persenal propertiss. The Group operates
mainly in one¢ reportable husiness segment which is investing and one reporteble peographical
segment which is the Philippines.

22, Commitments and Contingencies

The Group leases a portion of its condominivm spaces. The Group recognized rental income
amounting to #23.2 million, P20.8 million and #14.0 millien in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respeclively, Future minimum rental income of B13.5 million from existing rental agreements
will be recognized in 2019 and 2020, The lease agreements have terms of one fo two years and
can be renewed upon the written apreement of the Group and the lessees. Deposit payable made
by the tenants amounting to B7.0 million and B34 miltion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, will be returned to the lessees after the lease term (see Note 15).

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group recognized provision for logal obligation
amounting to B5.0 million, for claims arising from lawsuit filed by a third party, which is
awaiting decision by the courts. Probable cost has been estimated in consultation with the
Group’s legal counsel. Manapement and its legal counsels betieve that the Group has substantia
legal and factual bases for its position and is of the opinian that Josses arising from these legal
actions, if any, will not have material adverse impact on the Graup’s financial position and reselts
ol gperations.

AN TRTAER O
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23 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Risk Management Structure

The BOD is mainly respensible for the overall risk management approach and for the approval of
risk stratepies and principles of the Group. It has also the overall responsibility for the development
of risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits. N establishes a forum of discussion of
the Group’s approach Lo risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Financial Rizk Magagement Objectives and Policies

The principal financial instruments of the Group consist of cash and cash equivalents and
investments in equity and deht securities. The main purpose of these finaneial instruments (s to place
excess cash in income-earning invesiments. The Group has various other financial assers and
liabilities such as receivables, due from related parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and
dividends payable which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instrumemis are credit nisk, hquidity risk and market
risk (i.e., interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price tisk)., The Group's management
reviews and approves policies for managing each of theze risks and they are summarized below, The
Ciroup also monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments.

The magnitudes of these risks that have arisen over the year are discussed below,

Credit Risk .
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation.

The Group is exposed Lo eredil risk primarily because of its investing and operating activities,

The Crrpup is exposed Lo ergdil risk arising from the counterparties (i.g., forcign currency
denominated debt instruments, short-term investments, fixed income depesit and receivables) to its
financial assets. '

Credit risk management

In managing credit risk on these investments, capital preservation is paramount. The Group trades
only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. For investments in bonds, finds are invested in
highly recommended, creditworthy debt instraments that provides sansfactery interest yield and
cagpital appraciation. Investments in equity securities represent investments in companies with good
dividend track record, as well a5 capital appreciation. The investment portfolio mix between debit
and equity is reviewed regularly by the Group's President and Treasurer.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financtal assets of the Group, which consist of cash and
cash equivalents, receivables and due from releted parties, the Group's President and Treasurer
monitor these financial assets on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to
itnpairment losses is not significant.

Credit risk exposures

At reporting date, the Group’s maximum exposurs to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
cash end cash equivalents, receivables, due from related parties, financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI
financial assets recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position. The Graup's
financial assets are not covered by collateral fram counterparties.

Credit risk concentration profife
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit rigk.

L T
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Az of Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017, the eredit qualities per class of financial assets are as follows:

Meither pakt due sior impaired 1451 dur bul Individunliy i 11
High Grads Sisadard Greade il i pdared Imprired Toial
Finencial asseda ui smortized cost:
Cusb and cath sguivaleaty® PN 361,707 P [ [ ol 571 381,707
Reeeivables 1251381 - - 361 368 8241748
Due Irom yelated partles 16,254 24 - - 188 659,941 104 904 208
Financial meects at F¥Y TFL 20%5.897.512 - - - 10%,397,512
Flnaotial nasety af FYOC] 470 8T 404 — 1471 140 411,344,644
Pl ﬂﬂ.ﬁﬂ&"ﬂ = B PLIL 1550 P ,-II!JEI._E_IE.I_
*Excluding cash on kond
Meilher pest due nor impaired Pagt due but Individually 2T
High Grads  Standard Cirade nol impaired impaiced Taral
Loans and Teeeivabbes
Cash and cash equivelenes® F753,555434 B o p- P751.556,434
Recei rables TH3 965 - - o6l 368 245333
Crue From refated parlies 13 460, 669 - - 188,797 514 10T 250 193
Financaal assets al FYPL 152,717,698 - - 152,717 694
ATE Onanzial azseby 521151 603 - - 112767 524 474 284
] ,443,3?0@?5 - P PL9ZBEBG, 568  PI64L 250,943

*Exclding cash on hend

High grade financial assets

High grade receivables pertamn i due from related parties and customers with good payment bistory.
These receivables are considered te be of good quality and expected to be collectible without

incurring any credil losses. Other high grade financial assets reflect the investment prade quality of
the investments and/or counterparty and realizability i thus assured.

Standard grade firnancial argels

Receivables from customers who settle their obligations with tolerable delays are clasgified under
standard grade. Other standard grade financial assets are considered moderately realizable. There

are no standard grade financial assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2617,

Impresirmenst ossessment

The main considerations for impairment assessment include whelher any payments are overdue or if
there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of the counterparties. The Group determines
allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis, Among the items that the Group
considers in assessing impairment is the inability 1o collect from the counterparty based on the
contractual lerms of the receivables. Receivables included in the specific assessment are nonmeving
accounts receivable, accounts of defaulted companies and accounts from closed companies.

In 2017, allowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually significant and for
individually significant receivables where there is no objective evidence vet of individual
impaitment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the aging profile of the
receivables, past collection experience and sther factors that may affect collectability,

In 2014, the Group applies a general approach in calculating ECL. The Group tracks changes in
credit risk and recognizes a }oss allowance based on either a 12-month or lifetime ECL at each

repoting date.

LT
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The Group has the following financiel assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:

v (Cash and Cath eguivalents. As of December 31, 2018, the ECL relating to the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is minimal &s these are deposited in reputable banks which have good
bank standing, and is eonsidered to have low credit risk.

*  Recelvables. As of December 31, 2018, the ECL relating to regeivables of the Group is minimal
as these mainly pettain to interest and dividends receivables and have low credit risk.

= Due from Relared Parties. The ECL for amounts due from related parties as of December 31,
2018 perain to the accounts of defaulted companies and accounts from closed cormpanies.

v Debt Instruments measuved o Fair Vedue throvgh Other Comprehensive Income. The Group
recognized aflowance relating to one debt instrument due to the sudden drop of its fair value in
2015, Mo other impairment loss was recognized. The probability of default and loss given
default of each debt instrument were abtained from Bloomberg.

The table below shows the financial assets per stege of allocation and by credit risk rating grades gs at
December 31, 2018:

Stage ] Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Litetime ECL Total
High grade B587 177359 B- F—  ES8T. 177359
Standard grade 257,253,521 £. 716,568 - 265,970,089
Default - - 192, 225653 192,225 653
Ciross camving amount £44 430 REO 8,716,568 192225653 1,045,373,101
Loss ellowance (2,769, L3117 (1,095,573 (E90,753413) (194,618,007
Catrying amount PR41,661,769 P7.620,995 £1,472 240 PESR, TS, 004

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations dug
to shortage of funds.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet it5 liabitities when they are due and this is dong by primarily investing in highly
liguid invesiments and maintaining a significant amount of cash and cash equivalents and pre-
terminable investments in its portfolio,
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The following table summarizes the matunty profile of the Group's financial liabilities as of
Diecember 31, 2018 and 2017 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyzes
the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Group's
vontractual commitments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting pericd te the contractual maturity dates.

018
On demand Within 1 year Maorz than 1 year Totx|
Financial Azgets:
Loans and receivallas

Cash and cash equivalenis P37.062,164 F514.2KE,T62 P- PETLATLD2G

Receivables - T.282,381 - 1182381

Due from related partien 04,292 15,749,974 - 16,254,266
Financial assets 3t FYTPL A0S, 097,511 - - 205,897 512
Financial nasets il FY I — 6945819 411 025,585 d29 4T 404
Total financin] axsely 263,454 368 544 266,936 411926504 1,230,677 58%
Financizi Lighilities:

Accounis payable and seerved - B.962.295 - 0962, 1%

ExpeoyEs?

Dividends payable - 4616812 - 4626811
Tatal financial liabdlktles — 13589, 108 - 13,589, 108
MNer financivl a3sety B163, 484,068 B5ML6TT.RLE P412 926,555 F1,217,088.4481
*Exchuding sianetary pavables

2007
Ot demend Within | year  Morc than 1 year Tosal
Financial Assets:
Loans and recesivables

Cash and cash equivalents P32 551 B8 FT20.011,553 F- BT53,565 434

Roocivibles - T 2B, 965 - T.281 065

Due frony refated parties 105,755 13,154,914 - 13,460,660
Financial assa1s at FYTFI. 132,117,699 - - 152,717,699
AFS financial a<sgts - 440, Th4 (02 180 567 68 321,331 608
Tatal financial assers 186,575,135 THL336 434 480 567 506 1.448.37%.375
Financial Liahilities:

Accounts payeble and accrued

expenses? - 9,864 T2 - %864, 728

Dividends payable - 6 636, 5454 - 6,636 554
Total financial Bahilities - 15,501,282 — 16, 50F 202
Med Tinancial assets P86, 375,335 #764,735,152 F480,567 606 F1.431.3875,09)

* Creheling slatutory payapley

harket Risks

Market risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices.

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates, fareign
cwrrency exchange rates and equity prices. Thers has been no change in the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

a. Interest rate rsk

Cash llow interest rate risk is the nisk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value of 2 financial ingtrument will Nuctuate due to changes in tharket interest rates,

IRBIAET MR
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The Group derives majority of its revenue from interest-bearing placements and bonds.
Accordingly, the Group is subject to financial risk arising from changes in interest rates, The
Group manages interest rate risk by investing mainly on fixed coupon bonds and other
investrnents. By doing so0, the Group is assured of future interest revenues from such
investments,

Since the Group invests on lixed coupoen interest bonds and cther investments, the Group is not
exposed significantly to cash {low interest rate risk,

The following table demaonstrates management’s best estimate of the sensitivity to a reasgnably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's income
before income tax due to changes in fair values of TYOCI financial assets in debt securities (see
Mote 09:

2018 207
Change in interest rale {pereentape)
+10% P16,085,.344 P31.960,6607
—10% {26,085 344) (31,960,667

There is no other impact an equity other than those already affecting the income before income
tax in profit or loss,

Foreign curmeney risk

Fareign currency risk is the tisk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign cumencies.

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into transactions denominated in LS dollar and
alher {oreign currencies. As a result, the Group is subject ta transaction and transletion exposures
resulling from currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Group regularly monitors autstanding
financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and maintaing them at a leve) responsive to the
surrent exchange rates so as te minimize the risks related to these foreign-currency-denominated
assets.

Information on the Group's foreign-curreney-dencminated monetary assets and their Philippine
peso equivalent as of Decemnber 31 are as follows:

1013 207

Exchange Driginal Pesn Exchange Criginal Prso
Currency Rate Cureeney Euivalent Rate Currency Equivelcnt
Cash LsD P52.58 6,854,661 B3&0,418,00) 10,93 5487520 FITIR9LET
ELR 6l L111] 13774 1061 1,120 66,763
TRY %94 - - 13.17 17,150 365,468
HED 6. 7344 5,184 X9l - - -
G0 384704 1,234,811 85,974,921 - - -
Regzivables UsD £2.58 61,471 3,284, TR0 41993 Q0,505 4519114
TRY 1217 - - 1317 6,708 88,344
REL 1507 - - - - -

SGD0D 354708 608,701 13417088

{Farward)

VE T CEEAC
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18 a7
Exchinge Original Peso Exchange Criginal Pesa
_Cumency Rate Currency Equivalent Rate Cuetency Equivalen
Finaneiak asseis al
FVTPL s PS54 2507863 FL}1,563.453 Bao 91 477221 71,757 045
HKD 6.7344 5,564,312 3TAT2 01 .39 4,091 327 26,143,540
ELIR 603110 199,190 11,013 .315) %61 172,168 16,223.934
CHY T.67TE 193,010 1,243 501 - - -
i 3GD 35,4706 B, 766,000 337233180 - - -
£ IF¥ 0,445 146,500 £5,192 -
' Financie! asseis al
Fw Ol UshD 52.58 4507350 281,316,122 - -
NID 1.7137 G14435,047 108,154 950 - - -
HKD 5. 7344 LLER P 1,353,191 - -
i AFS financial
Axsais UsD - - 49.93 BA12, 114 420016 852
TRY - - 1117 278,951 3673 T8
MTL - - 1.68 31075200 51,206,336
H¥.[ - - £.39 1414528 T EIR 834

and 2017,

currendy rates:

The Group has no foreign-curreney-denominated monetary labilities as of December 31, 2018

The foilowing table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in the
foreign currencies exchange rates based on past fareign correncies exchange rates and
macreeconomic forecasts for 2018, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s 2018
and 2017 income before income tax.

The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the peried end for the following percentape change in fareign

2018

Effect on income before tax

Original Currency Percentage Strenplhened Weakened
US dallar 5% P38.544,622 (P38,544,622)
Hong Kong dollar (HKIDY) 5% 1,004 520 (1,994, 530)
Taklwan doRar 5% 2,264,747 (5.264,74T)
E.M.T. eura (EUR) 5% 602356 (602,356)
X Turkish lire {TRY} 5% - -
Singapore Dullar 5% 11.331,264 (22,331,264)
EBrazillan Real 5% - -
Chinese Yuen 5% 112,430 (112,480)
Japanese Yen 5% 3,260 (3,160)
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2017
Effeet on ingome hefore fax

Diriginal Currency Percentage Strengthened Weakenad
US dollar % JE614.274 (38,614,274}
Hong Kong dollar (HKD) 5% 2395121 (2,398,121
Tarwan dollar 5% 26103517 (2,610,317)
E.M.U. curo (EUK) 5% 814,535 (B14,53%)
Turkish lira (TRY) 595 206,380 (206,380}

Therz iz no gther impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the consolidated
statements of income.

c. Equity price Hsk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of the equity indices and the valves of individual stocks. The equity price risk cxposure
arises from the Group's financial assets at FYTPL and investments in AFS equity securities, For
investments in Fhilippine equities, majority of funds are invested in equities [isted in the PSE.

The Giroup measures the sensitivity of its equity securities by using PSE, NYSE and HKEx
indices fluctuations and its effect to respective share prices.

The following table demaonstrates the sensitivity to 4 reasomably possible change in the equity
price based on past price performance and macroeconomic forecast for 2018 and 2017, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's incame before income tax and equity:

Effect on income before fncome rax:

2R 2017
Financial assets af FVTPL:
Change in slock market index {33
+10% $20,589,751 P15 271,770
-10% (20,589,751) (15,271,770}

There is no other impact on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the income
before income tax.

Effect on equity.
2018 2017
fmvesiment in equily securifies (AFS):
Change. in club share prices (%)
+10% ¥0,141,988 210,242,330
—10% (20,141,988) {10,242,330)

24, Fair ¥Yalue of Financial Instruments
The Group has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, raceivables, due

from related parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses and dividends payable, based on their
natiemal ameunts, reasonably approximate their fair values because these are short-term in nature.

L R
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Fair values of finzncial asseis at FVTPL and quoted financial assets at FVOCI are based on price
quotations as at December 31, Z01E.
As of December 31, 2017, unquoted equity securities classitied 85 AFS financial assets are measured
at cost. As of December 31, 2018, financial assets at FYQCI are valued using the adjusted net asset

value method. The underlying assets under this investment are carried at fair valuc.

The following tabtes show Lhe Group®s fair value measurement hierarchy of its financial assets at

FVTPL and FYOC].

28
Carrying ¥alur Level L Leveb2 Level } Tolal Falr Valus
Fipancial eascis 3t FYTIL #205,897 512 F205897.512 B | ] PI05.897.512
Finangial pazcts pt FYO{]
Quoted debi 1ecurilies 260,883 437 160,353,437 - - 160,853,427
Quoied squily e urifies 132605 230} 131 605,29] - - 112405 1H
Uneyuaded equily seeurilles 36413617 — I A1) 63T e d134677
Pi15, 769,916 F595,156,239 P35.413,677 P- P6JS Te%. 916
207
Camrying Value Lewel t Lewel 2 Level 3 Totsl Fair Vatue
Financial assets ot FYTEL £151.717,6599 Ll AP P- [ BL51. 71T 699
Fimancial assets g4 FYOLCT
Quared deti securinies 319 600, 06 115,506, b6 - - 19,408 8466
Quoted equily securities 155,414,557 155,414,557 - - 155,464,357
Ungwited souuity sacurities 46 330385 - 46,330,385 - 46 330 345
674,069,307 PG27, 73k 921 P46 330,104 o #4674 569,307

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 fair value
measvrements. Also, there were no transfers inte and our of Level 3 fair value measurements,

25

Capital Managemeni

The primary objective of the Group®s capital management is to ensure that it maintaing a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value,

The Group manapges its capital structure, which pertains to its equity, and makes adjustment to it, in
light of chanpes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issus new shareg.
The total core capital considerad by the Group as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2007
Common stock P481,827.653 B4B| 827,652
Additional paid-in capital 144,759,077 144 759977
Retained eamings 1,230,524 692 1,297.004,791
Treasiry shares (101,777,276} (100,245 956)
Total core capital 21,755 335046 P 322,545 465

B 0
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26, Changes in Liabilities Arising Irom Financing Activities

The following shows the changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from its financing activities in

2018 and 201 7:

Asat Asat
Januvary i, Dividend  December 31,
2018 Cash flows declaretion 2018

Dividends payable
{Mote 1%} P6,636,554 (P74, 080,891 #74,553,159 5,139,021
Asat Asoat
January 1, Dividend Deeember 31,
2017 Cash flows declaration 2017

Dividends payable

(Nate 18} P&,006,565 (76,188,717  B74,818.705 P 636,554

gL T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
F & ] Prince Holdings Corporation

Sith Floor, Citibank Center

8741 Pasen de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of F & ] Prince Holdings Corporation {the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries included in
this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated April 10, 2019, Our audits were made for the
purpase of forming an opinion on the basic financial stataments taken as a whole. The schedules listed in
the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of
the Pareot Company’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with
Sccurilivs Repulation Code Rule 68, As Amendad (2011), and are not pant of the basic financiai
staiements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial stalements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information
requircd 10 be sct Torth therein in relation to the basic financial statements 1aken as a whole,

SYCIPF GORRES VELAYO & CO.

& 2ovin, s V. R

Leavina Mae V. Chu

artner

CPA Certificate Mo. 99910

SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A (Group A,
Qetober 18, 2018, valid until October 17, 2021

Tax Identification No, 209-316-91 |

RIR Accreditarion No, 08-001998-56-2018,

] Tebruary 2, 2018, valid unti] February 1, 2021

PTR Mo. 7332625, January 3, 2019, Makati City

April 10, 2019
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F & JPRINCE HOLIHNNGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONGLOMERATE MAFP
December 31, 20138
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATOR
December 31, 2018

K 2017
LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS RATIO:
{WwTent assets BA41,403,225 BOE6 430 500
Currenl Liabilities 12,150, 88% 30515287
Current Ratin A9k 32.33
Cuarrenl assets less prepayments and ather curront asscly B30T, 751,004 ROGT 811,765
Current liabilities 12,153 885 30,515,287
Quick Ratio k1% nmn
Tolal asscls P1,957.361,337 B2065.6T71.349
Toal linbilities 3 B1E,989 56,588 977
Solvency Ratio 49.17 3663
FINANCIAL LEVERAGE RATID:
Total liabilities P39.511.989 B, 388 977
Total assels 1,957, 341,337 2005 671,549
Debi Ratio 0.02 .03
Total liahilitics £39.811.%89 B30, 388977
Total equity £.917.549.348 2003, 282 372
Debi-to-Equity Ratic 0.0z 0.03
Interest Covernge N/A A
Total assets #1,057 361,337 £2.065,671,349
Total cguily 1,917,549, 348 2009 282 572
Asset to Equity Ratio 1.02 1.03%
PROFITABILITY RATIO:
Gross Profit Margin [ T3 A
et income F13,045,877 E79,399.773
Revenues and income TRAI4 2 130,827,840
Net Profit Margin B17 (1)
Nct income RLY 085,877 £79,399.773
Total assets 1,951.341,307 2065 671,349
Return on Assels 0.01 004
Met income 13,085,877 B0 399 773
Total equily 1,917,549 348 2,009 282,372
Return on Equily 0.0t 0.0
Currant share price #4.62 F4.52
Earnings per share 0.04 .20
115.5 226

P‘rire."Earn.inEs Ratio




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCBEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

DECLARATION
December 11, 2018

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning £280,085,531
Net income during the year closed to retaiped carnings P60 452173
fese:  Nos-aerualvwveclized income net of fax

Fair value pain on financial assets al FYPL (1,034,511

Met unrealized foreign exchanpe gains other than cash and

cash equivalents —

Net income sctualirealized 61,487,084
Lesv:  Dhividend declaration 896,365,531 {34, 878,447)
Unappropriated retained carnings, s adjusted, ending 251,207,084

Less capital stock

026,587,630

Excess of vapital stock retained earnings svailable for dividend
declaration

(B375,380.546)




F&J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMREER 31, 2018

I he table below prosents the lisl of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) [which consist of
FFRSs. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations] and Philippine
Interpretations Committee (PIC) Q& As elfective as ol Docember 31, 2018:

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS | First-time Adeption of Philippine Financial v
' Reperting Standards
PFRS 2 Shars-based Payment B
Amengdments to PFRS 2, Classification aﬁd
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Tranzactions :
PFRS 3. . Eusincss Combinations v
'FFRQ | o insumn:e Contracts -
| Amendments o PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 2 )
i Financial Instruments with PFRS 4 Insurance
| Contracts
PFRS 5  Non-current Asseds Held for Sale and v
Driscontinued Operations
PFRS 6 | Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral v
-RE.SGLIIEES R
PFRS 7 Fl:i:.;n::ial [nstruments: Disclosures v ]
PFRS S opcmuﬁg ;Swgmmts <
PFRS 9 Financial Instrumenis - v
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Slatements d
(PFRS 11 |Joint Arrangements " ¥
PFRS 12 Disclosure uf[nb:rem_i;l Other Entities
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement o
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts ../ ]
PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 4 ]
Philippine Accounting Stapdards ]
PAS | | presentation of Financial Statcrncats ¥
PAS 2 Inventories o Y
PAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows o v




ol i !
PAN R Aveounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Latimmates and rrors
FAS 10 ! Events after the Reporting Poriod v
PAS 12 “Income Taxes v
L" T R
PAS 16 Prooerty, Plam and Equipment v
PAS 17 Leascs v« |
PAS 19 LEmployes Benefits ¥
I'AS 20 -Accounting lor Governmient Grants and
' Dhsclosurs uqurx'm_'nmmt Assistance
PAS 21 The Elfects of Changes in Forcign Exchange v
Rates
‘PAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 20 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Renefit
Plans
PAS 27 Zcparate Financial Statements
PAS 28 | Imvestments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to PAS 28 Measoring an Associate
or Joint Venture at Feir Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
PAS 19 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies
PAS 32 ‘Financial Instraments: Presentation ¥
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 CInterim Finaneial Reporting
PAS 36 Impairment of Assels v
— - _.{_.
PAS 37 Prowisions, Contingenl Liabilities and Contingent v |
Ausels :
PAS 38 Intangible Assets |
'PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recoenition and ¥ :
Measurement i
e e — = ] !I:
(| PAS 40 Investment Praperty ;
Amendments to PAS 40, Transfers of Investment v
Property
PAS 41 Agriculture

 Philippine Interpretations




Changes in Existing Decommissioning,

Philippine
Interprciation |, Restoration and Similar Liabilitics
TFRIC-] :
Philippine Members' Shares in {o-operative Entities and
Interpretation | Similar Iostrumenis
IFRIC-2
Philippin: | Metermining whether an Arranpgemeni cohlaing a
Interpretation ' Lease
TFRIC-4
Philippine Rights 1o Interests arising from
Interpretation  Decommissioning, Restoration and
1FRIC-5 Enwrmmem‘.al RB]'Iﬂhlhlﬂl.lm‘l. Funds
Philippinc Lmb:lltles ariging from Participating in a Sp-e:clﬁ
ipterpretation Market. Waste Electrical and Elecironic
[ IFRIC-6 Fquipment
Philippine  * Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS
Interpretation | 29 Financial Reperting in Hyperinflationary
IFRIC-7 Economies B
Philippine Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
Interpretaticn
IFRIC-10
Philippine Service Concession Arranpements
Interpredation -
1FRIC-12
" Philippine PAS 15—The Limit on a Defined Beneflt Assel,
Interpretation | Minimum Funding Reguiremanms and their
IFRIC-14 Interacllm
Philippine : Hedgcs of a Net Investment in 8 Foreign
Interpretation | Operalion
IFRIC-16
Philippine Distributions of Mon-cash Assets 10 Cwners
| Interpratation
IFRIC-17
| Philippine | Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Interpretation . Instruments
TFRIC-1%
! Philippine Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 2
Interpegtation | Surface Mine
IFRIC-20
Philippinc | 1evies
Inter pretation
FRIC-21 |




i Interpreiaticn
IFRIC-22
Philippine
Interpretation
S0C-7
Philippine
Interpreiation
SIC-10¢

1Considerstion

Imtroduction of the Euro

Government Assistance-— o Specific Relation 1o
Operaling Aclivilics

Philippinc
Tnterpretation
SIC-13

Philippine
Interpretation
SIC-25
Philippine
Interpretauon
SIC-T7
Philippine
Interpretation
R1C-20

Operating Leases—noentives

Income Taxes—i{ hanges in the Tax Status of an
Lntity o its Shareholders

Evalugting the Substance of Transaclions
Involving the Legal Form of a Leasa

Service Cuncession Arcangements: Disclosures

Philippine
Interpretation
SHZ-32

Intangible Asscls—Web Site Costs

Mate: Standards and mterprelations tagged as “Not Applicable” are those standards and interpretations which were

adopted but the entity has ne significant covered transaction as al and for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017




F & J FRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATLON AND SUBSIDLARIES

SCHEDLILE A —FINANCIAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1014

EXHIBIT »3"

. ¥alue Faxed on }
Fame of lsauing Entity e of Sharen or Amornl S i Market Quatationn | Tncome Received
and Assoriation af Each et Princlpel Amoust Pusement af &1 Balance Sheet and Aceroed
af Bands & Notes Financ|al Foslchon Date

Financial Asset at FYFL;
Bericshirs Hetheway 3,250 shares d Bal 208 F1d 80 209 [
Cxricntel P:I:H:ﬂn.l:l; B L 250 BRE 842 sharss 15,130,664 L5, 130 664 -
AMEIDH, SR LE0 ghares | 12,955 443 19959443 -
The TIX Comipinies 4003 shores 15, 118623 16, 134,623 15 636
Cliina Construction Bandk 162,000 xharss TI25.T45 7225785 132,792
Ligrldman Sachs Giroup §, S ghueres 534011 Aa4.011 l.ﬁ'-‘?__
E‘ﬂﬁ""" and Commercial Bank of 10,26 shares §776,153 6.776,153 46,067
CiliGrour Inc. 1820 shares 4981 913 495151 2,102
Kign Sraop 1 ARS shares 3070276 187028 1,029
Ayl Land 144 {30 sheares 5,846 40 5 44g 400 1257
welis Fargo & Co. 2 M) sheres 4 Ad5 77 4 545,773 240
Anheuses-Busch lnbay 54 L QK shanes 14T a5 AATS WS | Bva0
£ harn Mghile Limied 10,000 shares. 50M 1T 5074370 30,472
HSBC Eboldings 1,786 shares 3,260,553 3 Bad 553 aksd
Ctrip.com Internationel 2,020 sharet T3,874.086 2474 Oh4 1
Sancfi 1,000 shares 4563130 4.563,13D 2111
Avita Corgowanion 4078 shas 1,670,200 3600200 28210
Mecilcw L0, 154 shares 4 e F20 4 (36,520 134 S0
Mpagleng Mot firawp 500,060 shpres 1,090,712 FAL L8, TTs
Eanb of Chins 1105 Colllb shares B 179,079 178002 131, 194
Phikex Mming Corpesion 335323 shares 10586, 145 1.036,14% FLAE L
San Migue] Corparalion A L2, 240 hymres 1,795 250 1,799 280 17,128
San kigwel Corporation B 12 e share 1.832 10K L BX2 HE 17,450
Cadatn Corpacatian 360,000 shares - - -
Singapore Telocommunicaticns Timiied 5 shares LTl I3 201,203 3,350
Safhank CGrowp Cmontion 1,700 shares 5635543 YT ER 44 BAG
Microsall Corpamtion 516 shares 3 R 135 LA T35 1253
Gieneral Molgrs | 720 sharss 11 845,07 11,846.037 180
Imternational Business Machines Com GO0 shes 6892712 6,892 TIZ 2195
Chlwers 131,557 shhes 10303101 T 17, ED1
TOTAL i FNSTSIZ PRSA9TA PE10.428




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORFORATION AND SUBSILHARIES

SCHEDULE A -FINANCIAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

EXHIBIT "3

Mool Sheres or Amounl Showe in Vaiue Based on
Muttie of Isdulng Entity o Market Quotations | Incone Received
apd Association of Eack Isaur Frincipsl Amosnt Stuteraent of mi Balzoce Sheet And Actroed

of Bonds & Motes Financinl Feaflicn Dmie

Framacind Agnes w FHOCH

hélan -i-:.}_nnnmmical ZA333EE PO 294, 250 ¥1{05 254,950 L
Theka Cagital FTE Lid, 5 975,000 34 988,705 30,986,705 347 516
Petrohas GHE Finance 5 8500 35,638 51 35,558 D03 2065715
Country Garden Holding 7100 35,793,835 35,793 B35 2413683

Invesimerl w1 CTeRke FRO0U0NE 30,397 B 30,397 800
AHIA Inveznivent Cer A (0 12,044 334 22.0d4,7704 1,331 607
Crpenhy lnveging L 500,000 15,435 698 18,435 598 1,7 AEE
ESKLM Haldings ) iy 19,367,150 19,5007, E30 1,364,793
Shuk on [ewglupmenl $130.600 - 3 RBN
CE Hutchison Holdings LT, 20,51 shares 10412608 10,412 B8 & 329
Electubras 200,000 10 563302 10,540 322 434,635
RF bonds P8, 000, 0D BAST 05 £357205 534,000

[Emrades MO Teee 1 L2080 50 b, 496 530 [LEL S0
Couteal ©1ima Benl Exate B OO0 - 2275
Vi MoMiogs $200 005 16199, 244 10,193, 264 581572
Orazul Energy Egenor $200.000 433759 QX7 GO5 0%7
Chemg Kong Propenty Holdings 20,520 theres 7843276 7042274 35 410

| PBCE Reg 1 100,008 Sk nds 550 045

Rk o Fasl Asig 100,000 5430778 5430 TTE
'_L'E ML Finwwee LLEL $200, ) [ a5 275 150,215 [l
m"-‘trlt:.u:'la Glo 100,300 L 47X 240 | 4T 2d0 11x
Euip brvest BE TRY M0, - - 506
Maririg Holdings Farope B K300, 000 - 2145
FPC Finance 2000, DAk 11.15] 02 11,151,069 472 934
PLIIT « preferred A0K1 gharer 4,000 4,000 -
Ayala Corposation - preferred shines 1,110 shares w67 9,767 -

Ayala Land - prefemed shares 14,40 shares 21 2o
Tayoin 1,25 sthapes 9 158,501 B &R AH EX AT
Oithwers 1712540 17, LE8 401 1,388 &91
TOTAL MI0ATI A PG AT M FL6.5E2 NN




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIIMARIES
SCHEDLULE B - AMDUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM HRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES,

EXHIEIT “3"

RELATELD PARTEES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLEBERS (OTHER THAN AFFILIATES)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

. . " inal Amonnls Auauynts Man- Endin,
Name pnd Pesignation BE:Ilnc:I Additlons Callected Written OIF Current current B.I.ME

Ppintwiest Technolopiss

Corpamation (FTC #- W13 456,750 12 456,750 P g P- f
Husincss Proce

Dutsoureing, Lniermational

(AP0} 13,173,252 13635721 10215113 P 15,893 360 - 15,853 BAG
Chher relaled partios 2RT 417 72,959 - - 150,905 - 160,406

13 40,669 F46 205 460 F43.41 1,863 o P16,254, 266 P— | P14.254 2ah




F & . PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT 3"

SCHEDULE C - AMOUNTS RECEIVABELE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED

DURING THE CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

i . A maunts A
. . Beginning - Amonnis ! Mna- Ending
Mame and Dresig naticn Balance Additions Collected W::;t':ltn Current Carrent Ralance
Magellnn Capital Hoeldings
Corporation #— | PRI 055 - B | PE 559095 o F §,509.095
- | FESRU0GS = P PE 599,095 - Fg§ 390 055




F & J PRINCE FOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE D- INTANGIRLE ASSETS-OTHER ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201§

EXHIBIT *3*

iher
L - Charged to Charped v
. Bapinning Addilions al Changex Ending
Descriptics Balance Cost E:“e:"" Aﬂ‘:':“ Addilions Balance
prenses ’ (Deducilon)
NQT APPLICABLE




EXHIBIT “3"

F & J FRINCE HOLPINGS CORPORATION AMND SUESITMARIES
SCHEDILE E- LONG-TERM DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Ticke of 350 nad
Type of Obligation

Ameounl Authgrized
by [ndenture

Amgunt Shown as
Current

Amount 5hawn as

Long-Term

NOT A

PPLICABLE




EXHIELT *37

F & J PRINCE HOL.DINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIHARIES
SCHEBULE F- INDERTERNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG-TERM LOANS FROM RELATED
COMPANIES)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Name ¢f Related Party Balance nt Eepinning ol perind Balurce 41 end of peried

NOT APPLICABLE




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT "3*

SCHEDMLE G GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BECEMBER 31, 2018

Name of Lssuing
Enilty of Securilies
usranteed by the

Campany far which
1hiz Statement is
F1LED

Title of [t of Each
lass of Secwrities
Guarantesd

Total Aragunt
Cuaranieed and
Qutsianding

Amouni Orwoed by
the Company for
which thie Starement
i FILED

Mature of Gearsntes

NOT APPLICABLE




EXHIBIT “3"

F & J PRINCE IIOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDLULE H- CAPITAL STOCK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Number of Mumtrer of Wumber of Shares Mumber of Shares Held By
Tltle of Lisue ;:a:;ﬂ Sharer 1gzued Reserved lor Optipns, Related Direclors
Authorized and Warrants, Conversien Parti {Mticers and Others
WITOTIERY | outstanding and neher Rights i Employers
Common ok P 1 pur valug
Class “A" GO0, M, B0 202.610,118 —1 13T RaT 70 40 260, 895 1E4.451. 424
Cless "R 4 (W), (K, 00 189,217,533 — | 177649 649 180,332 [ 1,387,434
No. of Shares Dutsianding 481,817,653 - | M5517448 40,471,287 | 125,838 918




F & J FRINCE HIOLDINGS OCRPORATION ANE SUESIDIARY
CONSOLIBATED BEALANCE SHEET A5 OF BECEMBER 11, 2018 AND pECEMBER M, 2117

WITH VERTICAL PFRCENTAGE ANALYSIE EXHMEIT ™"
WEHTICAL YERTICAL
FPERCEN fkiGE PERCENTAGE
ALHTED ANALYEIS ALICHTED ANALYEIS
OEC. 3 2008 DEC. LM G, 31,30 DEC. 11, 3
ASSETS
Carrest Aciety
Caxh and cavh tquivabents 571 370,074 FLR U] 753 364 434 3520
Fimmncial axaety ac tar value thiu prolis ar less 5 k%7502 10.33%  1ELTIAR T2
[hae Cum related sumiza 16, 252 1ok kL LT EL 0034
RAecerwgblesanci 7.1321,301 I 3T% 111 S 0.35%
Cumvenl patiom of anvaii shle: for sule (AFS] enveriments . [ Ay TR, D02 | 9%,
Cumrenl proweion of firsncinl asses through PO a s 0% ' .
Prepuyment kisd Hher CurEnlL ases Jasstal LR 136285950 PR i
Teawl Current Axeity AR DTS 43.M0% sk, LG9 A7, 75%
Moncarreml Afbeiy
Receavahlen froam relaled patics-nel - (i - 1 00%
Lnvestenenle 1 BEEDGinb= 283,461 312 [EE N 3206, 205481 15500
Finamcind aise1a ki FVWOCH -net of current portion Lk 18 25814 - -
Auailnele-Torxale ( AFS] investmente-nel of currend pariin . andw  A3054TADG 13105
Fropeny e Bouspmec- e $u170¢81 1 46% 15857, 1 TH o 53%
Envuslien] Hoperlies A3 ART I8 FIERLS I2R977 L3S 11 0R%
Fiasd imuoine deppsits - - . -
by Knncmenol Aboeld Ti1.580 0 4% X570 L ET%
TFodal »om-Lurread Al LIISYSEIIT STO0% LT 2GS 5215
T AL ASKLTS 1,957.361,157 100, TO0ESE71, 4% T -
VERTICAL VERTICAL
FERCEHTAGE PERCENTAGE
ALDTED ANALYHS ALIDNTED AL TEEE

QEC. 31,204 OEG. 34,3008 OES. 34047 CEC. I, JMF

LIABILITIFS & S10CHHOLDERS EGLITY
Currrmi Liabiliaey

AEEaurdy Payshbe ang seerus) expenoes 10,102,308 0 52% 11 003,597 0,504
Drividends puyable NE Tl 2.26% £ 636,454 037%
Irrenme Tas Fayabibe 1,503 4626 0 Lo TATS 136 i 38%
Prawigton For byl uliegation 5 000 0] 0.26% 8 P00 2%
THal Current Liabddlikes L1153 X% 1L11% M) 414 18T Elx]
MNom-Cdrrant Linbilithes
Thefirred imcome 1A% [knbilliie-ngl L B D 2% 13,796,478 06M
Faynhle 10 ceinied pNTTES - - ) i
Rt leyamrad heaefit ohHgaiben 12810, TH 06T [l B bRt ]
Toir! Som-Currenl Linhilid i 17658, LW 6% 11.27),690 1.15%

Mencarronl Liahilites
Erockbobiary’ Equky

Cupitnl stack LLIN bR FLRFLA AT FETAIE 13.3%
Aditiand] paid in eapeial 144,739 917 7405 144,759 977 TM%
Treasury sEdres {101,772 27 S5 OMAL (10094635 o b
el wealizsd gaone on Fnencial acse ot FA0CT [EXAFN] OET

Lprealiene im0 charges in kit vales of AFF omsstanc ] .00 53,04t A5E 1%
Actymral botd o reEciremeamd benefi cbligation 1Aha, 121} £.0% [H1633] 0.0 %
Accymulaieed thirde i piher comprehenisg ineome of wese: 1314371 17 50 75,587 L%
feanned srmingy 1,230 534 5L 42 BE% 129700 T L]
Tgin: Fquihy Alznbuabie k Stockholders of te Company 10 595 482 44.35% 19105 3M82T FLE 1
Mutiady |meresa 12,85} BEh 5T 13 957 5 L]
‘Twtal Stqchhoken’ Equier 1.917.049,348 VIATH 209Nt il LI
TOTAL LLUSLITIES § §1OCKHOLDERS BT 1,957,061, 337 A0S JMESETI A4S 1000, 00%%




EXHERIT “5™

Schedule 1

F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATLION ANTH SUBSIDIARY
BREAKDOWN OF RECEIVAELES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016

[ _ 2018 7 13016 |
Recrivables: |
. Receivable from Related Parties: . !
Business Process Outsouccing, Intermational B 15,893,860 | P13,173252 Hil,158,735
Magellan Lidities Drevelopment Corparation - - -
Poiniwest Technologics Corporation - - - |
Orhers 360,405 287417 286,242
Total Receivables from Related Parties 216,254,266 | #13460, 669 B21,444 995
Torerest Roceivable 7447413 | 6656595 1.626,291
Receivable from Philippine Depogitary Insurance
Corperation (FOTC) - 500,000 500 ()
Others _ {165,033 127370 90,536
Total Receivaltes from Third Parthes P7,287,380 | P7,283.065 #4,116,827 |




EXHLBLT “5*
Schedule 2

F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
BREAKTIWN OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2014

i 2018 L2007 016 |
Acotrunts payable . Ba43 706 | PE,122,197 F1.451,993 |
Dieposit payable 7041,272 5 42699 1,507,524 |
Govemnment payable 1,149,942 1,138,869 B60,433 |
Accrued expenses i

Professiona) fees {legal and audit fees) ' f, 126214 579,264 331,962
_ Other operating expenses 349,104 42 508 331,576
Total Acroonts Payable and Accrued Expenses PI1G,113, 258 i 1,003,597 P4,683,468
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{a! has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) and RSA Rule 17{2)-{b) thereunder and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Fhilippines, during the preceding
12 months [or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file
such reports)

Yes [« | No [ |
(b] has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
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PART I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements, presented in & comparative format, are
submitted:

{1

{2

(3}

{5)

(&)

Unaudited Interim Balance Sheet as of 31 March 2019 and Audited Balance
Sheet as of 31 December 2018 aa Annex “A™

Unaudited Interim Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the nine (9)
month peried ending 31 March 2019 and the three {3} month period ending 31
March 2018 as Annex “B";

Unaudited [ntenm Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the three
(3] months period ending 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 and Audited
Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the year ending 31 Deacember
2017 as Anmex “C";

Unaudited Interim Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the three (3] month
period ending 31 March 2019 and the three {3} month period ending 31 March
2018 as Annex “D™

Interim Cash Flow for the quarterly periods ending 30 June 2018 and 30
September 2018 Audited Cash Flow Statement for the year endesd 31
December 2018 as Antiex “E"; and

Consolidated Balance Sheet s of 31 March 2019 and 31 December 2018 with
vertical and horizontal percentage analysis as Annex “F".
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN

{1)

OF OPERATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Registrant’s consolidated revenue in 2018 decreased to P62.8
million from P130.8 milliecn in 2017. Equity in net earnings of
rasociates decreased from B40.9 million in 2017 to & loss of £14.0
million in 2018 as Peintwest experienced operating losses due to loss
of two major accounts. Interest income decreased from B37.4 million
in 2017 to B33.1 million in 2018 as interest levels have stabilized. A
net foreign exchange gain of P31.6 million was recorded in 2018
versus P7.8 million in 2017 as the Peso continued to decline against
forzign currencies which benefitted the foreign exchange denominated
bonds and other securities hold by the Registrant and its subsidiary.
Rent increased from P20.8 million in 2017 to R23.2 million in 2018
due to escalation of rental rates and the leasing out of additional
condominium units acquired in 2016 and 2017. Loss on disposal of
AF3, HTM and FVPL Financial Assats of B1.3 million was recorded in
2018 againat a gain of P38 million in 2017, Dividend income
increased from B2.4 million in 2017 to B3.7 million in 2018. Fair
value loss on Financial Assets at FVPL was Pl4.2 million in 2018
compered to a gain of P17.4 million in 2017.

Total consolidated expenses of the Registrant slightly increased to
£41.9 millionl in 2018 compared to 40,1 million in 2017 due to higher
taxes and licenses related to the acquisition of additional investment
property and higher other expenses.

As a result of the above, total consolidated moome before tax in 2018
totaled P21.0 million compared to P90.8 million in 2017. After
provision for income tax, total consolidated net income after tax
totaled #16.4 million in 2018 compared to #79.4 million in 2017.

Net mcome attributable to non-controlling interest, namely minority
sharehelders of Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation, totaled 21.0
million in 2018 compared to B1.7 million in 2017.

The Registrant’s financial position is very strong as it has substantial
cash resources available to undertake its planned projects. As of
December 31, 2018, the Registrant’s consolidated cash and cash
equivalent totaled over BS571.4 million which was lower than the level
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of P753.6 million as of December 31, 2017 due to additiohal
investment in properties and additional investment in financial asssts.
The Registrant and its subsidiary is planning to undertake
development of MCHC’s land in Fort Bonifacio into an office building
as well as to acquire income producing properties as well as additional
land for development. The Registrant and its subsidiary are debt [ree
with tota! consolidated liabilities of B39.8 million at year-end 2018
compared to B56.4 million at year-end 2017. Total equity amounted to
P1.9 billion as of the end of 2018 compared to P2.0 billion at year-end
2017,

The Registrant and its subsidiary and affiliates are substantially debt
free except for MUDC which has lvans and advances from its principal
shareholders. The Registrant and its subsidiaries have more than
enough cash resources to meet any expected requirements in the next
twelve months. Consolidated cash and cash equivalents at the end of
2018 totaled B571.4 million compared to B753.6 million at the end of
2017 while total current assets totaled PB41.8 million at year-end
2018 compared to R986.4 billion at year-end 2017. Other than the
normal fluctuation of the Peso exchange rate as well as the effect of
the normal market fluctuations on the value of stock and bond
holdings cwned by the Registrant and its subsidiary, the Registrant is
not aware of any trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result
n its liquidity increasing or decreasing in any materia! way. Likewise,
the Registrant does not know of any trends, events or uncertainties
that have or that are reasonably expected to have a material favorable
or unfavorable impact on the revenues or income from cottinuing
aperations.

{a) Operating Results and Financial Condition for the Firat
Quarter of 2019

{if There are no known trends, demands, events or uncertainties that
would have a material effect on the Issuer’s liquidity.

(it} There are no known or anticipated events that would trigger direct
or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company
including any default or acceleration of any obligation.

{Lii} There are no material cff-balance sheet transaction, arrangements,
abligations (including contingent obligations) and other
relationship of the Company with unconsoclidated entities or other
persons created during first quarter of 2019 or in prior periods.
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(i)

(v)

(vi]

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, by
the Company or its majority owned subsidiary.

There are no trends, events, or uncertainties that have had or that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable impact on
net revenues/income from continuing operations except for
possible unrealized or realized foreign exchange gains from the
dollar denominated investments of the Company and its majority
owmed subsidiary and unrealized gains on trading securities and
equity in net ecarnings of associates. These are generally
recognized in the year-end Audited Financial Staterments except
for realized foreign exchange gain which are reported in the period
realized.

The Company did not realize any non-¢perating inceme in the
firat quarter of 2019 ar in the Arst quarter of 2018 aside from
unrealized gain on trading securtties, gain on disposal of
AF3/HTM investments and net unrealized foreign exchange gains.

The following is a detailed discussion of the Registrant’s operations and
financial condition durng the first quarter of 2019 and first quarter of 2018,

Opetuting Results

Breakdown of Revenue for the Three Month Periods Ending September 30, 2018 and
September M), 2017 with Vertical and Horizental Percentage Analysis is shown below:

. ) T N T TV 3
(o0} avARTER | ARALYMS | qussram | aniiracs | D ARGUNT | |FERGERTAGE
Wareh 31, | Warck 31, | March 31, Marck 71, Mwreh AL, Mwrch 21, |
apLe 2019 JO18 My, ZOLE LY 2015
INTEREST INCOME
From Banks 3,550 2.00 2,217 5% 18 1332 60.1%
From Secunties 4 109 10.4% 5375 25.5% (1,240 2 3,1%|_
TOTAL T.689 19.4% T 505 34.0% &3 0, 5%
Dividend Income 300 1.10% 187 0. 5% LG5 09 1%
Rent Tncome £, 184 15.7% 5777 27.4% an7 700
Unreplized Gain on
Trading Securities 21,613 55.0°% 7,051 33.5% 14,817 207.3%
Gaineg on Dispoesal of
Finencial Assets 740 1.9%; - - T4
Net Unrealized FX
Gain 2,763 7.0% 435 2.1% 2,328 5A5%
Other Income
T8 0.2% - - K-} -
TOTAL 39,439 100% | B 210564 1P 1843473 87.28%

G | SEC Form 17-0Q - 1™ Quarter - 31 March 2019




Revenues. Consclidated Revenues, during the 3 month period ended March 31,
2019, totaled B39 4 million compared to P21.1 millicn during the sames 3 month
period in 2018, The higher unrealized gain on trading securities, higher unrealized
FX gain, higher rental income and higher dividend income accounted for the bulk of
the increase.

Expenses. Consolidated General and Administrative Expenses in the first quarter
of 2019 totaled 88.9 million compared to P11.6 million in the first quarter of 2018.
Lower taxes and licenaes accounted for most of the decrease.

Operating Income. As a result of the factors discussed abowve, consclidated
operating income in first quarter 2019 totaled P30.5 million compared to P9.5
million net income in the same period of 2018.

Net Income. Net income totaled P30.5 million during the first quarter of 2019
comnpared to net income of P9.5 million in the first quarter of 2018, The net income
in the first quarter of 2019 attributable to shareholders of the Company totaled
#29.1 million while £1.4 million in net income was atiributable to minority
gshareholders in the company's majority owned subsidiary Magellan Capital
Holdings Corporation. In the first quarter of 2018, B9.0 million net income was
atiributable to sharcholders of the company and P467.225 was attributable to
minority sharcholders in the Registrant’s subsidiary.

BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Annex “F" shows the Vertical and Horizontal Percentage Analysis of Balance Sheet
Account far March 31, 2019 compared to Decermber 31, 2018,

Current Assets. Consolidated current assets as of March 31, 2019 totaled £914.0
million compared to P841.4 million as of December 31, 2018. Most of the increase
was due to increase in cash and cash eguivalents and increase in input tax.

Receivablas from Related Parties. This account was nil at March 31, 20149, the
sam« level aa at year-end 2018.

Investments in Associates. This account which consists of investment in
Pointweat Technologies Corporation and BPO  International, Inc. remained
unchanged from year-end 2018 to March 31, 2019 at £283.5 million.

Financial Assets at FVOCI - Net of Current Portlon. This mccount winch
consists mostly of corporate bonds and listed equities totaled P291.7 million as of
March 31, 2019 from P422.9 million at year-end 2018.

Property and Equipment. This account totaled B8.5 million as of March 31, 2019

comprresd te B89 million as of December 31, 2018 due to allowanee for
depreciation.
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Inveatment in Property. This account totaled te B397.9 millicn as of March 31,
2019 from P399.9 million at year-end 2018 due to additional allowance for
depreciation.

Other Non-Current Assets. This acconnt totaled P0.7 million as of March 31,
2019, the same level as at year-end 2018.

Total Assets. As a result of the foregoing, totnl asacta increased to P1,996.1
miliion as of March 31, 2019 from 1,957 4 million as of December 31, 2018,

LIABILITIES AND RQUITY

Current Liabilities. Current liabilities was at P23.9 million as of March 31, 2019
compared to #22.2 million at year-end 2018 due to higher deposit payable and
higher accrued expenses.

Non-Current Liabilities. Non-current liabilities which consists mostly of
retirement benefit obligation and deferred income tax liabilitics was stable at P17.7
millian as of March 31, 2019 the same level as at year-end 2018, The accrual of
additional retirement benefit obligation is taken up at year-end based on actuarial
studies commisaioned at that time.

Stockholder’s Equoity. Total stockholders’ equity increased to B1,954.5 million as
of March 31, 2019 from P1,917.5 million at year-end 2018 due to the net income of
£30.5 million generated in the first quarter of 2019. Total equity attributable to
steckholders of the company totaled R1,880.2 million at March 31, 2019 from
¥1,844.7 million at December 31, 2018 due to the net income of 2291 million
attributable to stockholders of the company in the firat quarter of 2019. Minority
interegt which represents the share of minerity sharsholders of Magelian Capital
Holdings Corporation was F74.3 million at March 31, 2019 compared to B72,9
million &t December 31, 2018 due to their share of net income generated in the first
quarter of 2019 of B1.4 million.

Top Performance Ingdicators

The top five (5) performance indicators for the Registrant are as follows:
1} Change in revenue

2) Change in net income

3) Earnings per share

4} Current ratio
5} Book value per share
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Change in Revenues. Consolidated revenues in the first quarter of 2019 and
2018 are shown in Annex "B" and presented below in summary form:

[ L] i+ Guarter 2036 | Piorcontage (%} | 1= u | Puzos ]

[nterest Income E 7.659 19.4% ¢ 7,595 36.0%
| Lease Renta! Income 6,194 15.7% 5,777 27.4%

Dividend Inceme 292 . LO% a7 0.9%

Unrealized Gain an trading

pecurities 21.613 =4. 8% 7.051 33.5%

Gain on Diaposal f Redemyption

of Financial Asseta at FVQCI 740 1.9% - -
[ Net Unrealized FX Gain 2,763 7.D% 435 2.1%

Qther Incoms : 78 D.2% -

TOTAL INCOME R 39429 100% |B 21,056 100%

Total revenue in the firat guarter of 2019 was P39.4 million, 87% higher than the
#21.1 million in the first quarter of 2018. Higher unrealized gain on trading
securities, higher unreslized FX gain, and higher dividend and rental income
accounted the bulk of the increase.

Change in Net Income. The income statement in the first quarter of 2019 and
2018 are shown in Annex “B” and summarized below:

[ROO0| 1 Omarter 1= Quarter
2019 Percantage {%] 018 Fercentage (%} |

Revenues B 39,426 100% | P 21,056 1004
Expenzses 8 889 22.5% 11,550 B, B%
Net [ncome 30,540 77.5% 9 506 45, 1%
Attributabie 1o:

- Minority Interest 1,434 3.6% 467 2.2%
- Stockholders of

Company 29,106 TI.8% 2,039 42.9%

The Registrant realized a net income of B30.5 million in the frst quarter of 2019
compared to 9.5 million in the first querter of 2018 due o higher revenues and
lower expenses. Net income of P29.1 million was attributable to stockholders of the
company in the first quarter of 2019 compared to 9.0 million in the firat quarter of
2018.

Earnings per Shave. The net income per share attributable to shareholders of the
Company during the first quarter of 2019 was B0.076 per share compared to net
income per share of P(.0236 in the first quarter of 2018 due to the higher net
income generated in the first quarter of 2019,

8 | SEC Foum 1740+ 1" Quames - 31 March 2019




Current Ratle. Current ratio as of March 31, 2019 was 38.2 X compared to 38 X
as of December 31, 2018, '

Book Valus Per Share. Book value per share as of March 31, 2019 was P4 88 per
share compared 10 P4.81 as of December 31, 2018,

PART IT
OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors of the corporation during its meeting held on May 10, 2019,
approved the resolution setting the date of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on
July 16, 2019. The Stockholders will be informed of the venue and time.

In this regard, the record date fixed for determining the liat of stockholders entitled
to vote at said meeting is May 29, 2019. Accordingly, the transfer books of the
Corporation will be closed from June 1, 2019 until June 5, 2019 for the purpose of
prepanng said list,

10 | SEC Form 17-C - 1™ Guarter - 31 March 2019




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the 1ssuer has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behall by the undemsigned thersunio duly
authorized.

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr

Signature and Title

17 May 2019

nbrl:ru-_u =F L1+ 3019 PS8 C Fovrm 11,07
Cratm-31 Maron 2016
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F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF MARCH 31, 201% AND DECEMBER 31, 2018

ANNEX "A™
Page |
UNAUTHMTED AUBITED
LA SSETS MARCH 31, DEC. 31,2018
2919
KCurrent Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 623,693,734 P EF1ATLAZN
Financiai agsets at fair value through profit or loss 137,810 555 205,897 512
Convertible note receivable n 0
Raceivables-met
Advances 10 Offlcers & Employess 1, 0
Interest Beceiveble £281.218 T 447413
[ividends Receivable 14,065,659 15,749.37
Recgivable from related parties 63,347 504, 2000
Dthers 575,521 796,336
Total Receivables 25,455,745 24490015
Allowanee for impairment losses 061,358 961 3168
Total Recejvables-Net 23524377 23,536,647
FCurrent portion of HTM investments [V o
Current portion of AFS financial assets 6,945,919 6,945 R1%
Prepaid expenses & other current assets:
Imput Tax 32384 393 32,984 135
Prepaid Income Tax 0
Cnhers 43,605 G667 BE
Total Prepai] expenses aod other current piaets 327,94 33,651,21!|
Total Curreni Assets 914,002,481 F| 841,403,225
Nom-current Asrets |
ivables from related parties-net Iﬂ L]
fnvestments In associates zsa,ga,alﬂ mgggla
[HTM investments-net of current portion
[Financinl assets at FVOCL-net of current portion 191,653,870 422,975,544
Envestment in property 397,701,254 399,597,554
fl‘rupert)' and Equipmeni
Building 20,755, 943 20,753 943
Building Improvements E.764,062 B 764 D57
Transporiation =squipment 10,263,019 10263 079
Furniture and fixtures 2,867,190/ 2,863,479
Total 42,650,274 42,648,381
Less: Aceumnulated depreciation 34,165 257 33,721,480
Met Book Value 8485017 8.927.081
Tutal Property and Equipnient 8,485,017 2,927,081
OHNer non-current assets 743,580 743,580
Tuial Non-Carrent Assels 1 082,047 L,115958,11
DTAL ASSETS L996,049.518 Bt 1957361




_1_ A_N NEX rlh“
Page 2
LIABTLITIES & STOQCKHOLBERS' EQUITY UNAUDITED AUDITED
MARCH 31, | | DEC. 31, 2018
2019
\Cnrent Liabiliies
A ccounts Payable and scoried expansas
Accounts peyable-trade 0 o
Agcounts payable-others 313,456 445, 703
Withholding taxes payable 212,121 420 745
585 Premium Payable 10,685 1251
HDMF Premium Pavabic 1.6 1,696
Philhealth Premium Payahte £ 17 8.17¢
Dieposit Payable 8,142 691 7041273
Output Yat Paysble £76,779] 582 873
Accrued expenses 2,487,757 1,490,240
Tutal Accounts payable and seerund expenses [P 12,251,554 P 10,112,238
Dividends Payable 4,626,513 £.139,011
ncome Tax Payable 2,022,625 1,902
Pruvision for legal obligation X 000, (M 5,000,
Fodad Current Liabilites Pl 13903002 P 22,153,585
Non-{wrrent Lighilinies
Deferred incume tax liabilities-ner £, 75537 4113'&,}13
Payable to related parties o
[Retirement benefit obligation} 12,927,720 12,927,729
Yotal Non-Curcent Lizdilities 17,654,194 17,658,104
|
iStockkolders Equlty
Capital stock 481,827,653 451 427
Additional paid in capital 144,759,977 144,759,977
Treasury shares (101,777,276 [ (001,777,276
Linrealized gain on financial assets at FyOCT 23,830,570 L7432 196
Actuirial loss on retirement benefit obligation (4146,121) {418,121)
Accumulated share in other comprehensive income of as50ciates TIM45T1 72344371
Retained earnings 1,259,631,0%8 1,23, 524,692
Total Equily Attributable 10 Stockhokiers of the Compauy 1,880,204),2 3 1,844,695, 43
IMinority Tnterest T4I8K 17X B53
Total Stockkolders® Equity 1,954,458, 4103 1,917,549
[OTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY P 1,996,049,515 P 1,987.36133

See arvompamang Mot 1o Conroddated Finaincis! Siatements

me{:{/ ’

ARSEMIC T, LIAD
Accountnl
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F & .J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

ANNEx n Bll

Page 1

FOR THE THREE MONTHS PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019 AND MARCH 31, 201%

UNAUDITEDR]| JUNAUTED
MARCH 31, MARCH 31,
pi )] 2018
REYENUES
Interest Income
From Banks F 3549950 P 2.216,680
From Securitizs 4,108,811 5.378 840
Total lnteres locome 16548,780 7,508 520
Linreallzed gains on trading securities 21,613,048 7,054, 750
Rental Income 6,184,437 £ 777,695
Gaing on dpasul /redemption of financial assets st FYOC1 140,418 o
Dividend lmeome 391 D6 1574064
Net nnrexlized foreigs exchange gain 2,761,593 424,547
Other income 18,240 0
P 420474 P 21,055 9746
EXPENSES
Net forelgn exchange logy Q 0
Amortization of unrealized loases om changes in fair vatoe
of AFS investments 1] ]
Salwries, wages and emplayees’ benefits 2,826,233 1, B26,903
Deprecintion 2,544,075 1609023
Professional feex 341,10 786,794
Coadominium dues GRR 493 T8 05X
Repairs snd malotenance 0 a
Taxes and Llicenaes §.57T1,842 3,453,241
Entertalament, amusenent and recreaticn LA 85,716
Realized loxs on redesaption of bonds 1] 133,132
Orthers 754915 165 685
8,004,194 11,549,644
INET INCOME P___ 30540679 P 9,506,332
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
STOCKHOLDERS QF THE COMPANY P 28,106,347 P 5,039,107
MINGRITY INTERESTS 1,434,312 457125
EARNINGS PER SHARE P 0.076 P .62

Sex acrompanpag Noves fo Comsoladated’ Fingcial Statemen

me/

ARSENIC T, LIAG
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R ANN Ex "nll

Page 2

F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONBOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2019 AND MARCH 31, 2058

UNATUDITED | | UNAURITED
MARCH 31, MARCH 31,

il L] 2018
NET INCOME 30,540,679 P 9,506,332
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME{LOSS)}
Chzoges in Tair value of AFS investments - 121,989
Amontization of unreallzed loxses an changes in falr value -
of AFS investmenin
Linrealized gaing on financial assets mi FYOC] 6. 398,384
Impairment loss on AFS Investments
Ornhers

6,190, 35 TI1,989
[TOFAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(LDSS) 36,939,063 P 14,228,321
TOTAL COMFREHENSIYE INCOME(LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
STOCKHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 35,092,1t0 P 9. 716,905
MINOQRITY INTERESTS 1,346,953 511,416

939 P 10 21

Fee accompanying Woses to Cowsolidited Finerecial Simwessentsy

ARSENIO T. LIAD

ACcoutang




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUB3IDMARY

ANNEX M

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND MARCH 31, 2016
AND THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

LNAUDITED UNALBITEL ALDITED
MARCH H, 2019  MARCH 31, 1014 DEL. 31, 2018
CAPITAL STOCK
Balunee at beginaing of vear P 481,417 .683P 4H1, 927,653 483 R27 653
Insuance of sdditional shares of siock
Subeeription of additions] shares of sinck
Balance at end of period LAY 652 481,327,651 451 827,653
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 144,759,977 144,759,977 144,759,977
Treaalr}r Shares {17278 (100,946,956} {103, 7TT7.276)
Unrealized galn on financial asaets 2t FYOCI 23,830,570
Oiher Reserves H2 144 469 17,432,185
Actuarial loss om retirement beneftt oldlgadon {416,121) (792 6R3) (416,121}
Share in cther coraprebemive income of associates T3L3HATI 50,375,587 72,344 371
SHARE IN REVALLATION INCREMENT ON
LAND OWNED BY MO HC's
SUBSIDIARIES

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance ai beginnlng of period 4,20 524 592 L2¥T204,771 29T 008,791
Net Intowie 29,106 356 9832106 12 O%E, 289
Dividends declared (78, 565 188)
Balance at end of period 1.2%9.631 058 1,005,042 897 1,230, 528,697

1,850,200.2.32 1LM3,611.944 [ 544 695 482
Mil:lnriljr Interests T, 1B, ['TE T4454,770 T3 B53.866
TOTAL STOCKHOLRERS' EQUITY P 1954 458,410 F  1018.066,714 F 117,549,345

Sre aecomparying Nowr to Conrohuarad Fivarcial Stameni

Frepared by:

Mt

ARSENIO T. LIAD
Accountant




ANNEX "D

F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS PERIOD ENTHNG MARCH 3, 219 AND MARCH 31, 2018

UNAUDITED UINAUDITED
MARCH 31, M § MARCH 31, W18

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income F 19,106,367 P 5,032,106
Adjustments 1o reconsile net income be nel cash
provided by optrating activities:
Minority Snterest 1,434,312 467,225
Depreciation and amaoriizlion 1640078 2,009,024
Met unrealized gains on financial assets st FYOCI 6,398,384
Amortization of unrealized loss/sam on FV of AFS inv, (721,999
Chenges in operating assets and liabilities:
Decronse (increase) in:
Revcivables 1,011,270 1,853,828
Prepaid expenses and other current assets a24223 (16,796, 791)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued expensss 2,141,326 (41,903}
Net cash provided By operating aerivities 43,156,960 (3.591,501)
{CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTEING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions'dizposals of propenty and equipinent (1,7tT) 0
AFWHTM investments and financial 2ssets a1 FYPL (9369016}
Finangial assets st FYOC! and FYPL 0,659,674
Decrease (increasse) in:
[nvestment In property 0 (179,490,576)
Qiher assats n 37 104,676
Net caph provided by (used in} invexiing achivities 9,657,957 (151,754.914)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increass {decrease) in:
Dhividends payablc {%12,208) (2,562,844)
Iroome tax payable 119,99 27843
Met carh provided by (used in} finarneing activities (392.209) (2.475,041)
NET INCREASE {DFCREASE] IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS P 52,321,708 B {157.821,418)
CASH AND CASH EQUIYALENTS, BEGINNING 57113710246 753,565,424
CASH AN CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING F_ 623693734 P 395,744,016

Sec mecompanying Motes w Consclidaird Financial Sipsments
Prepared hy:

ARSENIO T, LIAD
ACcountamt




ANNEX "E"

Page 1
F & JPRINCE HOLDINGS CORFPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE QUARTERS ENDING JUNE 30, 2{H8 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
UNAUDITED| | UNAUDITED
SEFTEMBER JUNE
30,21 % 30, 1018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mt income F 27,896,681 P 14,597,471
Adjusiments to recancile net incame 1o net
cash provided by opereting activitias:
Equity in net samings in associae 7.676,B73
Minority interes 2,64 574 168,395
Depreciation and amortization 7820070 5,218,044
Unrealized loss/pain on chenges in fair vahwe of AFSFVPL (3,692,351} {4,744 019
Amortization of unrealized losa/gain on FY af AFS inv.
Changes in gperating assets and liabilities:
ecrease (increase) in:
Receivables 6,383 412 5152427
Prepaid expenses and other current assels (16,374,671} (067,679
It rease {decredase) in:
Accounts payable and acciued expenses 2,746,454 789,272
Net cash provided by operating activities 35,328,104 5,113,913
CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTTVITIES
Acquisitions'dispasals of property and squipment (2,175}
Investnen in property (179.450,572) (179,490 572)
AFS/HTM/ather investments and financial sssets (FVPL) (22,767 439} 101,248
Decrcase {increase) in: O
Receivables fitimn related parties
Oriher assels 17104676 37, 104,675
Net cash provided by (used ) nvesting acrivities (165,155 510} (142,284 649
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (détrense) in:
Cash dividends declared and paid (4B, 182,765)
Cefened credits (2,157 {312,157)
Dividends payeble (2,569,774) [2,562.844)
Income tix payable (7,575,136 {7.E75,136)
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities {38.659.822) {10,470,137)
NET INCREASE {(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS P {182 4872367 P (147.640.873)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 753,565 434 753,965 434

CASH AND CASH EQLUIVALENTS, ENDING

P

565.078,193 P

605,924,561




F.& JFRINCE HOLTANGS CORPORATION ANT SLBSIDLARIES a ANNEX "E"

TCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Page 2
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 23138 Auditad
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ingome {logs) befiorc income tax from continuing cperations P 977,501
Adjugtments For;
et unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) CILITT LI
Fair wahie losscs on Ananclal assets al FYPE 14,162, 560
Drepreciation 19,557,370
Recovery of allowsance of impaimeent losses {137 581
Guin on disposal of fimancial assets al FY QC[ 1.2349.289
Interss: incomea {33,083.304)
Tividend income (3,715,040
Edquity in nel logses [camings) of associates 13,978,203
I'Jperitillg hoas belon: warking capitd changes 12553 272
Detrease (increase) in:
Reoceivables 35% 300
Receivab b fram mlmed partics 4123
Prepaid expenacs and othar current assets (15033,251)
Increase {decrease] in accounts payatble and accrued expense [B91,3159)
Increass {decrease) in relirement hanefi obligatlon o 1,379,577
Proceeds from disposal of _
Finenctal asscts at FYEX'[ ' S3EM, 197
Al itiums to:
Financial assets at FYFL (67242 773
Financial assets ut FYOL 122.141,284)
Nel cash Jows used in operatioms (17087 344)
Drividends roceived 45,804,053
Intterass teaived 17,725 593
Income taxes paid {12,037 563)
Het cash flows from operating aclivilics 20,404 739
CASH FLOWS FROM |NYESTING ACTTVITIES
Increase({decrease} in property and sguipment {2,177}
Incrense{decrense ) in inyInmnl in propercss (141,663, 846)
Met cash flaws from fused in} investing activities [ 141,556,020}
CASH FLOWS FROM FTNANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends jraid {TR.050 892)
Dividends i non—conmolling ingerest [EIERTEY
Aocquisition of reagury shares (330,320}
Mt cash Nows from Anancing activilies {72204 324)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,461 Sl
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (182, [94,408)
CASH AND CASH EUI\"&LENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 753,365 454

CASH AND CASH EQUIYALENTS AT END OF YEAR P 571371026




F& J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ANG SUBSIDLARY "ANNEX F"
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE BHEET AS OF MARCH 31, 201% AND DECEMBER 31, 2013
WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZOKTAL PERCENTAGE ANALYEIS
Fage 1
NCREAZE
YERTICAL YERTICAL INCREABE IDECREAZE]
PERGENTAGE PERCENTAGE  [DECAEASE}  PERCENTAGE
LIMALIDTEDS AMNL X AIDTED  ANALYSS AMICHWNT ANALYEIS
MARCH 31, 201% MARCH M, 2HY  DEC. M 2013 DEC. M1, 2018 MARCHI1, 1% MARCH I, 209
AGGETS
Current Asty
Cash and cagh sqeivaisnts B73,890,. 13 Mg AT H.10% 2350 116%
Financisl ssssis i Lalr vaius through i 227 510,553 11.40%  MLH7 52 10.52% B3, 0d4 10.50%.
witfiw theru ol or kb (FYPL}
Ehort-hum: Mvestments - - - - -
Racutvables :
Adtvances 0 Officers & Empicynies 0 1.00% ] 0.00% 0 1.00%
interaxt Racelvabla [ I3 By | B42% T AT 413 0.0% £31,503 +2m
Dkt Rutatvable 14,085 555 BT0%  15,TARST4 HE0% {1.684,315) A0.88%
Fecehcabie from retabed parties 143307 0.01% 4. 292 0M% {340 545) BTN
Dthers 75921 0.09% Toh, 1% B04% 179,135 22.50%
Totst Recehwblos Fa¥ T 118% 2408015 1.2%% (1,112.270) A1
Alowanca For i mysl it e H1,3d L.09% 251,350 4075 0 0.00%
Total Recahmbieg-Net LT 1.13% 1 M7 1.20% 132 4, 30
Currenk portion of BT imérttmans [ .00 1 D.00% 1 0.00%
Current portien of AFS Investments 5 ME 21 L35% 8,345 148 0.35% (1 0.00%
Prepald qupansss & other curment sseets:
Othars B3 405 0.0F% 5T 388 0.03% TETIT Ly
Inpurt Tax 1230453 142% 12 1.59% {50, 50 A.82%
Frepald Income Tax 1] 0% 1] 0.00% 00d%
Total Prepaid sxpensay & other cumrent
manh 33307948 147%  3nes23H 1.72% 1Ll rat} D38%
Total Currnat Assate 14 002 A8 1 MR B S 2% 72,080 256 B83%
Non-currami Axwsts
Recaivabies from relaind parties 1 1000 o 0.90% ] 1.00°%
iretstiiants i associaee 293,463,312 4H% WAL N2 144 - 400
Firanczial asssty af FYOC| T 88T 100% 42280585 2% (MmN g
krveshinent in properies 397, T0M, 25 195% HMTS5 20.43% 1.156 . 280) 4.55%
Preparty and Equiprment
Buliding 20,755,543 10d% 20755943 1,085 @ i
Bukiding improvemants 3, Ted.067 D.4% 0,764,042 0.45% ¢ 000%
Traneporistion squipmant 10,263 01 MY 10,243,078 1.52% [+ 00
Fumitun id fictures 2,MT 1M Lifs  ZE54TY 2.15% 1,741 0.06%
Total Propetty and Equlpiment LI Li¥% 42548540 1.18% 1.1 0%,
Leaa: scztunibated dhpnsiution 185287 A% B THAR ATH% MG IS 1.30%
Wet Book Veloe S5 017 % 4MmT.0e 0.06% (2 OB A4.05%
Total Proparty and Equipment 557 042% 8,927 M1 [ 46% 2,004 4%
Dofarred Incoma tix rwals-nat 0 0505 0 (1L 0 0%
Dther Avests - nat 743,550 0.04% 743 580 0.pd% 0 0.00%
Total Non-Cument Asseh 1,042 047,038 F2% 111335112 SN [1.¢1977 104
TRTAL ASSETS . 1,905,043, 518 100.00% 195730 127 100, AT 1.99%




"ANNEX F

Page 2
IHCREASE
VERTICAL VERTICAL INCREASE {DECREARD)
PERCENTAE PERCENTAGE {DECREARE| PERCENTAGE
UNAUINTED ANAL YRS AUDITED  AMALYSIS AMOUNT ARALYSIS
MARCH 31, Xrfd  MARCH M, XHP DEC. M2 DEC. 3, 38 MARCH I, 2019 MARCH M, 2013
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOL DERE ECHITY
Currand Liabliisa
Accounts Payably and scirued exparoms
Accounts payabis-trada 0 0.0 0 0.00% ! 0.00%
Accounty pryabls-othirs 513,554 A.02% 45 T (1Tiry &1.a% 19.25%
Withkakhing taxes paystik MmN 0.01% L, T8 0.02% (217544 30.E8%
E58 Prymium Peyabie 1 0. 00% 1211 00 1,425) ~1L58%
HOMF Pramium Payable 1,554 100% 1,858 0% 0 0.0
Fhlihaxitth Premium Piyuble LiTk 1.00% L b0d 0 0.00%
Cupoakt Payable & 143 & 14% T, 272 03 1,11 41% 15.6:0%
Outpust Wk Payabie ImEm A% 2473 0.0¥% 193, 508 2B.40%
Accried sEpenses ZAL,1S? 0.12% 1,008,240 8.08% 957 M7 68.54%
Tolm Azcounte payable & accrued
EEPATHES 12,253 564 QL80% 10,4123 4.52% 214130 .18
Dividends Puynble [Er. 0k} 0.29% ERE: Kirg] 129% (M2 S07%
income Tix Prysbie 12 B 110% 1,800 638 0.10% 11591 851%
Provislon for lagal obigution 5,008,000 0.26% 3,006,000 2.24% 1 0.00%
Total Cument LinhiRies 23,963,002 120% 21548 119K 1,146,137 TH%
Mon-Cumrant Liahilies
Deefirrrid tax Bsil ey net 47130475 4.18% 4ATM TS A1¢% a 0,00
Payshie bc melated parties 1] 0.00% 1] 1.00% ] {007
Reticement banefi obligation 12,927,724 4055 12921735 0.88% 8 0.00%
Tobad Hon-Currsnd Lisbiltes 1T 50 104 1.8% AT A58 104 1.50% 4 0.00%
Stockholdery’ Equity
Capital sinck 451,127 852 MAt% 451,027,853 Hai% 0 .00
Add|tiona paid In capltal 14,750 577 L] 144,759,571 7.A0% b 0.00%
Unreakoec galn on M. assets &t FYOCI % 510 1% 17432108 0.50% 53,1 a7
Actusrint ioss on retinement obigation {448, 10} 40.02% TERES £.02% 0 0.00%
Accumulried share in OC|of svsocistes T34 274 k1 re T2.34 1M 1.70% L] 0.00%
Traasury shives (1M, 771270 A% (10L7FTITR) SN o 1.00%
Retalned samings 1,258 631 D5l 53.11% 1,23, 524 853 e 25,100, 35§ 1.3M%
Talsl Equity Aliribiutabie to Skeck-
toddars of e Comgany 1,850,208,232 BLITS 1M 595427 % 35 504,750 1%
Minoftty ihireat 74,25 170 3T 2853501 1TH% 143417 157%
Tota) Slockhoiden’ Equity 1,954,488 410 LM% 10175400 9797 3,939,062 1.9%
- ELITIES & STOCKHOLDERS 1.996,049 516 10000% 1957361307 100.00% 83,176 196%




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporats Information

F & ) Pringe Holdings Corporation {the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commiszion {SEC) on February 18, 1971 Its pomary purpase is to
purchase, subscribe for or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage,
pledge, exchange, ar otherwise dispose of real and parsonal property of every kind and deseription,
including, but not limited to, land, building, cordeminium units, shares of stock, bonds, debenturces,
notes, evidence of indebtedness and other securities, contracts or abligations of any corporation and
associations, demestic or foreign. The term for which the Parent Company is to exist is 50 years from
and after the date of incorporation.

The Parent Company's shares of stock are listed in and traded through the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). The principad activities of its subsidiaries are described in Note 2.

The registered office sddress of the Parent Company is 5th Floor, Citibank Center, 8741
Paseo de Roxas, Makuti City.

Basls of Preparation, Statement of Complianee and Banis of Cansolidation

Buaxis of Preparation

The interim condensed consolidated Financial statements have been praparad under the histarical coat
hasis, except for financial asscts at FYTPL and centmin ASS financial assets that have been measured
at fair value in 2017 and financial assets at FYTPL and certain investments in debt end aquity
securities that have been measured at fair value in 2018, The interim condensed consolidated
financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group’s functionza] currency, and
rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the
Lroup’s annual consolidated finaneiel statcments as at December 31, 2018,

Statement of Compliance
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
complinnce with Philippine Financial Reponting Standards {PFRSs).

Baxic of Consolldation
The interim condensed corsolidaled finuncial statements comprise the financial siatements of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 201%.




Details on the subsidiaries as of March 31, 2019 and December 21, 2018 are a5 follows:

Primary Purpose Percentage of

Crynership

Magellan Capital Holdings Corporation (MCHC)* Holding company 94.37%

Pinemucan Industrial Estates, Inc., (PIED) Real sstate helding and 100%:
development

Malabrigo Corporation (M) Mining 1%
Magelien Capitel Realty Development Corpocation Realty

(MCRDCy** 100445

Mage!lan Capital Trading Corpotetion (MCTC)** Trading 130%

Fetermediabe parerd compeary
**Non-operational since incorporation.

The principe] place of businezss and country of incorporation of the subsidiaries are in the Philippines,

3. Changes in Acconnting Pelicies pad Disclosures

The accounting policiss adopted in the preparation of the interim cendensed consolidated financial
statements are conaistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group's armual consolidated
finencip] statements for the year ended December 11, 2018, except for the adoption of the new
standardy effective as of January 1, 2018, Adoption of thess pronouncements did not have any
significant impact on the Growp's financial position or performance, unless otherwise indicated.

+  Amendmenis to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of
Shive-based Peyment Tramsactions
The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main arcas: the effecta of vesting conditions on the
measurement of & cash-sertled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and
the accounting where & modification to the ierms and conditions of a share-based payment
tranzaction changes its classification from cash setiled to equity settled.

Om adoption, entities are required (o apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective applicetion is permitted iF elscted for all three amendments and if other crteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

Adoption of these amerdments did not have significant impact on the Group®s interin condensed
consolidated financial staterments.

*  PFRR 9, Financial Inviruments
PERS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments peoject and replaces PAS 39, Finameial
Instrumems: Recogwition and Measwrement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
infroduces pew requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hadge
sccounting. PFRS 9 is effectivie Tor annual periods beginning on or after
January i, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective npplication is required, but
previding comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requiremenis
are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceplions.




The Group has adopted this new standard without restating comparative information.
Classification and measurement

Under PFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or logs
(FVTPL), amortized cost, or fair value through OCT{FVOCT). The classification is based on two
criteria:

8. The Group's business model for managing the asset; and
b. Whether the instruments” contractual cash flows represent *solely payment of principal and
interest’ on the principal amount outstanding,

The assessment of the Group’s business maodel was made as of the date of initial application,
January 1, 2018, The assessment of whether contracual cash flews on debt instruments are
solely comprised of principal and inferest was made based on the facts and circumstances as the
initial recognition of the assets.

As of January 1, 2018, the Group hes reviewed and asseseed all of its existing financial
instruments. The table halaw 1llustratas the classification and measuremnent of finarcial
instruments under PAS 39 and PFRS % at the date of initial application.

FFRS 3 Mexswrtostol Calegoties

FAS 30 Categoriea Baluwcrs FYTEFL  Amottoed Cast FYOCT
Lo and receivablos:

Cagh and cash £quivalena B8 565 434 e FTEL 565,434 B

Recavbios T, 2R3, M5 - 7,283,955 -

Pus from celoted parties 13 460,664 - 13,450,569 -
Futaticial agsats 8 (Bir valwe

Lhrumagh grnCal o s

[F¥F1.} 152,717,649 152,701, 169 - 16,510
AFS fironeial 2aasty 521351 608 - - 571,351 508

Bl 445379375 F152. 701 189 BT 068 P3571,166,1 18

As of December 21, 2018 and 2017, the Group does not hald linancial liskilities designated at fair
value through profi or loss.

Impairment

The adoption of PFRS 9 has changad the Group’s aceounting for impairment 1osses for financial
assets by replacing PAS 397s ineurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit lass
{ECL) approach. Under BFRS 9, all fnancial assets except those measured at FYTEL and aquity
instruments at FYOCT are assessed for ECL. As at Janvary 1, 2018, the Group recognized ECL
amounting to #2.0 million on financial assets at FYDCI, thereby reducing retained eamings by
the same amount.

The effects of adaption of PFRS @ on the consolidated stetement of financial position are a3
follows:
Az of January 1, 2018

Mare PAS 13 lncreace decrease) PFRS 9
ASSETS
Corrent Axsedy
Cash and cash equivalents [a] 753 4635 434 L T35 565 434
Recelvables (al T.283 965 T.283,965
Drue from related parties {a} 13,460,669 13,460,563

Financial assets at Fy 1FL (=) 152,717 699 (16510} 152,701,163




(;urrent portion of (hanCial Esets

al FY Ol [t - A0, 784,002 Al 784,002
Current portion of AF5S fnancial
BSS4TS (b} 40, T34 D02 {40,784 0021 -

Noncurrent Assed
Financinl amcts sl FVOC] - ned

of current portion (b - 480,584,116 480,584 1 14

AF S financial asseis - net of

current portion {b] 480,367,606 {480,367, 606) -
LEABILITIES AND EQUITY
Equity
Met unrealized valuasion gains on

financial axsety st FVOCI [ ()] - 44,984 63 &4 BB 610
et unrealized valuation gains on

AFS financial zwsets (b} 63,066,458 (63,060,458} -
Retainod camings () 1,297,004, 791 201502 1,.204,989,752
Moncontralling interests i 73,987 545 96,857 74,084,402

The nature of these adjustments are described below:
s Classification and measurement

(2) Cash and cash squivalents, receivables and due from related parties, which are previcusly
classified 85 loans and receivables, are held 1o collect contractual cash flows and give rise
to cash flows representing selely payments of principal and interest. These ame now
classified and measured as debi instruments at armortized cost,

{b) Debt sccurities previously classified as AFS financial assets are now classified and
measurcd as debt securities at F¥OCI with recycling. The Group expects not enly to
hold the assets to collact contractual cash flows, but also to sell 4 significent amount on a
relatively frequent basis. The Group's debt instruments at FYOC!T are foreign currency-
denominated bond securilies thal passed the *solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding’ test (the SPPI eriterion). As at January 1, 2018, the
carrying amount of debt securitiss at FYOC! amounted to P315.6 miltion.

Equity securities previously classified as AFS financial asseis are now classified and
measured as equity securities &t FYOC] without recycling. The Group’s investment in
equity secutities at FYOCI are not held for trading and for which the Group irrevocably
elected the FYOCT option without recycling. In line with this, the Group reclassified the
cumulative net unrealized gains on ATS financial assets to cumnulative net unrealized
gains on financial assets st FYOCL. As at January 1, 2018, the carrying amount of equity
securities at FVOCT amounted to #201.7 million.

{¢) The Group determined that its investments in unquoted preferred shares are not held for
trading, thus, the Group irrevocably reclassified these investmenis from financial assets at
FVPL. 10 financial assets at FVOCT without recycling amounting to B16,510 as a
January 1, 2018. Upon the adoption of PFRS 9, the revaluation difference for unquoted
equity securities vlassified as financial assets at FVOCT is not sigmificant,




s  [mpairment

{d} The adopticn of PFR.S 9 has fimdamentally changed the Group’s accounting for
impairment Josses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39°s incurred less approach with
a forward-looking expested credit loss (ECL) appreach. FFRS 9 requires the Group o
recognize an allowanee for ECLs for all debt instruments not held et fair value through
profit or loss. Upon the adeption of FFRS 9, the Group recognized additional impairmem
on the Group™s debt securities at FYOCL. Impairment lozses, if any, do not reduce the
carrying amauni of debt instruments at FVOCT in the consolidated statement of financial
position, which remains at fair value,

Amendments to PFRS 4, feswrance Conrracts, Applying FFRS 9 withk PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments siendard before implementing Lhe new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurince conttacts: a tenporary
exemption from applying FFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2018, An entity may elect the
overlay approach when 1t first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach refrospectivaly to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting
the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity reslates comparalive information when applying
PFRS .

Thege amendments are not applicabls to the Group since it has no activities that are
predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts,

PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers

PFRS 15 esteblishes a new five-step model tha applies 1o revenue arising from conlracts with
customers. Linder PFRS 15, revenus is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goeds or services to a
cugtomezr. The pringiptes in PFRS 13 provide & more situctured approach to messuring and
recoghizing revenue,

PFRS 15 supersades PAS 11, Constraction Contracs, PAS |8, Revenus and relsted
Lnterpretations and it applies o all revenue arising from contracts with cusiomers, unless those
comlracts are in the seope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step maodel to
pccount for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under PTRS 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration 10 which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring poods or services to a custormer, The standard requires entities te
exercise judgement, taking inlo consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the
accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly relaled to
fuiblling & contract.

Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
stalements becauze the following revenue transactions of the Group are outside the scope of
PFRS 15:

o Dividend meome from investees, financial assets at FYTFL and equity securities at FYVOCT
o Interest insome from investments in debt securities at FYOCT and short-terrn placements

¢ HRental income from leases to third parties




» Amendments to PAS 40, fmvestment Property, Transfers of [nvestment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
consiruction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendmenis state that a
change in use otcurs when the property meets, or ceases to mest, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions

for the use of 4 property does net provide evidence of a change in use. Retrospective application
of the amendments is not raquired and is only permitted if this is possible without the use of
hindsight.

Smee the Group's current practice is in line with the clarifications jssued, the amendments do not

have significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements upon adoption of these
amnerdmrents.

»  Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture ot Faiv Value (Part of Arnual
Improvements bo PFRSc 2142014 Cyele)
The amendments. clarify thet an entity that iz a venture capital orgenization, or other qualifying
crility, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to meagure its
investments in asscciates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
thal il" an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity methad, elect 1o
retain the fair value measurement applied by that invastment entity associate or joint venture o
the investmend entity associate’s of joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This ekection is made
separately for sach investment entity associste or jont venturs, at the later of the date on which
{#) the investment smtily assoviale or joint venture is initially recognized, (b) the asscciate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and {c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first
becomes r parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with sarlier application
petmitted.

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Group's interim condensed
consolideted financial statements,

s Amendments to PAS 40, Irvestment Property, Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
comslruetion or devefopment into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and thers is avidencs of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that oceur on or after the beginning of the annual
repgrting pericd in which the entity first applies the amendments, Retospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

The amendments do not have sigmficant impact on the Group's intertm condensed consolidated
financial statements upon their adoption since the Group’s current practice is in e with the
clarifications issued,

Mew Standsrds and Interpretstion lssued fTective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the futare edoption of the satd prononncements will have a significant impact on




its conzolideted financial statements, The Group intends to adopt the fallowing proncuncements
when they become effective.

Effecrive beginning on or gfter Jovuary [, 2019

Amendments to PFRS %, Prepayment Features with Wegative Compensation

Lndar PFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amartized cost or ar fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows qualifies the SPPI criterion and
the instrument is held within the approprinte business model for that classification. The
amendments to PFRS 9 clarify that a financial assel passes the SPPL ¢riterion regardless of the
even! or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or reeeives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract. The

smendments should be applied cetrospectively and are effective from Jancary 1. 2019, with
earli=r application permittad.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial starements of the Group,
PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets ot the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclasure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two
recopnilion exemptions [or lessees - leases of low-value' assets (g g., personal computers} and
short-tenm leases {i.c., leases with a leaze term of 12 months or Jess).

At the commencement date of a tease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments
(i.e, the lease liability) and an asset representing the nght to use the underfyving assel during the
lease term (Le.. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the
interest expense on the lsase liability and the depreciation expense on the right-af-use asset,

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease Hability upon the soourrence of certain events
fe.g., 4 change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from & change in an
index or rats used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease lizbility as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’'s accounting under
PAS 17, Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors 10 make more exiensive disclosures than under PAS 17,
Early spplication iz permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard uzing cither B full retrospective or & modified rerospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permil certain reliefs.

The Growp is cumently assessing the impect of PERS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on
the required affective date.




Amendments 1o PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments 10 PAS 19 address the aceounting when a plan amendment, curtaitment or
seftlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or seflement ocewrs during the ennual reporting period, an entity is
required to:

+  Determine the coment service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benafit liability (asset) reflecting the benefitz offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event, and

= Dctermine the net imterest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement wsing: the nel defined benefit iability (assef) reflecting the benefits
offered undar the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to
remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset},

The amendments also clariFy that an entity first determines any past service ¢ost, or 4 gain ot loss
on settlerment, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in
consolidated statements of income. An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after
the plan amendment, curtailment or sentlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts
inciuded in the net interest, is recognized in consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting pericd thet beging on or after January 1, 2019, with early
application permitied.

The Group is currently assessing the impagt of adopting these amendiments.
Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venturss

The amendments clarify that an entity applies PFRS 9 to Jong-term intzrests in an associate or
Joint venture to which the equity methad is not applizd but that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in the associate ot joint venture (long-tenm intenests). This clarification is relevant

because [t imples that the expected credit loss model in FFRS 9 applies to such long-term
interests.,

The amendments also clarified that, in applying PFRS 9, an entity does nof take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment,
recognized as adjustments te the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from

applying PAS 28. The amendments should be applied retrespectively and are effective from
January 1, 2019, with ecarly application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these amendments.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncerainty over income Tax Tremmenits

The interpretation addresses ihe accounting for income taxes when tax treatments invalve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, Income Taxes, and does not apply to taxes or

levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and pensities associated with ungertain tix reatments.




The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax traatments sepamstzly

The assumptions an cntity makes abour the examination of 1ax trestments by taxation
authorities

How an entity determines taxable profit {tax Joss), tax bazes, unused (ax losses, unosed tax
cradits and tax rates

How en sntity considers changes in facts and cicumstances

An entity musi determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separateiy or together
with one or more other uncertam tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resclunion
of the uncertainty should be followed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this interpretation.

Annue] Improvements to PFRSs 20152017 Cycle

ja

Amendments to PFRS 3, Busimess Combinarions, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
Previcusly Held Interest in a Joint Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business thet iz a joint
aperation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
incliding remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and ligbilities of the joint
opetation at fair value, In deing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest
in the joint operation.

A party that participates in, but dots not have joint contral of, a joint operation might obiain
joind control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously hetd interests in
that joint operation are not cemeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to business combingtions for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after

Fanuary 1, 2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint controt on or after the baginning
of the first annual reporting penod beginning on or after Janusry 1, 2019, with early
application permitted.

These amendments are curcently not applicable to the Group but may apply 1o future
transactions.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Cansequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
{Classified as Equity

The amendments ¢larify that the ingome tax cansequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributabla profits than to distnbutions
to owners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in
consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past ransactions or events.




An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier
January |, 2019, with early application permitted.

Thess amendments are not relevant to the Group because dividends declared by the Group do
nat pive rise to tax obligations under the current tax laws.

o Amendments to PAS 23, Borvowing Costs, Barrawing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity Lreals as part of geners! barrowings any bormowing
originally made to develop & qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sele are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting perinds beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

The amendmenta are not applicable to the Group sitee the Group does not have any
burmawing costs.

Finarcial Instru 5 i Adeption of FFRN ¢

Finemcial Assets

Initiad Recognition and Measurement, Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amartized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through the consolidated statements of income.

The classification of financial assess &1 initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contraciual
cash flow characteristics and the Group®s business model for managing them, With the exception of
trads receivables thar do not contain a significant fmancing component or for which the Group has
applisd the practical expediend, the Group initially measures a financial nsset at its fair value plus, in
the case of 2 financial assel not &t fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical sxpadient are measured st the transaction price determined under PFRS 15

in order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it nesds 10 give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of peincipal
and interest (SPEIY on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI
test and is petformed at an instrument level,

The Group's busincss modsl for managing financial assets refers ta how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash Alows, selling the financial assets, or both,

Subsequent Menstrement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

s Financial assets at amortized cost {debt instrumenis)
1 Financial sssets at fair valus through other comprehensive incnme with recycling of sumulative
gains and losses (debl instruments)




* Finnncial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {equity instruments)
*  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Finaciad Assers ar Amortized Cost (Debr Instruments). The Group measurcs finencial azsets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are mt:

= the financial assel is hetd within 8 business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to colleet contractual cash Flows; and

*  the contractual terma of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thet are
aolely payments of principal and interest on tha principal smount outstanding.

Financial asscts at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the EIR msthod and are subject 1o
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the asset
is derecognized, niodified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes “Cash and cash equivalents™, “Receivables™,
and *[ue from related parties™ accounts in the consolidated statements of finaneial position.

Fitancial Assels at FVOCT With Recyeling of Curilative Gains and Losses (Debi Insiruments). The
Group measures debt instrurments at FVIOCL if both of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business modet with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling, and

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal emount cutstanding,

For debt instruments at FVOCE, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
oT reversals are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and computed in
the same manncr as for the financial assets measured at amertized cost. The cemaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCI is recycled to the consolidated statsments of income.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group has debt instrements st FYOC] smounting to 8260.2 million
{see Note 10}

Financial Assets Designared at FVYOCT With Na Recyeling of Cumuiative Gains and Losses Upon
Derecognition {Equity Instruments). Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVDC! when they meet the
definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrunient basis,

Geins and losses on these financial assels are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as other income in the consclidated statements of income when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in the consolidaled siatements of
comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated ax fair value throagh OCT are not subject to
impairment.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group elected o classify irrevocably its quoted equity securities under
this category amountiag to P132.6 million (see Note 10}




Financial Asseis ot FVTPL. Financial assets at FYTPL include financial assets held-Tor tading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required
1o be measured at fair value, Financial assets are classified as held for trading unless they are
destgnated as effective hadging instruments. Financial assets with cash flow that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are claseifisd and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at
FVOCL, a5 described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so climinated, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismateh.

Financial assets at F¥TPL are carried in the consolidated statements of Financial position at fair value
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

This category includes listed equity investments which the Group had not irevocably elected ta
classify at FYOCL. Dividends on listed equity investments arc alse recognized as ‘Dividend income’
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the right of payment has besn
established.

As of Decenber 31, 2018, the Group has financial assets at FVTPL amounting to 32059 million f1
note 7).

Impairment of Financial Assers. The Grovp recognizes an allowance for expectsd credit losses
{ECLs) for all debt instruments not held a1 fair value through profit or toss. FCLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and sl the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the ari ginal EIR.

The ECL calcu|ation using genern} approach is composed of three major components - probability of
default (PD), loss given default (LGD), and exposure at dsfalt (EADY, The {2-month ECL. i3
computed for Stage ! accounts, while the lifetime ECL is caloulated for Stage 2 and Stage 3 accounts.
The ECL caleuiation using simplificd approach is computed for Stage 2 and 3 accounts, using
lifetime ECL.. Accounts with objective evidence of impairment are classified under Stage 3 and shall
follow the Group®s impairment methodology.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since injtial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For thase credit exposures for which there has been a
sighificant merease in credit risk since initial recogniticn, a loss allowance is required for credit losses

expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime
ECL).

A loss allowance at an amount equal to at ieasi 12-month expected credit losses will be recognized
throughout the life of financial assets, thereby reducing the systematic overstatement of interest
revenue. A loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses will be recognized
when eredit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition, resulting in the timely
recognition of expected credit losses.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due
andfor it meets certain qualitative criteris. ln certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
8882t to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
recejve the autstanding contractual amounts in full befors taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company.




Financial Liabilities. Imitinl Recogmition and Measiwement. Financial liabilities are clagsifed, at
initial recognition, as Anancial liabilines at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
pavables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and paysbles, net of direcily aifributable tramsaction cosls.

The Group’s financial liabilities includs “Accounts payable and accrued expenses™, “Dividends
payable” and other obligations that meet the above dafinition (other than liabilities covered by other
accounting standards),

Subsequent Measirement. After initia! recognition, the Group®s financinl linbilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost nsing the EIR method.

Drerecopnition of Financial Instruments

Financial Asvets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.¢., emoved from the Group's statement of financial
position) when:

* therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

" the Group has ransfemred its rights to receive cash flows from the azser or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash Rows in full without matarial delay 10 & third party under a
‘pass-through” srrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred subatantially atl the risks and
mewards of the asset, or (1) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asse.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered nto a
pass-through arangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retzined the risks and rewards of
awnership., When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognizs the transferred asset to
the extent of itz continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The tranaferred asset and the associated lishility are measured on a bagis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured Bt
the Jower of the origine! carmying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideralion that
the Group could he required to repey.

Finarcial Liabilities

A financial ligbility is derecognized when the obligation under the lisbility is discharged or cancelled
or éxpires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantialiy different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.




Bevenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of servicss in
the ordinary course of the Group*s activities. Revenoe is shown net of value-added tax and discounts.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or servises are
transferred 10 the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration o which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group determlines, at contact inception,
whether it will transfer control of a promised good or service over time, 1f the Group does not setisty
a performance obligation aver time, the performanss obligation is setisfied at 8 point in time when
contral of the asset is transfered to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods or services.

Prior to 2018, the Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is possible that future economic benefits will flow into the entity. The amount of revenus is nol
considered 10 be reliably measured until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customar, the Lype
of transaction and the specifics of each amangement.

Revenue Oueside the Scope of PFRS 13
The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognized.

Inieres! Income

For all financial instruments measured sl amortized cost and interest-hearinp fnancial assets, interest
income is recorded using the EIR method. EIR is the rate thet exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected hife of the financial mstrument or sharter period, whers
eppropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or lishility. Interest income is
recognized in the consclidated statements of income.

Ervidend Income

Revenue is recognized when the Group®s right to receive payment is established, which is generally
when the investee’s BOLD approves the dividend.

Reni fncome
Rent income arising from operating lease on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line

basis over the noncancelable leese term and is included in revenue in the consolidated statements of
TMCOMe.

Initial direct cests incurred in negetiating and arranging an opersting lease are added to the carmying,
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Contractual Cach Fiows Assessment (Upon Adoption of PFRS 9)
Beginning January 1, 2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual terms to
identify whether the instrament is consistent with the concept of SPPL

*Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the lair value of the financial 2sset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset {for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant £lements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPP] asgessment, the Group applies




judgment and considers relevant factors such as the curreney in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the petiod for which the interest rate is seb

In contrasi, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure (© risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that rre unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise w
goniractual cash flows that are salely payments of principel and interest on the amount cutstanding,
In such cases, the financial asset is requirad tc be measursd at FYTPL.

Evaluation of Business Midel in Manoging Firancinl fastriaments (Upon Adoption of PFRE 9
Beginning Janvary 1, 2018, the Group detarmines its business model at the level that best reflects
how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Group's business
model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, bt at a higher level of aggregated
partfolios and iz based on observable factors such as:

+  How the performance of the business model and the finencial assets held within that business
mode| are evalusted and reportad to the entity’s key management personnel;

+  The risks that affect the performanse of the boginess model (and the financial asgets held within
that business model) and, in particulsr, the way those risks are menaged, and

*  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also impertant aspects of the Group’s
assessment,

The business mode] assessment is based on masonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’
or ‘stress case” scenarios inte account, I cash flows after initial recognition are realized n @ way that
is different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of
the remaining fnancial assets held in that business medel, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets geing forward.

The (iroup has net early adopted any other standards, interpretations or amendments the haz been
issued but is not yet sffective.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

March, 201% December, 2018
Cach on hand and with banks P141.801 378 RS7.082.264
Shont-term placements 481,891,359 514,288,762
PH21.693,734 ®5371,371.026

Cash with banks eam interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term placements are fixed
rate time deposits denomineted in United States (US} dellar and Philippine peso, made for varying
periods of up to three months or less, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
Interest income esmed from these bank deposits and short-term placements amounted to

#3.6 million and #13.6 million in March, 2019, and Decernber, 2018, respectively.

Financial Assets st FYTPL

Financial assets at FYTPL consist of listed securities which are traded in the PSE, New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) and Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HEKEX). Fair values of listed equity securitiss
are based on quoted market prices in the PSE, NYSE and HKEx.




The carrying value of financial assets at FVTPL includes net unrealized losses on fair value changes
amouniting to B14.2 million and net unrealized gains on fair value changes amounting to
$23.% and P17.4 million in March, 2019 and December, 2018 | respectively.

Net cumuletive unrealizad gains on financisl assets st FYTPL amounted to P29.8 million and
P44.0 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2017, respectively.

The roliforward of the Group's investmenis in financial assets at FVTPL is a5 follows:

March, 2019 December, 2018

Cost
Balances at beginning, of year P176,101,738  PI108, 758,965
Additions - 67,542,773
Disposals - -
Balances gt end of year 176,101,738 176,101,738
Changes in fair value:
Balances a2t beginning of yeoar 29,795,774 43 958,70
Fair value gains {losses) 21,613,041 {14,162,960)
Disposals - -
Balances at end of year 51,408,815 29,708,774

P227,510,553  B205,597,512

Dividend income sarned on investments m financial assets at FYTPL amounted to 3.0 million,
P4 million, and P3.0 million in March, 2019 and December, 2018 presented as “Dividend income™ in
the consolidared statements of income.

The Group tecognized gain on disposal of financial asset at FYTPL amounting to nil, B.7 million, and
#1.3 million in March, 2019 and December, 2018 respectively.

5. Recelvables

March 2019 December, 2018

Accrued interest #E5.281.218 7447413
Rent receivable (see Note 21} 174,616 618,893
Qthers 800,908 177,441

9,256,739 8.243. 749
Less allowance for impairment losses 6] 368 951,368

PB25371 F71.282,381

Accrued interest from third parties pertgin to interests eamed on investments in short-term
placements, short-term investments and debt securities classified as AFS financial asscts that are
expected to be collected within ane year.




7. Investments in Associates

March, 201% December, 2018

Acquisition costs B193,760,135  ®193,760,135
Aceumulated equity in net earmnings and QCl:
Balances at boginnng of year 231,283 475 221,283,475
Shere in net moome of associates {13,972.209) {13,972,203)
Share in OCI of associatcs B210,945 8,210,945
Diividends declared by associates {44,746,750) (44,746,750
Cumulative translation adjustment 11,757,839 11,757 838

184,533,306 184,531,308
378,293,441 378,293 441

Accumulated allowance For impairment loss (94 830,129} (04 830,129
PR3 463,312 B2B3 463,312

The Group has equity interest in the following associates as of March 31, 2019 and December

31,2018
Country of Percentage of Carrying Amount of Investments
Incarpocation Crwiigrship March, 2019 Decetmber, 2018
FIC Philipgines 30% P225,166,018 #225.166,018
BPFC Philippines 35% 61,625,529 61,625,529
MUDC Philippines 43% — -
B186,791,547 286,791,547
PIC

FTC is a global service company outsourcing information technology services from the Philippmes.
Among others, it offers software servicing, maintensnce, testing and devalopmant to various clients,
mostly in the LS.

Dividends

On February 13, 2018, PTC declared cash dividends amounting 1o $2.1 million or $0.0015 per share
of the outstending stocks as of record date Jamuary 31, 2018, Dividends shall be payable before
June 310, 20E8.

The Group's share in the dividends declared amounted to nil and #32.5 millien , 30,8 million and nil
in 2018, 2017 and 2015, respectively..

B :

BFO is a provider of accounting and finance related services such as payvroll, intemal audit, payables
processing and others. 1t is involved in outsourcing business process services in the Philippines,
servicing many of the multinational and large corporations operating in the country.

Dividends
On December 12, 2018, BPC declared cash dividend amounting to 350 million or B44 87 per share

of the cutstanding stocks as of record date December 12, 2008, Dtividends shall be payable on or
betore August 31,2019,




MUDC

The Group has a 43% interest in MUDC. As of March 31, 2019, MUDC has been non-operationsl
since its incorporation. However, it has obtained the necessary requirements for the signing of a
supply agreement with a public utility firm and a purchass agreement with certain oil companies. As
of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, MUDC has project development costs of F207.1 million,
The recaveregbility of these assets and the ultimate success of MUDC’s future operations ars
dependent upon the signing of these apreements. The foregoing conditions indicate the sxistence of 2
material upcertainty which may cast significant doubt on MUDC"s ability to continue as a going
concern and the recoverability of the Group’s significant investment in MUDLC,

As of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, MUDC has incurred significant losses, which resulted
in capital deficiency amounting to #237.2 million,

The Group has investment in MLUDC amounting to B94_B million as of March 31, 2019 and
December 31, 201% and advances to MUDC amounting to #125.6 million as of March 31, 2019 and
Becember 31, 2018. The Group has assessed that its investiment in MUDC amounting to P48
million as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and its advances to MUDLC amounting to
&125.1 million as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 201 8 are impaired since management
balizves that it will no longer recover from such investment and advances. Management is not
required to infuse more capitel to MUDXC and that losses are limited to the invested additional
advances as of March 31, 2019.

Financial Assets at FYOCOT and AFS Financial Asaets

March, 201% December, 2018

Cuoted:
Debt securities - at fair valoe, net of allowance for
impairment loss of #2.1 million in 2078 FIAR H14.232 F260,853,437
Equity securities 122,954,722 132,605,290
Unquoted cquity sscuritivs 16,834,735 36413677
305 599,669 429 872 404
Less current portion 6,945.81% 5,945,819

B}01,652.87) P4232,926,585

Movements in financial assets at FYOQCLAFS financial assets are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance at January 1, 2018, as previously reponted E o B401 874,992
Effect of adoption of PFRS 9
Reclassification from AFS financial assets to
financial assets at FVOCI] 531,351,608 -
Balance at January 1, 201 8, a3 restated 521,351,608 401,674,592
Additions 22,141,284 214,648,554
Changes recognized in profit or Yoss 1,008,589 15,704 866
Movements in net unrealized valuation pain (loss} (61,004,886 0,116,280
Disposals (53,624,191 (160,993 084)
Balances at end of vear B429.872,.404 R5Z21,351,608

[nvestments in debt securities are denominated in various foreign cummencies and are stated at fair
value based on guoted prices. Changes in market values are included in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive incame. The debt securities bear fixed interest rates ranging fram 2.71% to




10.02% in 2018 and 2.7 1% to 13.63% in 2017 and 2016, Maturity dates of the investments range
from 2017 to0 2024, Interests on investments are received and settled semi-annually in its
denominated currency.

[nvestments in equity securities camied at fair value consigt of investments in quoted and unquoted
shares of stock which the Group has neither control nor significant influence. The Fair roarket values
of the listed shares are determined by reference to published quotations in an active market as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, For unlisted shares of stocks that do not have readily available market
values, the Group uses valuation for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

Movements in the net unrealized veluation gains on financial assets at FYOCHAFS financial assets
are as follows:

2018 27
Balance al Junuary t, 201 8, as previously reported E o £33 302,261
Effects of adoption of PFRS %:
Reclassification of net unrealized valuation gaing on
AF5 finencial assets to financial assets at
FYOLCI 71,224 328
Expecied credit losses 2015029 -
Balance at January [, 2018, as restated 73,230 857 23,302,261
Changes in fair value (49,972,652) 54 335,503
Expected credit losses 754,082 -
Diisposals {41,474) £6,412,936)
Balances at end of vear PI3979813 BTi224.828

Allowance for impairment losses on financial assets at FVOCI debt instruments/AFS financial assers
amountcd to #2,] million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017

Net unrealized valvation gains on financisl assets st FYOC] attributable to equity halders of the
Parent Company amaunted to 86 8 million in 201 % and net unrealized valuation gains on AFS

financial assets atributable to equity holders of the Parent Company amounted to #63.1 million as of
December 31, 2017.

Lnterest =amed on debt securities classified as financial assats al EVOC] amounted (o #19.5 million in
2018 and interest earned on debt securities classified as AFS financin) assets amounted (o

B22.0 million and B21.8 million in 2017 and 20186, razpectively, presented ag “[nterest incame™ in the
consolidated statements of income.

Diwvidend income earned on equity securities classified ns financial assets at FV OCT amounted to
£0.7 million in 2018 and dividend income e¢arned on 2quity securitiss classified as AFS financial
assets amounted #1.0 million in 2017 and 2016

The Group disposed certain financial assets at FYOC] and meoopnized loss from disposal amaunting
to #1.3 miilion in 2018 and gains from disposal of AFS financial assets amounting to 2.2 million
and #4.3 million in 2017 and 2015, respectively,

HTM Invesiments

On April 4, 2014, the Graup sold HTM investrnents with a carrying valoe of 81 7.8 million resulting




to & gain from disposal amounting to P0.2 million. Consequently, the remaining portfolio of HTM
investments with a carrying amount of P213.9 million was reclassified to AFS financial assets and
was rerneasured at fair value. The fair value gain from remeasurement ameunting to B4.5 million was
recognized in OCl.

In 2017, all HTM investments of the Group were sold resulting 1o gain en disposal of HTM
investments amounting to 0.2 million recognized in profit or loss.

. Property and Equipment

OfMice
Farnfiure,
Comdrruiminm Tramsporistion  Fiztarewnmd  March, 2019
Cosdarnimium _Improvements Equlpment Eqywigierwrit Total
Coat:
Hnlnwees i bephining of year B8, 755,943 P78 062 FIDIES DTG BLAES AT RALGARSGS
Addikm L,TLL LI
Balances o end of vear 21,155,943 PLT6L062 T BINIENDTY  Pa 180 Eags0.274
Avcumslated depraciathon:
Balimces st Deglnsiaig of year 15,152,152 8387 180 T1AT618 2544402 3120481
Deepreciution 1,554 L7542 211,937 4,437 3. T7S
Balunces at ond of year LS 359,711 B, 4. 922 _7,540. 558, 255,08y MI65I57
Mel book values 5 3%%, 151 150,140 2,713,524 14,121 R ARS017
Uffice
Furmiture,
Cemdominiom — Trenapoibon Fixturex and  December 2018
Condominium  Impeoviments Ecquiptiem Eguipmend Touzl
Coat:
Balances at beginning of venr P00, 755,043 P22 9] #0,263.019 £2863.302  Ra2 905315
Addirions 2177 2177
Teadafer to investment proparty {156,579 {258 929)
Balancas &t and of year BRI 155,843 PR, 764 062 Bl0263 0T PLEGS47D P42 A4E 563
Ascutiuimted depreciation:
Balunces ar heginming of vear 14,321,915 £ 316,732 6,454 R84 219,691 31,948,197
Digpreciation B30,237 70,548 47,730 24,741 1,773,285
Balwncss ot end of year 15,152,152 £IET IR0 TIITELE PR LER kR 32,721 482
el book vahies LR T 376, THL 1,925 461 217 BT 08t

Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that are still in uss amounted to #15.3 million in
March, 2019 and December, 20158,

. [nvestment Propertics

March 2019
Land Condominium Total
Cust:
Balsnces st beginning uf yenar 6,319,625 PIOE XRS5 125  Pdd1,584,750
Addluany
Balatices ai end of year P46 319,625 PIVE565,125  Pdd] 8R4, 750
Arcumulated depreciation:
Balapces ut beginning of year - 41087, 196 41.947.1%
Depreclation 2,195,198 Li%e 218
Balances at end of year 44,153,494 44, 192,494
Net book values RBdd 3194615 P351 381,631 B3N, FOL 256




Crecermnber 2018

Land Condominium Total
Cost:
Balarces wt beginning and crd of year Pa5319,625 B215.815.620 P262,135.24%
Addetions — F70 41,576 175,490,576
Transfer from property and sguipment 258,929 158,929
Balances at end of year a65,319,625 395,565,125 44t B&d 750
Adtumuleted depreciation:
Balances at beginning of yesr - 332311 13.203,111
Depreciation — B 784,085 8,784,085
Balances at end of year — 41,987,196 41,987,196
Net book values P46,319,625 P353,577.926 B3ve 297,554

Condeminium units are baing leased to third parties and other related parties as office space. The
investment properties generated revenue amounting 1o ®& million, and #23 2 million in
March, 2419, and December, 2018 respectively,

The assessed fair value of the investment properties amounted to B1,295.3 million and B512.2 million
as of March 31, 2019 and December, 2018. The fair values of the investment properties are based on
valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer. The valustion model in accordance with
that recommended by the Intemational Valuation Standards Committes has been applisd.

The Group used the Sales Comparison Approach in determining the fair value of the investment
properties. This is a comperative approach 1o value that considers the sales of similar or subatitute
ptoperties and related market data znd =stablishes a valus estimate by processes involving
COMParison.

The appraiser gathers data on actual sales andfor listings, offers, and renewal options, and identifies
the similarities and differences in the data, ranks the data accordmg to theit relevance, adjusts the
sales prices of the comparable tn account for the dissimilarities with the unit being appraised, and
forms a conclusion as to the most reasonable and probable market valus of the subject property.

The elemems of comparisen include location, physical characteristics, available utilities, zoning, and
highest and best use. The most variable elements of comparison are the site’s physical characteristics,
which include i1s size and shape, frontage, topography and location.

The fair value is estimated under Leve] 3 inputs. The significant unobservable inputs to valuation of
investment propertits ranges from P70,0040 - BI80. D00 per square meter,

The Group has no restricticens on the realizability of its investment properties and ne contractus|

gbligations to either puschase, construct or develap investment properties or for repairs, maintenance
and enhancemnents.

Rent income arising from operating lease on investment properties amounted to 86 million and
F23.1 million in March 2019, and December 2018, tespectively. .




12, Ciher Mancurrent Asacts

March, 2019 December, 2018

Deposit on contracts - -
Deposits 743,580 43,580
BT43.580 B743,580

13, Aceoonts Payable and Accrued Expenses

March, 2019  December, 20]8

Deposits payable P8,142.691 #7,041,272
Accounts payable 2,403,518 1,475,318
Accrued professionei fees 1,471,115 1,149,542
Ciovernment paynbles 236,243 445,106

P12,253 564 F10.112.238

Deposits payabie pertain to deposits made by tenants for the lsase of an insignificant portion of the
Group's condominium spaces and will be refunded to the lessee after the lease tenm.

Accounts pavable are generally noninterest-bearing payzbles b third party contractors with a credit
termn of 30 days.

14. Imcome Taxes

The Group’s pravizion for cumrent income tax in 2018, 2017, and 2016 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
RCIT P1al1g281  B10.78R.556 R7,213,243

Final tax on interest income 2,446,789 2,608,051 2,547,102

MCIT -

Stock transaction tax {STT) on dispasal of
financial assets at FVPL

BE065,053  WI13,397,607  RID,200,945

13. Equity
a. Comman Siock

[n accordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended {2011}, Annex 68-D, below is a summary of the
Group's track record of registration of secunties,

. Number of shares registered [ssuefoller price  Date of approval
Commot shares 1,406, CHR0, 0} B0 December §, 1982
Common shares N 00, 000 #.0L July 28, 1997

The deteils of the Group's capital stock (number of shares and amounts) ere as follows:




March, 2019  December 31, 2018

Common stock - Bl par value
Class A
Authorized - 600 million shares
lssued - 292,610,011 & shares #192.610,118 RO GILTLE
Clas= B
Authorized - 400 million shares
Issued - 189,217,535 shares 189,217,535 189,217,535
P441,827.653 P4B 1 B27,653

Class A and B common stockholders enjoy the same rights and privileges, except that Class A
shares may be owned by, tansferred to and subscobed only by Filipine citizens or corporations,
partnerships and associations organized under the lews of the Philippines, of which §0% of the
common steck putstanding is owned by citizens of the Philippings. Class B sheres may be issued,
transferred or sold to any person, corposation, parinership or association regardless of netionality.

In 1579, the registrant listed with the PSE {or its predeceasor, Manila Stock Exchange) its
common stock under its previous name, Ultrana Energy and Resource Corporation, whers it
offered 1,000.000,004 shares to the pubiic at the issue price of BO.01 per share.

Cn July 28, 1997, the SEC approved the increase in the Group’s authorized capital stock from
10,000,000,000, divided into 6,000,000,000 Class A commen shares with par valug of

0.0l per share and 4,000,000,000 Class B common shares with par value of B0 41 per share o
1,000,000 000 commen shares, divided inte 600,000,000 Class A commen shars; with par valoe
of #1 per share and 400,000,000 Class B common share with par value of #1 per share,

On November 26, 2000, the BOD approved the issuance, oui of the suthorized common stock, of
192,413 090 shares at 1 par value which will be offered through a pre-emptive stock righls jssue
and detachable stock wamants, as follows: {a} 96,206,545 shares vonsisting of 58,377,278 Class A
shares and 37,825 267 Class B shares, to be offered in two tranches, the First Tranche consisting
of 48,103,272 sheres of stock and the Second Tranche consisting of 48,102,273 shares of stock, o
which 2ach stockhulder may subseribe on a pre-smptive rights basis, and (b) the balance of
96,206,545 shares to be offered through detachable stock warrants, which shatl entitle each
stockholder to subseribe to one share of stock for every one share of stock of the same class that
such stockhalder subscribe to oul of this stock rights issue.

The Group's application to list eddilional 192,413,080 common shares with a par value of
#1 par shara through pre-emptive rights issue and detachable subscription warrants was approved
by the PSE on February 27, 2002 and by the 5EC on April 5, 20032.

The exercise periods and expiration dates of the Group’s subscription warrants are as follows:

Number Exercise Expiration
of Shares Periods Dates
First Tranche:
Class A common shares 29,188,619 June 4, 202 1o
Class B common shares 18,914,633 June 3, 2007 June 3, 207
48,103,272

(Farward)




Number Exerciss Expiration

of Shares Periods Dates
Seccond Tranche:
Class A common shares 29188 630 May 9, 2003 to
Class B common sheres 18,914,634  May B, 2008 May §, 2008
4%, 103,273
96,206,545

Full payment of each subscription under the First Tranche was made within the offer period
approved by the PSE and the SEC, and the full payment of each subscription under the second
tranche shall be due and payable one year from the last day of the offer period. 'With the full
subscription of the Pre-Emptive Righis Stiock Offering, the Group's outstanding common stock
incrensed to 481,032,728 common shares of stock, consisting of 291,888,391 Class A common
shares and 189,146,337 Class B common shares, all with par value of P1 per share.

With the complate exercise of all Detachable Stock Warrants, the Group will have an cutstanding
common stock of 577,239,273 shares, consisting of 350,263,669 Class A common shares and
226,975,604 Class B common shares, all with par value of B1 per share. However, as of
December 31, 2607, 723,727 Class A common stock warrants and 71,198 Class B common stock
warrants were exercised and 28,464,912 Class A common stock warrants and 18,843,435 Clasz B
common stock warrants expired. As of December 31, 2608, 29,188,639 Class A common stock
warrants and 13,914,634 Class B common stock warrants expired due to non-exercise of stock
warrants before expiration date. After the axpiration of the said warrants, the Group's
ouistanding commaon stock amounted to #481,827,653 with sdditional paid-in capital of
£i144.759.977. There have been no movemnents since 2008,

The Parent Company has 480 and 474 stockholiders as of March 31, 2019, and December 31,
2018, respectively,

Treasury Shares

The Group's traasury shares perizins to shares of the Parent Compeny acquired or held by its
subsidiaries. For consolidation purposes, the costs of these shates are prasented under the
“Treasury shares™ account in the equity scction of the consolidated statements of financial

position.
In 2017, PIEL purchased 239,560 additional shares of the Parent Campany with a total cost of

P1.3 million. These are compoesed of 159,260 Class A shares and 80,300 Class B shares, costing
F0.9 million and £0.4 million, respectively.

Az of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Group's treasury shares are as follows:

Shares Amount

March, 2014  December, 2018 Mareh, 2019 December, 2018

Balance a1 beginning of year 97,874,187 %7.874,987 PIOR46.956  R100.946.956

Additions 168,000 158,000 830,320 B30, 320
Balance a1 ¢nd of year 98,042,387 DE.U42 38T HI01TIT276  RIDITTVITE




c. Retained Earmings

Retained earnings is restricted to the axtent of the acquisition price of the treasury shares
amounting to #1018 million as of March 31, 201% and December 31, 2018, respectively.
Retained eamnings is also restricted to the extent of equity in net earnings of the associates not
declared as dividends as of reporting date.

The balance of retained eamings includes the accumulated cquity in net earnings of the
subsidiaries and associzates amounting to P1,045 08 million 25 at March 31, 2019 and December
31, 2018, respectively. Such amounts are not available [or distribution until such time that the
Parent Company receives the dividends from the subsidiaries and associates.

Divigends payable amounted to B4.6 million and 835, 1 million as of March 31, 2019 and
Deocember 31, 2018, respectively.

16, Related Party Transactionn

Partics are gonsidered 1o be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
deciaions, Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

A summary of outstanding balances and transactions with relared parties, net of allowance for
impairment loss and presented under “Due from related parlies™ account, are a5 follows:

Transaclians  Chustanding

during the vear balances Terms  Conditions
Arsocialex
BFO
Rent income March, 2019 B 40D 40T FLAI T Mrdays; LUnsecurcd;
Detcermer 2118 1,385,721 141885 nominteres-tearing  Linimpaired
Payroil sarvices expense Muarch, 2019 18,505 0 days,  Unseoured;
Crecember 2018 123,543 — nonimeres-bearing  Unimpained
Dividends {scc Note ¥)  March, 20019 14,065 550 30 days,  Unsccuraod,
December 2018 13,250 003 13,749,474 noninterey-pearing  Lndmpeired
BT
Dividends (sze Mol 3] March, 2019 10 days;  Unsecured;
Decemmber 2018 12,496,750 - mmninterest-bearing  nimpaired
MUDC
Advances March, 2019 16,758 - 3 deys, Unsecured,
December HH 8 (1,956,805) noninterest-heaning [mpaire:d
Under common cordeel:
Cher relzied parties
Advances March, 2019 L[] - 30 days;  Unsecured;
Decomber 2014 7,10 350406 noninleresi-bearing Impeired
Muarch, 201% P14.23%,006
Drecember, 2018 16,254 265

The related party transactions are settled in cash.




Mavermnent in the ailowance for impairment loases on due from related parties are as follows:

Muarch, 2009 December, 2018

Due from related parties - #i gross Fa0d4,914.208 #2204 514,208
Less Atlownnce for impairment loss:
Balances at beginning of vear 188,797,524 (88,797,524
Recovery of allowance for impairment losses (137,582) {137,532)
Balanees at end of year 18R, 7659 942 188, 7654,943

®6,254,266  B16,254,266

Allowance for impairment loss is mainly arributabls to advances to MUDC, among others.

17. Earnings per Share
The following table presents information necessary to compute the basic/dilutive EPS:

March, 2019 December, 2011

Net income attributable 1o aquity

holders of the parent 29106367  B12,088239
Weighted aversge number of ordinary shares

cutstanding for basic and diluted EPS 384,033,808 384 033 B0A
Basic and diluted earnings per share BLLOTE #0037

The Group has no potential dilutive instruments issued as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2015,

1%. Segment Information

The primary purpase of the Group is to invest in real and personal properties. The Group operates
mainly in one repartable business segment which is mvesting and one reportahle geographical
segment which is the Philippines.

1%. Cammitmeats apd Contingencies

8. The Group leases a portion of its condominium speces. The Group recognized renlal income
amounting 10 B6 millicn, and #23.1 million in March, 2019, and December, 2013, respectively.
Future minimum rental income of 13,5 million from existing rental agreements will be
recognized in 2019 and 2020. The lease agresments have terms of one 10 two years and can be
rencwed upon the written agresment of the Group and the lessees. Deposit payable made by the
tenants amounting 1o PE.1 million and #7 million as of March 31, 2019 end December 31, 2015,
respectively, will be returned to the lessees after the lease term (ses Note 12).

b. Asof March 31, 2019 ared December 31, 2018, the Group mecognized provision for lega!
cbligation amounting to BS O millien, for cleims arising from lewsuit filed by 2 third party, which
is awaiting decision by the couns. Probable cost has been estimated in consubation with the
Group's legal counsel. Management and its legal counsels believe that the Company has
substential legnl and factmal bases for its position and is of the opinion that losses anising from




these legal actions, if any, will not have material adverse impaet on the Group™s financial position
and results of operations.

20. Fair Valoe of Financial Inafrumients

Set out helow is a comparison, by elass, of the camying amount, and fair value of the Group's
financia] instrument, other than those with carrying amount thet are reasonable approximation of fair
yalues:

March, 2419 December, 2618
Carrying Amsuat Fair Valsss  Carrying Amount  Fair Vakes
Financial assets al FvIPL B217 510,553 K17 A0 A% MARTIIE FI05 85T 512
Financial azsets & FVOCI
Debi secuntivs FE251. 868,412 K251 368 413 ST E1E E253,907.618
Equity scouritics 115,954,722 122,954,712 132,603,290 132,605,290
Unguoted seeuriliss 16,830,738 . 16,550,735 38410677 36413677
Cumrent equity scourities 6,945,514 645819 61819 6M3E(9

P65, 110,242 P626,110.243 P615 ToN.015  BGIS 769,716

The Group has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from related parties, scerued expenses and other liabilities and dividends payabis, based on their
notional amounts, reascnably approximate their fair values because these are short-term in nature.

Fait values of financial agsets at FYPL and quoted AFS financial assets are based on price quotations
at the reporting date. These financial instruments are classified as Level | in the fair value hierarchy.

As ot March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there wers no transfers betwesn Lavel 1 and Level 2
fair value measurements. Alsao, there were no transfers inte and cut of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

21.

Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activites

The (ollowing shows the changes in the Group's liabilities arnising from its financing activities for the
three months period Januvary | 10 March 31, 2019:

Asat
Dececmber 31, hvidend Asat
2018 Cash flows declaration  March 31,2019

Dividends payable
{Note 15} 5,139,021 £4,626 813




F & J PRINCE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
AGING OF ACCOUNTSE RECENVABLE

AS OF MARCH 31, 2019
i Deductions Current |
Baginning Amaunt | Amount | 0 days &0 Cvar 120 Ending
Name Balatce | Additions | Cokectsd | Written- daye or days Ealance
o aver
Magsilsn Capital sty
Dwwalopnwnit Corp. ilmr TBd THD AT 3 497
Magalian Capia
Eo_rﬂmtlun 111,50 500 b 311,530 12,030
agallan Capltel Trading
Lorponriion .17 TH) Tab W TIT 5 ART
Musgeslan LHl|Hes
Devslopment Corp. ) 0 o
Husinss Frocess
Cutnourcing Interiational | 24,558 634 MOADT | 10,743,214 0,277 14,208,545 14,215,023
Pinatvwcan Power I
Corporation 17206 500 500 1T, 208 - 17 M
Folntwest Technologies ]
| Corporatian 0 3,240 3,340 .32
Phiflppine Deponit
I uranes Corporation
Otthwra }
[ 24 555,003 408,207 | 10743248 12,077 14,608,715 14 510,782




CERTIFICATE OF INDEFENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Peter L. Kawsek, Ir.. Filipino, of legal ape and resident of 415 Arayat Street, Mandaluvong
City. after having baen duly swomn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. Tam a neminee for independent director of F & ] Prince Holdings Corpoaration and have
been its independant director since July 26, 2018 (where applicable),

2 1 am affiliated with the following companies or organizations {including Govermment
Owned and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION FGSITIOM.RELATIDNSHIF PERIOD OF SERVICE

Apy  [ntemational  Madketing President From 1980 ko Present
| Corporation

Kawsek, incorporated Vige-President [rom 1980 to Present
PNZ Marketing, Inc. President Trom 1981 to Present
PNZ Packers. Inc. | Prasident From 1981 to Present
Bekter Ventures, Inc. . President From 2007 to Present

3. I possess alt the qgualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of F & J Prince Holdings Corporation, as provided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rule and Regulations and other SEC
issuances,

4. Tam retated to the following director/officersubstantial sharsholder of (covered company
and ts subsidiarigs and afliliates) other than the retationship provided under Rule 3823
of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME OF COMPANY NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP
MHRECTORNOFFICER/
SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER
NAL

5. To lhe best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding!T disclose that [ am the subject of the following
eriminal‘administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE CHARGED/  TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS
INVESTIGATED INVOLVED
NA




6. (For those in governiment service/affiliated wilth government agency or GOCC) | have the
required writlen permission or consent from the {heal of the agency/department} to be an

independent director in - pursuant to Oifice of the President
Memarandum Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule X VI of the Revised Civil Service
Rules.

7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code and its lmplementing Rules and
Repotation, Code of Governance and other SFL issuances.

& | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of I' & J Prince Holdings Corporation of any
changes in the above-mentioned information within five days from its occurances.

Dowe this . day ol - 2019, at City of
Peter L. Kawsek, Jr.
Affiant
SL/BSCRIBED AND SWORN (o hefore me this day of - 2009 at City of
. afftant personally appeared before me and exhibited to hissher
issued at . _ om _ .

Do, Mo i
PageMa.
Book Mo,
Series of 2018,




CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

L, Charlie K. Chua, Filipina, of tegal age and resident of 180 4™ Avenue., Caloocan City after

having been duly swom to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

f. Lam a nominee for independent director of F & I Prince Holdings Corporation and have
heen its independent dircctar since July 26, 2018 (where applicable).

2. 1 am affiliated with the bllowing companies or organizations {including Government
Owned and Contrilled Corporations:

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION  POSITION/RELATIONSHIP  PERIOD OF SERVICE

'Hi ghlaﬁd Tractor Parts, Ing, Vice-President 25 yeary
CKL Marketing & Dev't, Corp. President 25 years
skywell Helding Corporation President 12 vears

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications 10 serve as an
independent Dircetor of F & J Prince Holdings Corporation. as nrovided for in Section 38
of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rule and Repulations and other SEC
[SEUANCEes,

4. [am related to the following directorofficer/substantial shareholder af icovered company
and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3
of the Securitics Regulation Code. (where applicable)

NAME. OF COMPANY NATURE OF
DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ RELATIONSHIP
SLUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER
MeA
5 To the best of my knowledge. | am net the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding/l disclose that [ am the subject of the {ollowing
crimingl/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):
OFFENSE CHARGED/ i TRIBLUNAL OR AGENCY STATLUS
| INVESTIGATED INVOLVED
A




6. (For those in povernment service/affiliated with government agency or GOCC) | bave the
required written pennission or consent from the (head of the agency/depariment’ o be an

independent director in . pursuant 1o Office of the Presidemnt
Memorandum Circular N, |7 and Section |2, Rule XV of the Revised Civil Service
Rules.

7. [ shall faithfully and diligenily comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
direcior under the Securities Repulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulation. Code of Govemnanee and other SEC issuances.

B. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of F & J Prinece Holdings Corporation of any
changes in the ahove-mentioned information within five davs from its occomnces.

Dane, this day af 2149, ac City of
Charlie k. Chua
Adfiant
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 009 al City of
, affiant personally appeared before me and cxhibited 0 hisher
igsued at on

oc, Mo, :
Page Na.
Book No.

Series of NG,




Memorandum: CORPORATE ACTIONS TAKEN FOR 2018

DATE

ACTION TAKEN

May 28, 2018
(Regular Board Meeting)

a) Approval of authority for the President to
approve the Audited Financial Statements for
the year ending 2017 and to approve its release
by the Company's external auditor, SGV & Co.,
pursuant to the reportorial requirements of the
BIR and SEC.

b) Approval of authority for the President to set
the date of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting
for the year 2018.

July 26, 2018
(Organizational Meeting
of the Board of Directors)

Election of Corporate Officers & members of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Compensation Committee.

Audit Committee:

Peter L. Kawsek, Jr. — Chairman/Independent
Director

Robert Y. Cokeng

Johnson U. Co

Johnson Tan Gui Yee

Rufino B. Tiangco

Nomination Committee:

Robert Y. Cokeng — Chairman

Mark Ryan K. Cokeng

Johnson Tan Gui Yee

Rufino B. Tiangco

Charlie K. Chua — Independent Director

Compensation Committee:

Robert Y. Cokeng — Chairman

Mark Ryan K. Cokeng

Johnson Tan Gui Yee

Rufino B. Tiangco

Charlie K. Chua — Independent Director

1 | Corporate Action Taken For 2018




DIRECTORY/BANKERS

EXECUTIVE OFFICES: BANKERS:
5" Floor, Citibank Center
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1226

Tel. Nos.: 8927133 - 8927137 + 8929443

BANK OF SINGAPORE

22" Floor, Tower One and Exchange Plaza
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue, Makati City

LEGAL COUNSEL:

ATTY. FINA BERNADETTE D.C. TANTUICO
5™ Floor, Citibank Center
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

AUDITORS:

SycIP GORRES VELAYO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

TRANSFER AGENT:

RCBC STOCK TRANSFER

Ground Floor, West Wing
Grepalife Building

Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City

LISTED AT:

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
PSE Plaza, Ayala Triangle
Ayala Avenue, Makati City

BANK OF THE PHILIPPINE ISLANDS
Ortigas Branch

Benpres Building, Ortigas Center
Pasig City

CHINA BANKING CORPORATION
Balintawak-Boni Branch
Balintawak, Quezon City

BDO PRIVATE BANK
Mezzanine Floor, BDO Executive Tower
8751 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST CO.
Meralco Branch

Ground Floor, Ortigas Building

Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City



ANNUAL REPORT ON SEC FORM 17-A

The corporation undertakes to provide without charge
to the shareholders or to each person solicited, on the
written request of any such person, a copy of the
Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A. Said written
request, may be directed to:

ATTY. FINA BERNADETTE D.C. TANTUICO
Corporate Secretary

5" Floor, Citibank Center
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City





